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OUR 
CORPORATE
CHARTER

OUR VISION

OUR MISSION

OUR VALUES

www.erongored.com

Enabling growth through innovative electricity distribution and supply

To distribute and supply safe, reliable, sustainable and accessible electricity

 Integrity | Innovation | Accountability | Collaboration | Customer Focus |

Empowerment | Health & Safety
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Shareholders % Share

Municipality of Walvis Bay 49.87%

Swakopmund Municipality 28.49%

Namibia Power Corporation Limited (NamPower) 10.14%

Henties Bay Municipality 4.63%

Omaruru Municipality 1.84%

Arandis Town Council 1.66%

Karibib Municipality 1.44%

Usakos Municipality 1.26%

Uis Village Council 0.35%

Erongo Regional Council 0.32%

WHO WE ARE

Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor Company (Pty) 
Ltd, commonly known as Erongo RED, was established in 
2005 with a mandate to distribute and supply electricity to 
consumers throughout the Erongo Region, and to connect 
as many new users to the network as possible, in accordance 
with the development goals of the Government’s Vision 
2030.

Erongo RED was formed by merging electricity suppliers 
and distributors in the Erongo Region. These included 
the Arandis Town Council, Henties Bay Municipality, 
Karibib Municipality, Municipality of Walvis Bay, Omaruru 
Municipality, Swakopmund Municipality, Usakos Municipality, 
Erongo Regional Council and NamPower as the regional 
and national distributors of electricity, respectively. Each of 
these distributors is a shareholder of Erongo RED.

The drive to consolidate the Namibian electricity distribution 
industry is a Government initiative motivated by the policy 
drivers embodied in the 1998 White Paper on Energy Policy. 
One of the key motivating factors was the deterioration and 
poor maintenance of electricity distribution assets in small 
towns and rural areas due to increased economic pressure 
on local authorities. Thus, the consolidation was carried 
out to pool human resources and operational capital in 
order to provide a stable supply of regionally available and 
affordable electricity through economies of scale.

Erongo RED holds distribution and supply licences as issued 
by the Minister of Mines and Energy on the recommendation 
of the Electricity Control Board. These licences are valid until 
2030. In addition to its main distribution business, Erongo 
RED owns and operates a 220-kilowatt wind generator at 
Mile 7 near Walvis Bay. This asset, funded by a grant from 
Danida (Royal Danish Embassy) and installed in 2005, is 
currently being used primarily for research and educational 
purposes.

Erongo RED operates under the provisions of the Electricity 
Act, 2007 (Act No. 4 of 2007) and regulations issued therein, 
as well as its licence conditions and owns and manages the 
electricity distribution network in the Erongo Region.

Upon commencing operations in 2005, Erongo RED focused 
on self-sufficiency and the streamlining of operating functions 
and processes. Erongo RED now sells electricity at a price 
that reflects the actual cost of distribution and has widely 
established itself in the region. More recently, the company 
has given increased attention to extending access to 
electricity, improving customer service and further developing 
sustainable operations.

WHAT WE DO

Erongo RED supplies electricity to the Erongo Region, 
enabling residents in urban and rural areas to enjoy 
improved quality of life. Additionally, businesses are able to 
expand and create employment, and bulk consumers gain 

greater access to the electricity infrastructure necessary 
to thrive. Together, these factors create an environment 
conducive to attracting investment to the region.

OUR MAIN ACTIVITIES

Our main activities are:
• Distribution and supply of electricity to customers 

(residents, Government institutions and businesses) in 
the Erongo Region

• Maintenance of the electricity grid in the Erongo Region
• Expansion of the electricity grid through investment to 

accommodate future electrical demand
• Exploration of renewable energy solutions

OUR CUSTOMER BASE

Erongo RED serves 42,193 active customers, of which 
90% are residential. As at June 2020, 33% of electricity 
consumption by residential customers is measured with 
conventional meters and 67% is distributed via pre-paid 
meters.

Approximately 64.5% of Erongo RED’s revenue is generated 
from its business customers and high-volume customers. 
Only 3.2% of its revenue comes from institutional customers, 
while the remaining 32.3% comes from residential customers.

These figures stand in stark contrast to the number of active 
customers in each category: 89% of our active customers 
(residential) generate 32% of the revenue, 10% of our 
active customers (businesses and bulk) generate 65% 
of the revenue and 1% of active customers (institutions) 
generates 3% of the revenue. 

Together, Walvis Bay and Swakopmund account for the 
majority of Erongo RED’s revenue – 84% – as the majority 
of our customers are located in these towns. A total of 59% 
of Erongo RED’s revenue is derived from consumers in 
Walvis Bay, where 41% of our customers are located and 
58% of all energy is consumed.

Another 25% of revenue is generated in Swakopmund from 
36% of the total number of customers. The remaining 16% 
of revenue is derived from the remaining 23% of customers 
in other towns, villages and localities.

OUR SHAREHOLDERS

Erongo RED’s shareholders are the municipalities of 
Walvis Bay, Swakopmund, Henties Bay and Omaruru, the 
town councils of Karibib, Usakos and Arandis, the Village 
Council of Uis, as well as the Erongo Regional Council and 
NamPower. 

ABOUT ERONGO RED

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Our customers are the reason we exist. All our efforts and 
activities are aimed at delivering the best customer service 
possible. We set the bar high for ourselves and strive every 
day to improve on yesterday.

RESIDENTIAL HOUSEHOLDS

One of the primary responsibilities of any Government 
and its agencies is to meet the basic needs of its citizens. 
Erongo RED distributes electricity to customers on the 
grid and is committed to connecting a growing number of 
households, thereby improving the lives of an increasing 
number of Namibians in the Erongo Region.

CONVENIENCE 

To ensure that our customers continue to enjoy a beneficial 
experience through accessible electricity, Erongo RED has 
established a number of initiatives. Chief among these is 
the Call Centre, which customers can contact when they 
require assistance.

The company is also in the process of converting current 
electricity meters to smart meters that can be monitored 
remotely. This improvement will make meter monitoring 
easier, less disruptive and more convenient than it has 
been in the past.

ACCESS TO ELECTRICITY 

The global economic downturn has adversely affected 
Namibia, making cost and expenditure control a crucial 
concern to the majority of Namibians.

For the benefit and convenience of its consumers, Erongo 
RED made a strategic decision to roll out the installation 
of free pre-paid electricity meters to pensioners and low-
income segments in our community. Customers are now 
free to choose the pre-paid option, allowing them to closely 
monitor their electricity usage and control their expenditure.
Erongo RED subsidises the installation of pre-paid meters 
with connections of up to 20 amperes, subject to the kind 
of erven being serviced. This has made the pre-paid option 
popular among customers, with 34,924 pre-paid meters 
installed to date. The free installation of pre-paid meters 
was only offered to pensioners and customers on debt 
management programmes during the 2019/2020 financial 
year.

During the period under review, Erongo RED traded 
directly with 10 vendors and 2 super vendors, namely 
netVend and MobiPay. The super vendors have multiple 
sub-vendors trading throughout the Erongo Region. As a 
result, customers are able to purchase pre-paid electricity 
24 hours a day, 7 days a week, at vending points.

Domestic Pre-paid vs Conventional 

33%
67%

Conventional meters 
Pre-paid meters 

Revenue vs Customers per Segment Revenue vs Customers per Town

Revenue Revenue

32% 59%

65% 25%
10% 36%

3% 16%
1% 23%

89% 41%

Customer Segment Customers per Town

Residential Walvis Bay

Bulk & Business Swakopmund

Institutional Other
Other towns, villages & 

localities in Erongo Region
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Subsidised Tariffs 

N$14.3 million spent on subsidised 
tariffs during 2019/2020

Pensioners with conventional meters
N$11,936,487

Pensioners with pre-paid meters
N$1,670,383

Low-income customers with pre-paid meters 
(20 amperes)
N$566,440

Plans are underway to make the purchase of pre-paid 
electricity accessible via mobile communication, as well as 
through the Erongo RED website.

TARIFFS 

Given the difficult economic climate, the price of electricity is 
of utmost importance to consumers. Thus, when modelling 
tariffs, Erongo RED always considers various factors, such 
as affordability, the state of the economy, envisaged projects 
as well as sustainability of the company.

In our endeavour to provide affordable electricity to 
households, domestic consumers can select either pre-
paid or conventional supply on a staggered tariff system, 
with tariffs as low as N$1.36 per unit for the first 100 units. 
This measure empowers consumers to take control of their 
electricity bill.

BULK CUSTOMERS

Crucial to the success and long-term viability of any industry 
or business is not only the access to electricity, but also the 
reliability of supply.

The Government’s Harambee Development Plan has 
identified the Erongo Region as a focal area for driving 
Namibia’s economic growth, through industries, such as 
uranium mining, and national infrastructure development 
projects, like the harbour expansion in Walvis Bay. A 
dependable supply of electricity is paramount for such 
development, as well as essential from a foreign investment 
perspective.

Additionally, the influx of people seeking employment 
within the mining industry has put critical pressure on the 
electricity network in the region, which in some areas (such 
as Kuisebmond in Walvis Bay) is already running close 
to capacity. In response, Erongo RED has been steadily 
upgrading the network since 2013.

Since the Namibian Constitution tasks municipalities and 
local authorities throughout the Erongo Region with meeting 
the basic needs of residents, being able to rely on service-
delivery partners such as Erongo RED makes fulfilling their 
civic responsibility significantly easier.

Erongo RED’s ongoing efficient and reliable supply of 
electricity, as well as its systematic expansion of the network 
to connect more households, makes the company an 
important agent of positive change for the Erongo Region. 
As such, Erongo RED is improving people’s lives in a 
significant way. Furthermore, this capable and dependable 
electricity supply attracts and makes investment feasible, 
thereby stimulating the economy in the region and facilitating 
the creation of new employment opportunities.

VULNERABLE COMMUNITY MEMBERS

Pursuing its goal to make access to electricity attainable to 
as many people as possible, Erongo RED offers vulnerable 
members of the community, such as pensioners and low-
income families, a subsidised tariff.

In the period under review, the company subsidised tariffs 
to pensioners and pre-paid customers using up to 20 
amperes to the amount of approximately N$14.3 million. 
The programme benefited 9,440 customers, of whom 6,779 
are registered as pensioners. 

SUBSIDISED TARIFFS

Of the N$14.3 million spent on subsidised tariffs during the 
period under review, pensioners paying by conventional 
method (monthly accounts) benefited to the amount of 
approximately N$11,936,487 and pensioners with pre-
paid meters benefitted to the amount of N$1,670,383. In 
addition, customers on pre-paid meters of 20 amperes 
received subsidies to the amount of N$566,440.

During the period under review, Erongo RED installed 172 
free pre-paid meters for customers with connections of 
20 amperes. The purpose of this initiative is to assist low-
income customers in our communities.

Since Erongo RED launched the pre-paid conversion 
project eight (8) years ago, a total of 34,924 customers 
have converted to pre-paid electricity.

ELECTRIFICATION PROJECTS 

For the period under review, Tatamutsi and //Goagomes 
settlement areas were identified as beneficiaries of the rural 
electrification project. The project is 80% complete and is 
estimated to have cost over N$3 million upon completion. 
The Board approved N$2 million for electrification projects 
under the current financial year. In Omaruru, 50 dwellings in 
the Hakahana community were identified for electrification, 
in Usakos 60 dwellings, and in Walvis Bay 92 dwellings 
under the Shack Dwellers Federation.

Erongo RED operates from a network asset base with an 
estimated carrying value of N$799 million (evaluated on a 
regulatory basis).  

Electricity is an important catalyst for the economic growth 
and development of Namibia. Erongo RED currently 
purchases about 98% of the electricity it distributes from 
NamPower, based on the Single Buyer Model.

Like most countries in the SADC Region, Namibia 
under-produces domestic electricity.

Of the 4,702 GWh pushed into the Namibian grid in the 
2019/2020 financial year, 41% was locally generated and 
59% was imported from SADC countries, such as Zimbabwe, 
Zambia, and South Africa, and from the Southern African 
Power Pool (SAPP) market.  

Apart from being the exclusive importer of electricity 
in Namibia, NamPower also generates electricity from 
local plants, namely Ruacana, Omburu Sun Energy 
(Pty) Ltd (Innosun), REFITs, GreeNam and Alten Solar 
Power. NamPower then re-sells electricity to transmission 
customers like mines, Regional Electricity Distributors 
(REDs), and a number of municipalities.

KEY INDUSTRY PLAYERS

The governance structure pertaining to electricity generation, 
supply and distribution in Namibia is as follows:

Ministry of Mines and Energy – the Policy Maker 

The Ministry of Mines and Energy is, on behalf of the State, 
the policy maker of the Electricity Supply Industry (ESI) and 
determines all policies applicable to the generation, supply 
and distribution of electricity in Namibia. This includes the 
National Integrated Resource Plan, which is a 20-year 
development plan for the ESI in Namibia.

Electricity Control Board – the Regulatory Authority 

The Electricity Control Board (ECB) is the regulatory 
authority that oversees electricity supply throughout 
Namibia. The ECB was created in 2000 through the 
promulgation of the Electricity Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 
2000), which was later replaced by the Electricity Act, 
2007 (Act No. 4 of 2007). Its core mandate is to exercise 
control over the electricity supply industry, carrying primary 
responsibility for regulating the generation, transmission, 
distribution, supply, import and export of electricity. The 
ECB does this by setting tariffs and recommending the 
issuing of licences to the Minister of Mines and Energy.

The ECB’s role in the Namibian Electricity Supply Industry 
is to increase economic competitiveness and efficiency, 
improve access to electricity, increase security of supply, 
promote investment and growth, ensure sustainability, 
alleviate resource constraints and ensure appropriate 
governance.

NamPower – the National Utility 

The heart of NamPower’s business is the generation, 
transmission and trading of electricity. It does this both on 
a regional level within the Southern African Power Pool 
(SAPP), the largest multilateral energy platform on the 
continent, and on a national level in Namibia. It supplies 
bulk electricity to Regional Electricity Distributors (REDs), 
mines, farms and local authorities in Namibia, where REDs 
are not operational.

The REDs – the Electricity Distributors 

Regional Electricity Distributors (REDs) were created 
in 2005 to distribute electricity in regional areas, thus 
consolidating the Namibian electricity distribution industry. 
This Government initiative was motivated by the policy 
drivers embodied in the 1998 White Paper on Energy 
Policy. The White Paper concluded that five (5) regional 
distributors would function more effectively to control 
economies of scale, create uniformity of standards and 
tariffs, and effectively improve capacity and customer 
interaction. The scheme ultimately led to greater efficiency 
of delivery than would have been possible under a central 
body operating countrywide.

OVERVIEW OF THE 
ELECTRICITY INDUSTRY 
IN NAMIBIA
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Ms. Y.Z.N. Nambahu 
Board Chairperson

Ms. N.A. Johannes
Director

Ms. E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga
Director

Mr. E.M. Petrus
Director

Mr. E.M. Wetha 
Director

Mr. J. Shimbilinga 
Director

Mr. M. Skini
Director

Mr. F. Mbango
Ex-officio Member

Ms. H.M. Gebhardt
Director

OUR BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am delighted to 
present the Erongo RED Annual Report for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2020. This report will highlight how 
we have fared, especially with the execution of our five-
year Corporate Strategy and Business Plan 2020 – 2025, 
which was finalised in September 2019. We are proud to 
be a successful, growing business and of the important 
contributions we make to wider society. However, we are 
also cognisant of slower economic growth and further 
contraction, exacerbated by the outbreak of the COVID-19 
pandemic, which has affected not only Namibia, but the 
entire world. Thus, at a time of global uncertainty, we 
believe an important role of business is to seek solutions and 
create opportunities. By growing and sustaining a financially 
strong and responsible business over the long term, guided 
by a clear purpose, we can make a positive and significant 
impact, not only on our clients and our people, but also on 
the growth of the local, regional and national economy.

Execution of Strategy

Just as we commenced the execution of our strategy, the 
COVID-19 pandemic hit Namibia’s shores. Although, as 
a company, we were fortunate to have implemented our 
strategy at the right time, especially with the electricity 
industry undergoing changes, its execution was significantly 
impacted by the pandemic, as well as the worldwide 
economic shutdowns implemented to curb the spread 
of COVID-19. Due to economic lockdowns, Erongo RED 
was not able to achieve its target of growing electricity 
consumption in the region. Like many other corporations, 
the Board had to ensure that the company continued to 
operate sustainably, that costs were kept to a minimum while 
maintaining operations, and that disaster management plans 
were put in place.

The year 2020 was not an easy one for the company, as we 
recorded a 1.6% decrease in revenue from N$1,397,463,548 
in the previous year to N$1,375,003,303 for the year ended 
30 June 2020. In addition to lower consumption of electricity 
by our customers, the decrease in revenue can be attributed 
to the 0% tariff adjustment for 2020 and subsidisation of 
tariffs for the low-income segment of our customer base. 
However, despite the decrease in revenue, the company 
maintained a strong financial position due to an increase in 
the value of its assets.

What is increasingly clear is that, as an organisation, we 
cannot continue to rely on tariff increases to ensure our 
company maintains a healthy position. This is not sustainable 
as particularly our large customers will find alternative 
supply sources to meet their needs. On 1 September 2019, 
the revised market rules for the Electricity Supply Industry 
(ESI) were implemented, following Cabinet approval. The 
Modified Single Buyer market model brings the opportunity 
for an entity such as Erongo RED to find alternative supply 
sources to ensure we maintain tariffs that are competitive 
and sustainable for our customers. In line with the change 
in the market, during the period under review, Erongo 
RED commenced the process of determining the viability 
of pursuing various renewable energy projects. This is 
in line with the national energy policy, which focuses on 
harnessing natural resources for generation projects.

At Erongo RED, we believe that the future of the company 
lies in the continuous and dedicated efforts we exert when 
carrying out our daily activities. Thus, effective provision 
of electricity and electricity services to our customers will 
map our trajectory for the future. Our shareholders remain 
our motivation to ensure that we continue to execute 
our mandate. In light of the continued fast-changing and 
competitive landscape, it is vital that we, as a Board, 
encourage our staff to be agile, innovative and hone their 
skills to ensure the company meets its mandate.

A WORD FROM OUR 
CHAIRPERSON

Conducting Business Responsibly

Developing solutions that enhance our customers’ experience 
is an important component of the five-year Strategic Plan 
of Erongo RED. The Board is pleased with the progress 
made during the period under review. Highlights included 
our commitment towards infrastructure development, 
rural electrification, customer service and upgrading the 
ICT environment. We also strengthened our stakeholder 
engagement through the establishment of a Consumer 
Liaison Committee, which will serve as a bridge between 
Erongo RED and its stakeholders, especially residential 
customers.

I am excited by, and proud of, the work that Erongo RED 
has done during the period under review. In the first quarter 
of 2020, the Board joined the fight against the COVID-19 
pandemic by contributing N$1 million to national and 
regional efforts. The company also took a bold decision 
to implement measures to promote safety at our offices to 
protect our customers and employees alike.

I am confident that with the new Strategic Plan, Erongo 
RED is well positioned to meet the challenges of 2021 
and generate sustainable long-term growth, which should 
translate into shareholder returns in the years to come. We 
will continue to oversee the performance of all our business 
units closely, ensuring that the company executes its 
strategy with financial discipline and integrity.

Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder engagement is of utmost importance for 
Erongo RED. When trying to understand the environment 
in which we operate and entities and individuals that 
impact our business or vice versa, it can be useful to draw 
a stakeholder map to visualise the relationship between 
these factors. Stakeholder focus is particularly important in 
the context of the highly regulated nature of our industry, our 
shareholding structure, the wide range of customer profiles 
and our responsibility towards the communities we serve. 
During the period under review, Erongo RED achieved a 
customer satisfaction rating of 81%. We intend to continue 
working hard to ensure that our customers receive nothing 
less than the best service possible.

We will also continue to conduct biennial stakeholder 
satisfaction surveys, while acknowledging that in the age 
of social media, today’s stakeholder has a louder voice and 
wider reach. Therefore, we will monitor customer feedback 
and ratings on social media platforms and implement real-
time responses when necessary. The advent of technology 
has created higher customer expectations regarding 
digitalisation and ease-of-access to services. In this new 
environment, it is our goal to implement relevant and feasible 
customer-friendly technologies.

We aim to meet regulatory guidelines regarding quality-of-
supply-and-service (QOSS) to customers by improving the 
recording functions that measure the quality of electricity 
supply and by implementing reliable tools to measure 
the quality of customer service. Each stakeholder group 
requires a tailored engagement approach to foster effective 
communication and mutually beneficial relationships.

Future Outlook

Calls for rethinking the way we conduct business in the 
ever-changing competitive and modern era are growing 
increasingly louder. Companies are under constant pressure 
to keep pace with technology. The Board remains cognisant 
that advanced technology provides opportunities for 
digitisation and automation of business processes that 
improve efficiency, a recurrent theme in this year’s report. 
At the same time, we are aware that the extension of ICT 
infrastructure creates additional risks related to cybersecurity 
incidences and data leaks. Therefore, the Board notes 
that going forward, the company’s organisational strategy 
should consider that any investments in technology must be 
secure and relevant to the organisation.

Acknowledgements 

Erongo RED would not be where it is today, if it were not 
for the support of our shareholders, the line Minister at the 
Ministry of Mines and Energy, Honourable Tom Alweendo, 
and the CEO of the Electricity Control Board, Ms. Foibe 
Namene. Thank you for your unwavering support during the 
period under review. Your input, guidance and insight have 
propelled us forward in the provision of electricity within 
the Erongo Region and shone a light on best practices, 
highlighting how we can operate more efficiently in these 
uncertain times. 

Furthermore, on behalf of the Board, I wish to extend 
profound gratitude to the Executive Management team, 
under the expert leadership of our Chief Executive Officer, 
Mr. Fessor Mbango, as well as the entire Erongo RED staff, 
who have, time and time again, managed to navigate the 
turbulent waters of the current global economic climate. 
Your dedication and determination have ensured that our 
customers can keep their lights on and their businesses 
powered.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to welcome the 
new non-executive Directors to the Board. In collaboration 
with their colleagues on the Board, they are tasked with 
ensuring that the company implements its strategic 
objectives, providing sound governance to the entity, 
exercising our duties with the requisite care and skill, and 
ensuring that, as a company, we provide a much needed 
essential service to the people of the Erongo Region. I wish 
you all the best in your tenure, and sincerely hope that 
you will be able to execute your duties to the best of your 
abilities.

We are all committed to continuing to create substantial 
value for our shareholders. I look forward to reporting on 
our progress.

Sincerely,

Ms. Y.Z.N. Nambahu
Board Chairperson
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A WORD FROM OUR 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

“We have a very strong 
and dynamic team of 
individuals committed 
to ensuring that our 
strategies and plans 
are successfully 
implemented.”

The financial year ended 30 June 2020 was another 
successful one for Erongo RED, despite the challenges 
created by COVID-19 in the latter part of the reporting 
period. In line with our long-term vision to enable growth 
through innovative electricity distribution and supply to our 
communities, we continued to implement our strategies 
aimed at attaining our vision. Notwithstanding uncertainty 
regarding the pandemic, volatile economics and the 
changing electricity industry landscape, our clear focus on 
the vision and the dedication of all our employees were 
critical to delivering a strong performance. 

Financial Performance

For the period under review, revenue decreased by 
1.6% from N$1,397,463,548 in the previous year to 
N$1,375,003,303 for the year ended 30 June 2020. The 

decrease in revenue is predominantly attributable to the 
reduction in network contribution. However, the company 
managed to achieve a net profit of N$31.1 million for 
the year (2018/2019: N$43.7 million). During the period 
under review, Erongo RED invested over N$10 million in 
property, plant and equipment.  

As part of our drive to promote small businesses, we 
procured goods and services totalling N$96 million, 
of which N$53 million was spent on black economic 
empowerment (BEE) and  small and medium enterprises 
(SME). 

We are cognisant of the challenges facing us, especially 
the impact of COVID-19. We are closely monitoring all 
current and possible future risks to ensure that mitigation 
strategies are implemented to address these risks.

Our Dedicated Team

We have a very strong and dynamic team of individuals 
committed to ensuring that our strategies and plans are 
successfully implemented. Despite the impact of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, all of our employees played a crucial 
role in ensuring that we continue to distribute and supply 
safe, reliable, sustainable and accessible electricity. 

Since its inception, we have supported the Government’s 
efforts towards poverty eradication by tapping into local, 
dynamic youth to fill vacancies at Erongo RED. As a 
responsible corporate citizen, Erongo RED always strives 
to give preferential treatment to people from designated 
groups in line with the Affirmative Action (Employment) 
Act, 1998 (Act No. 29 of 1998). During the period under 
review, five (5) new employees joined the company, 
and four (4) employees were promoted. We have also 
invested extensively in the training and development of our 
employees to ensure that they are strengthened with the 
necessary knowledge and skills to contribute meaningfully 
to the achievement of the strategic objectives of the 
company. This investment demonstrates our commitment 
to support the central Government’s efforts towards 
employment creation.

Our Network

Our network is at the core of our mandate to distribute 
and supply safe, reliable, sustainable and accessible 
electricity. Over the years, Erongo RED has invested 
significantly in bulk upgrades in various towns within our 
area of jurisdiction. During the period under review, Erongo 
RED invested about N$6 million to upgrade the main MV 
cable feed between the two (2) main Swakopmund intake 
stations. The upgrade will enable all of Swakopmund to be 
fed from a single intake station, should the other not be 
available, without overloading the network. At the time of 

reporting, the project was 98% completed. We also invested 
in other network-related projects during the financial year, 
such as the 44 kV Overhead Line NamWater Booster 1 
to Rössing Mountain T-Off, street lighting in various areas, 
an Engineering Block, rural electrification, peri-urban 
electrification and load transfer from Kuisebmund Switching 
Station to Tutaleni Primary Station.

Apart from investing in network infrastructure, we are also 
responsible for ensuring that Erongo RED’s distribution 
network is upgraded and maintained to ensure a reliable 
electricity supply. In addition to this task, our Network 
Operations and Maintenance business unit oversees the 
upkeep and improvement of the company’s substations and 
equipment. With a serious focus on safety, as electricity is a 
potentially dangerous commodity, the business unit strives 
to ensure the constant safe supply of electricity. During 
the period under review, we invested in Passive Fault Line 
Indicators equipment and plan to invest in a Computerised 
Maintenance Management System (CMMS), which will 
allow for better maintenance processes across Erongo 
RED’s electricity infrastructure.

Our Stakeholders

One of the core pillars of Erongo RED’s five-year Strategic 
Plan is to enhance stakeholder collaboration. This is also 
inscribed in our core values as part of our DNA at Erongo 
RED. Therefore, we regard all our stakeholders as vital 
partners to the success of the business. We place our 
customers at the centre of our stakeholder relations, while 
extending our commitment and engagement to investors, 
shareholders, partners and suppliers. In our efforts to build 
a mutually beneficial relationship, we have established 
a Consumer Liaison Committee. The committee, which 
consists of members from various communities within our 
area of operations, serves as a formal platform for the 
exchange of ideas and concerns affecting the community 
and assists with the speedy resolution of consumer 
complaints.

We have further invested in equipment and applications to 
enhance our customer service and ensure optimal service 
delivery. During the period under review, Erongo RED’s 
customer base increased to 42,193 customers, compared 
to 41,850 customers in 2019, which represents an increase 
of 1%. As a company, we always strive to offer affordable 
rates to our customers. In support of senior citizens and low-
income groups in our community, Erongo RED is committed 
to continue offering social tariffs (subsidised tariffs) to these 
customer segments, as defined in the Social Tariff Policy. 
As of June 2020, 22% of our customer base is benefitting 
from the social tariff.

Our Future Outlook

The full impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and how 
long it will continue are still unknown. Therefore we will 
have to remain flexible and resourceful in dealing with its 
ramifications. Going forward, the way of doing business 
will change. Advances in technology, the introduction of 
new regulations and the evolving expectations of informed 
customers mean that our clients expect us to innovate 
continuously. Thus Erongo RED will continue to seek out 

new and improved ways of efficiently delivering electricity 
services to all our customers. Our five-year Strategic Plan is 
focused on growing the business organically by continuing 
to invest in projects that yield results, and embracing 
technological acquisition to improve our efficiencies. 

As a company, we continuously strive to find ways to inject 
fresh value into the market. New products and services are 
being created with consideration for developments in the ICT 
sector, led by what has been dubbed the fourth industrial 
revolution. Therefore, we are exploring ways to modify our 
business models to capitalise on upcoming changes to 
retain relevance. Accommodating evolving technologies has 
become a crucial and strategic necessity, as the changes will 
increase consumers’ choices of energy sources.

The power sector is poised to capitalise on several evolving 
technologies by expanding its product and service platforms. 
A cyber-enabled world is already upon us; artificial intelligence 
and robotics have become a reality. Technology solutions, 
such as electric cars and the internet-of-things, will also 
unlock many opportunities and produce more competition in 
the marketplace. We are cognisant that this development will 
increase competition in the industry and are working hard to 
ensure that we are prepared for these changes. During the 
year under review, Erongo RED, as the regional distributor, 
applied as a contestable customer with the ECB and is 
putting strategies in place to embrace the Modified Single 
Buyer model. One of the strategies is a feasibility study 
on renewable energy generation collaboration (e.g. solar/
rooftops) undertaken by the Network Engineering business 
unit. For this reason, Erongo RED is tracking the potential 
of data to revolutionise our industry and how real data is 
becoming a crucial factor in our boardroom discussions. 
Furthermore, embracing and investing in technology will 
remain crucial to Erongo RED’s strategy and a key strategic 
imperative for the new financial year.

Conclusion

In conclusion, I wish to thank the Minister of Mines and 
Energy, Honourable Tom Alweendo, for ensuring a conducive 
environment for our business operations. I also want to 
express gratitude and thanks to the Chief Executive Officer 
of ECB, Ms. Foibe Namene, for her support and regulatory 
framework. Our Board of Directors has been supportive and 
helpful in steering this company. Thus, I would also like to 
thank our Directors for their valuable advice and directives. 
Finally, I would like to thank our employees and customers 
around the region and beyond for their confidence in 
Erongo RED and for entrusting us with managing this vital 
commodity for them. 

Everyone at Erongo RED is fully committed to our strategy 
and targets, and we will continue to devise and implement 
strategies that will boost our efforts to deliver excellent 
service. 

Mr. F. Mbango
Chief Executive Officer
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Shareholders Agreement makes provision for the 
appointment of eight (8) non-executive Directors and an 
alternate Director for each Director. In addition, the agreement 
stipulates that the Chief Executive Officer serves as an ex-
officio member of the Board. Although the Shareholders 
Agreement does not provide for Directors’ terms of office, 
the Board Charter makes provision for a three-year term 
in accordance with good corporate governance principles. 
Directors are eligible for re-appointment at the expiration of 
that term, but a member may not hold a Board of Directors 
office for more than two (2) consecutive terms.

Erongo RED Directors for the period 01 July 2019 – 30 June 2020

Directors as at 30 June 2020 Nationality Appointment Resignation

Substantive Directors

Y.Z.N. Nambahu (Chairperson, Non-executive) Namibian 01/06/2019 - 31/05/2022

E.M. Wetha (Vice Chairperson, Non-executive) Namibian 12/06/2012 - 12/06/2015 31/07/2020

M. Skini (Board Member, Non-executive) Namibian 03/01/2013 - 03/01/2016
31/07/2020

N.A. Johannes (Board Member, Non-executive) Namibian 02/04/2019

J. Shimbilinga (Board Member, Non-executive) Namibian 01/04/2019

H.M. Gebhardt (Board Member, Non-executive) Namibian 27/09/2018

N. /Goagoses (Board Member, Non-executive) Namibian 01/04/2019 14/05/2020

E.M. Petrus (Board Member, Non-executive) Namibian 01/04/2019

I.E. Simeon-Kurtz Namibian 31/07/2020

F. Mbango (CEO, Ex-officio Member) Namibian 01/05/2017

E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga (Board Member, 
Non-executive) Namibian 28/05/2020

Erongo RED Directors for the period 01 July 2019 – 30 June 2020

Directors as at 30 June 2020 Nationality Appointment Resignation

Alternate Directors

E.M. Britz  (Alternate to Y.Z.N. Nambahu) Namibian 01/06/2019 - 31/05/2022

R. Hoabes (Alternate to E.M. Wetha) Namibian 08/08/2016 31/07/2020

H.M.R. Kruger (Alternate to M. Skini) Namibian 31/07/2020

J.K. Neporo (Alternate to N.A. Johannes) Namibian 02/04/2019

C. Forbes (Alternate to J. Shimbilinga) Namibian 02/04/2019

J.T. Kahure (Alternate to H.M. Gebhardt) Namibian 27/09/2018

P.D. Rooi (Alternate to to E.M. Petrus) Namibian 01/06/2019

E.C. Basson 
(Alternate to E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga) Namibian 28/05/2020

R.S. Ochs (Alternate to M. Skini) Namibian 07/12/2015 31/07/2020

L.G. Goraseb (Alternate to I.E. Simeon-Kurtz) Namibian 31/07/2020

Resignations

J. Haipinge (Alternate to H.M. Gebhardt) Namibian 16/11/2015 26/09/2019

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Erongo RED Board of Directors is further subdivided 
into various sub-committees, responsible for assisting the 
Board in carrying out its functions by ensuring adequate 
governance, compliance, policy and strategic direction 
setting for the company.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

With regards to External Audit, the Committee’s role is 
to review the external auditor’s proposed audit scope 
and approach to ensure that no unjustified restrictions or 
limitations have been placed on the scope of the audit, as 
well as to review the performance of the external auditors 
by evaluating the independence and effectiveness of the 
external auditors. The Committee is also responsible for 
considering and making recommendations to the Board on 
the appointment and retention of the external auditors. 

In terms of Internal Audit, the Committee ensures that, at 
least once a year, the internal audit function conducts a 
formal documented review of the design, implementation 
and effectiveness of the risk register by conducting suitable 
testing and reporting back to the Committee. The Audit and 
Risk Management Committee has a further obligation to 
evaluate the nature and extent of the formal documented 
review of internal financial controls to be performed by the 
internal auditor on behalf of the Board every year. 

In addition, any weaknesses in financial control, whether 
due to design, implementation or execution, that are 
considered material (individually or in combination with 
other weaknesses) and that resulted in actual material 
financial loss, fraud or material errors, are reported to the 
Board and the stakeholders by the Committee.

The members of the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
are:

1. N. /Goagoses (Chairperson) – resigned 14 May 2020
2. E.M. Petrus (Chairperson)
3. E.M. Wetha (Member) 
4. J. Shimbilinga (Member) 
5. F. Mbango (Chief Executive Officer)
6. F. Vries (Executive Manager Finance & Administration)
7. C. Tjizo (Executive Manager Supply Business)
8. M. Maartens (Manager Internal Audit)

The Committee sat a total of five (5) times in the year under 
review. Attendance is highlighted on the following page.
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                                                                Ordinary Meetings

Member 26/07/2019 26/09/2019 19/03/2020 01/06/2020

N. /Goagoses    Resigned 
(14/05/2020)

E.M. Wetha    

E.M. Petrus    

J. Shimbilinga    

F. Mbango Apology   

           Special Meeting

25/02/2020





Apology





Remuneration and Nomination Committee

The role of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, 
among other roles, is to determine the company’s 
remuneration policy, taking into account all factors, which 
the Committee may deem necessary. The objective of 
such a policy is to ensure that all employees, including 
Management as well as the Directors of the company, 
are provided with appropriate incentives to encourage 
enhanced performance and are, in a fair and responsible 
manner, rewarded for their individual contributions to the 
success of the company. The Committee is also responsible 
for the determination of targets for any performance-related 
pay schemes operated by the company, while determining 
the policy for and scope of service agreements, termination 

payments and compensation commitments for the Chief 
Executive Officer, Executive and senior Managers.

The members of the Remuneration and Nomination 
Committee are:

1. M. Skini (Chairperson)
2. N.A. Johannes (Member)
3. H.M. Gebhardt (Member)
4. F. Mbango (Chief Executive Officer)
5. F. Vries (Executive Manager Finance & Administration)
6. B. Nangolo (Senior Manager Human Capital)

For the year under review, the Committee held a total of five 
(5) meetings. Attendance is highlighted below.

                                                                Ordinary Meetings

Member 25/07/2019 17/09/2019 18/03/2020 20/05/2020

M. Skini    

N.A. Johannes    

H.M. Gebhardt    

F. Mbango Apology   

 

            Special Meeting

19/06/2020









Stakeholder Engagement Committee

The Stakeholder Engagement Committee is responsible 
for the development of a stakeholder engagement plan, 
the provision of a framework for providing feedback to 
shareholders and the creation of a platform for meaningful 
dialogue with and input from identified stakeholders. 
With stakeholder and customer satisfaction at the core of 
Erongo RED’s ethos, the Committee’s role also includes 
engagement with the local, regional and central government 
in dealing with identified stakeholder issues. 

The members of the Stakeholder Engagement Committee 
are:

1. H.M. Gebhardt (Chairperson)
2. N. Johannes (Member)
3. E.M. Petrus (Member) 
4. F. Mbango (Chief Executive Officer)
5. F. Vries (Executive Manager Finance & Administration)
6. C. Tjizo (Executive Manager Supply Business)
7. B. Nangombe (Marketing & Corporate Communications 

Specialist)

The Committee held two (2) meetings during the year under 
review. Attendance is highlighted on the next page.

Stakeholder Engagement Committee Meeting Attendance

                                                                                                                     Ordinary Meetings

Member 18/09/2019 17/03/2020

H.M. Gebhardt  

N.A. Johannes  

E.M. Petrus  

F. Mbango  

BOARD TRAINING AND INDUCTION

Directors are inducted, mentored and trained as part of 
their three-phase training development.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, a face-to-face induction 
could not take place during the year under review. However, 
in order to ensure that Directors are properly capacitated 
to attend and participate in Board meetings, an induction 
manual was delivered to the Directors personally, containing 
all the relevant company information and related policies to 
ensure they could familiarise themselves with their fiduciary 
duties and acquire an overview of the company as a whole.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Directors and employees of Erongo RED are required to 
avoid confliction between their personal interests and 
the interests of Erongo RED, either directly or indirectly. 
Therefore, full disclosure of any activities that have or may 
have potential to result in a conflict of interest is required. 
This is done annually and for every meeting attended in 
respect of Directors.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board evaluation for the year under review was 
completed in March 2020 and only presented at the 
shareholders’ Annual General Meeting on 31 July 2020 due 
to various delays. The aim of the evaluation is to assess the 
performance and effectiveness of the Board, its Committees, 
individual Directors, the Chief Executive Officer and the 
Company Secretary. The outcome report of the evaluation 
indicated that the Board achieved a performance rating of 
81%, which was a very good score.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting for the year under review, 
which had to be postponed due to the COVID-19 pandemic, 
was held on 31 July 2020. Among other transactions, the 
shareholders received, considered and approved the 
Annual Financial Statements of the company as approved 
by the Board. An information pack was provided to the 
shareholders in preparation for the Annual General Meeting 
in the manner prescribed by law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for the company’s 
statutory compliance as per the enabling legislation, for 
administration of the Board’s functions and for providing 
governance oversight and support to the Board and Erongo 
RED as a whole. Ms. Kaulikalelwa Nghishitende has held 
this position since 2 January 2019.  

   Audit and Risk Management Committee Meeting Attendance

   Remuneration and Nomination Committee Meeting Attendance
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Ordinary Project Board Meetings

Member 14/08/2019 18/10/2019 17/04/2020

Y.Z.N. Nambahu   

E.M. Wetha   

M. Skini   

N. /Goagoses   

N.A. Johannes   

H.M. Gebhardt   

E.M. Petrus   

J. Shimbilinga   

F. Mbango   

Special Board Meetings

Member 12/07/2019 27/09/2019 21/02/2020 27/03/2020 12/06/2020

Y.Z.N. Nambahu Apology    

E.M. Wetha     

M. Skini     

N. /Goagoses     Resigned 
14/05/2020

N.A. Johannes     

H.M. Gebhardt     

E.M. Petrus   Apology Apology 

J. Shimbilinga     

F. Mbango Apology    

E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga 

Ordinary Board Meetings

Member 14/08/2019 18/10/2019 25/11/2019 17/04/2020 26/06/2020

Y.Z.N. Nambahu     

E.M. Wetha     

M. Skini     

N. /Goagoses     Resigned 
14/05/2020

N.A. Johannes     

H.M. Gebhardt     

E.M. Petrus  Apology   

J. Shimbilinga     

F. Mbango     

E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga 

BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETING ATTENDANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020
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The Business Strategy and Performance Management division bears the responsibility of driving 
the overall business strategy, while managing and ensuring business objectives are executed and 
achieved within the scope of the plan. The division also monitors business performance against set 
targets and actual results achieved, including the management of business processes and change 
management within Erongo RED.

STRATEGIC LANDSCAPE

The 2019/2020 financial year focused on the 
implementation of Erongo RED’s new five-year 
Strategic Plan, effective from July 2019 to 2024. The 
new strategy was developed with consideration for the 
dynamic nature of the global power industry, including 
the considered ESI Modified Single Buyer market 
structure. The strategy was further developed to make 
it relevant to the goals and objectives of Namibia’s 
national development plans. The national integration 
plan outlined that Namibia should aim to diversify its 
energy sources for both electricity generation and 
renewable energy. The development of the Modified 
Single Buyer model has created an opportunity 
for contestants other than NamPower to generate 
electricity. 

During the year under review, Erongo RED, as the 
regional electricity distributor, applied as a contestable 
customer with the ECB and put strategies in place to 
embrace the Modified Single Buyer model. One of 
the strategies was a feasibility study on renewable 
energy generation collaboration (e.g. solar/rooftops) 
undertaken by the Network Engineering business 
unit. Furthermore, Erongo RED is currently  observing 
the potential of data to revolutionise Erongo RED 
functions behind the scenes (at a strategic level), and 
the possibility of real data becoming a crucial factor 
in our boardroom discussions. The approval of the 
Management Information System, coupled with the 
consideration of the  enterprise resource programme 
(ERP) and the promotion of research and development, 
will in future gain traction to enable Erongo RED to 
become an insightful data analysis organisation. In 
addition, it will guide the amplification of our innovation 
and our ability to embrace the Modified Single Buyer 
model in order to remain relevant as a preferred 
regional distributor. 

STRATEGY EXECUTION

During the year under review, the execution of Erongo 
RED’s business strategy was challenged by the 
declaration of the COVID-19 pandemic, the resultant 
lockdown measures, and demanding economic 

conditions. Due to a pre-existing depressed economic 
situation, a 0% increase in real growth was recorded, 
against the 2% target for the reporting year. In order to 
navigate the challenges, Erongo RED had to enhance 
its customer experience by developing or improving 
services that respond to stakeholders’ needs, and by 
establishing new capabilities and activities in key areas, 
such as information analytics, online customer service 
applications and customer quality management. 

During the year under review, a Business Process 
Committee was appointed to bolster the review of 
Erongo RED’s business process in support of an 
effective operational and customer-delivery model. The 
company achieved 29% of reviewed and documented 
business processes against the target of 20% for the 
year under review. The company continued to review 
the draft of its stakeholder engagement plan and put 
in place an action plan to mitigate issues raised during 
the recent customer survey conducted during the 
2018/2019 financial year. With social media having a 
strategic impact on public perception of the company, 
Erongo RED kept a close eye on the tonality level 
for the financial year. The 12-month tonality level for 
Erongo RED was 79%, against the set target of 70% 
for the reporting year, as recorded by the Meltwater 
media monitoring platform. Although a positive rating 
was observed, negative perceptions about high tariffs 
and frequent power outages seemed to prevail, which 
Erongo RED will monitor closely going forward.

Given the global developments of COVID-19 and the 
declaration of a pandemic, business continuity was a 
major strategic imperative during the reporting year. 
Through our COVID-19 task team and the establishment 
of a business continuity report, Erongo RED was able 
to draw from dry reports, Government announcements, 
general statistics and, most importantly, conversations 
with our employees, to create a favourable picture 
of the company’s position and where it is headed. 
Unfortunately, most of the trends were built on lessons 
learned, many of which were slowly learned, yet 
linkages were eventually made. 

www.erongored.com
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Erongo RED leadership assumed a proactive role in 
managing operations internally under the complex 
lockdown measures, while keeping an eye on changes and 
disruptions in the Namibian and global markets. Despite 
unstable Internet connectivity in the coastal region, our 
ICT division had to ensure that 50% of our personnel had a 
Virtual Private Network to enable working from home. Our 
Call Centre division showed great agility in adapting to the 
challenges brought on by COVID-19 and managed to put 
in place contingencies that ensured service delivery to our 
customers at all times. 

Guided by its business continuity plan, Erongo RED carefully 
considered initiatives and creative steps to ensure that the 
company remains relevant to customers. The introduction 
of the interest write-off for the month of April 2020, the debt 
management plan and the annuity provided to customers 
were some of the key strategies put in place. The decision 
to refrain from cutting off electricity of customers who had 
defaulted on payments impacted Erongo RED’s bottom 
line. This measure, coupled with the 0% tariff increase for 
the year despite rising electricity costs, cannot be sustained 
going forward. 

The structural impact of the pandemic was complex, 
forcing Erongo RED to think not only of the bottom line 
and sustainability of our organisation, but to also take a 
proactive role in ensuring the wellness of our employees and 
stakeholders. The Management team needed to become 
decisive, continuously reflecting on which measures 
worked and which did not. Therefore, going forward, the 
Culture Committee, appointed during the year under review, 
will play a more engaging and interactive role in creating 
awareness of the type of culture envisaged for Erongo RED.

TALENT OUTLOOK – AMPLIFYING INNOVATION

The year under review saw Erongo RED reconsider 
leadership styles and embrace the changes facing the 
electricity industry. A more engaging type of leadership was 
promoted to ensure that the opinions and viewpoints of 
employees are taken into account. Working virtually on open 
platforms promoted an environment of not only looking at 
the numbers and listening to experts, but also encouraging 
trust in sources of information placed with employees. 
In the year under review, more than 50% of employees 
participated in virtual training and development sessions to 
support effective adjustment to current ICT demands. 

Going forward, leadership development, the upgrade of 
relevant employee skills and the promotion of a style of 
leadership that will ensure Erongo RED’s adaptability 
to the pandemic and its future implications, coupled with 
advancing technology and the Modified Single Buyer 
model, are crucial. A strong leadership strategy will be 
encouraged, transparent in communication, and focused 
on employee wellness, as well as employee engagement in 
evidence-based decision making and adapting technology 
at a fast pace. Our leadership will be enabled to change 
course based on information, while remaining steady and 
innovative, yet adaptable in skills, in the next financial year. 
Embracing and investing in technology will remain a key 
strategic imperative for the new financial year.

Growth vs target of 2% due to 
depressed economy and COVID-19

Tariff increase 

Customer growth vs 
target of 0.6%

Execution of CAPEX projects 
listed in Master Plan vs target 
of 70%

Execution of Maintenance Plan 
vs target of 90%

Audit findings addressed vs 
target of 70%

Board satisfaction with Board 
services vs target of 80%

Decrease in overall electricity sales 
volumes 

Energy losses vs target of 8% and 
industry standard of 9%

0% 

0% 

1.7% 

80% 

86% 

50% 

81% 

2% 

6% 

The biggest immediate impact of the pandemic was felt in 
our supply chain, which was affected not only by the closing 
of borders, but also by the total lockdown of companies 
globally. This had a huge influence on the completion of 
Erongo RED’s strategic capital projects under the Network 
Engineering business unit. Of the 120 dwellings targeted 
under the rural and peri-urban electrification project, only 41 
dwellings were electrified in the year under review. 

The implementation of the Network Master Plan, a key 
performance objective for the year under review, was 
presented and approved by the Board. Substantial financial 
resources are usually required for the optimal implementation 
of the Master Plan. During the year under review, two (2) 
capital projects were listed under the Master Plan, namely 
the Tamarisk and Welwitschia MV cable for load transfer and 
security of supply between Arandis and Swakopmund plots. 
Both projects were successfully completed. The execution 
of Erongo RED’s maintenance plan was limited to critical, 
unforeseen and essential customer requests, resulting in 
our network operations achieving 86% execution versus the 
target of 90% for the financial year. 

Despite non-performance in some key strategic objectives, 
Erongo RED realised a growth of 1.7% in the number of 
customers versus the targeted 0.6% increase for 2019/2020. 
Although slight growth was experienced, the impact of 
COVID-19 will be felt going forward, considering that only 
three (3) months were impacted during the 2019/2020 
financial year. 

Erongo RED continued to ensure good corporate governance 
and compliance during the reporting period. In addition, 
regular internal audit checks were conducted by auditing 
firm Ernst & Young, in accordance with pre-approved audit 
plans. Erongo RED managed to address 50% of the audit 
findings out of the set target of 70%, thus mitigating about 
71% of the findings. Erongo RED also measured the Board’s 
satisfaction with related Board services, with the acceptable 
level of satisfaction set at 80%. For the year under review, 
Erongo RED achieved a satisfaction level of 81% as rated 
by the Board of Directors. 

On the macro level, Erongo RED did not meet budgeted 
figures for electricity sales for the period under review. This 
was not a result of employee non-performance, but rather 
due to factors driven by conditions in the market. In terms 
of overall performance, the company fared well in some 
aspects, and not so well in others, achieving a rating of 3.14 
on the Erongo RED scorecard for the period under review, 
against a possible score of 5.

REVENUE, SALES VOLUMES AND ENERGY LOSSES 

In the year under review, Erongo RED revenue decreased 
by about 1.6%, settling at N$1.375 billion, compared to 
N$1.397 billion in the previous year. This was attributed 
to the COVID-19 lockdown measures, which resulted in 
a decline in the consumption of electricity in the Erongo 
Region.  

Furthermore, the prevailing market conditions and economic 
downturn saw the temporary closure of some of Erongo 
RED’s large power users, which impacted Erongo RED 

revenue. Overall electricity sales volumes declined by 2%. 
Energy losses of 6% were incurred compared to a presumed 
target of 8%, which is highly commendable in relation to 
previous years and the industry standards set at 9%. The 
company will continue to focus on extending the meter 
sweep audit in Area 3, including strategies to reduce forced 
outages in this area. The implementation of energy balancing 
and exploring smart metering options increased our billing 
efficiency and will continue to be a key strategic initiative for 
the new financial year.

MANAGING RISK

The electricity industry is a high-risk industry. Consequently, 
the company continuously identifies, assesses, mitigates 
and prioritises its risk profile in line with the risk appetite 
sanctioned by the Board. The Modified Single Buyer 
(MSB) model presents both an opportunity and a high 
risk for Erongo RED. With the application to become a 
contestable customer, Erongo RED will be able to source 
about 30% of its energy requirement from independent 
power producers of choice. This provides an opportunity 
for Erongo RED to source the flow of investment into the 
electricity infrastructure within our region. Yet it also poses 
a major risk, as Erongo RED bulk revenue is realised in our 
bulk customers, who will now also be able to source 30% 
of their electricity elsewhere. While paying attention to the 
risks identified in terms of the MSB model, the risk register 
and progress on mitigating and controlling the possible 
effects of these risks is reported to the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee on a quarterly basis. The current 
focus is on protecting employees, understanding the risk for 
business sustainability, specifically the introduction of the 
MSB model, and managing the supply chain disruptions 
caused by the efforts to contain the spread of COVID-19.

Cost savings are required for the company to remain 
sustainable during the prevailing economic downturn, 
considering the limited financing options available, as well 
as a strategy for managing COVID-19 related business 
risk. Cash flow and consumption patterns are currently 
being monitored frequently, with particular focus on the risk 
associated with the MSB model.

DEEPENING ORGANISATIONAL AWARENESS AND 
EXCELLENCE

The electricity industry, in fact, the entire world, has 
witnessed how COVID-19 has shaken our systems, 
institutions and infrastructures, which in turn challenged 
leaders in different sectors, including the electricity industry. 

For Erongo RED, the COVID-19 pandemic gave impetus 
to reimagine the future and adapt not only to current 
circumstances, but also to the next future of work. Like 
so many organisations, Erongo RED was forced to make 
rapid choices to ensure continued relevance in a world 
characterised by uncertainty. Our way of working changed 
from face-to-face meetings and interactions in a brick-and-
mortar working environment, to virtual meetings online and 
a home-based working environment in the short space 
of just two (2) weeks into the lockdown. A month into the 
lockdown, signing of most documents at Erongo RED 
became electronic.
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FINANCE & 
ADMINISTRATION

The Finance and Administration business unit is responsible for financial administration 
and reporting systems, stores and procurement, financial risk management, fleet control 
and asset administration, financing and loan administration, as well as working capital 
management. These functions are carried out by the Financial Administration, Credit Control 
& Risk Management, and Supply Chain Management departments.

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the company achieved a 
net profit of N$31.1 million (2018/2019: N$43.7 million).

Total revenue decreased by 1.6% from N$1,397,463,548 in 
the previous year to N$1,375,003,303 for the year ended 
30 June 2020. The decrease in revenue is predominantly 
attributable to the reduction in network contribution, as a result 
of the Namport connection project amounting to N$24 million, 
which was completed and invoiced in 2018/2019. The top line 
revenues include non-cash revenue relating to donated assets 
of N$11.6 million for 2019/2020 and N$10.4 million for the year 
2018/2019.

Electricity sales increased by 0.94%, despite a 3% decline in 
electricity consumption between March 2020 and June 2020, 
after the announcement of the COVID-19 lockdown. The 

increase is due to the 0% tariff adjustment for the 2020 financial 
year, compared to the 2019 financial year end. Primary 
energy costs decreased by 4% as a result of the NamPower 
tariff decrease of 2.5% and migration to single season tariff 
introduced by NamPower during the 2020 financial year.

The company recorded gross profits of N$299 million, which 
is an increase of 1.4% compared to the previous financial 
year (2018/2019: N$295 million). The increase is mainly 
attributable to the higher percentage decrease in cost of sales 
in comparison to the percentage increase in sales. 

The operating profit for the year before net finance costs was 
N$68 million (2018/2019: N$94 million). Revenue and profit 
margins continue to be under pressure due to the 0% tariff 
adjustment for 2020, subsidisation of some customer groups, 
inflationary increases in general operating costs and the 
adverse impact of COVID-19.

NEW INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING 
STANDARDS

The company adopted International Financial Reporting 
Standard (IFRS) 16 using the modified retrospective 
method of adoption, with the date of initial application being 
1 July 2019. Under this method, the standard is applied 
retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying 
the standard recognised at the date of initial application. The 
total right-of-use assets (ROU) stood at N$15.3 million, with 
lease liabilities at N$11.9 million for the period under review.

SALES AND REVENUE

The company revenue for the year was N$1.375 billion, 
which represents a 1.6% decrease compared to revenue 
of N$1.397 billion in the previous year. Included in 
revenue are donated assets of N$11.57 million for 2020 
(2018/2019: N$10.35 million) received from developers and 
municipalities. Emphasis is however placed on the fact that 
the donated assets are non-cash transactions and thus do 
not involve cash inflow to the company. The sale of electricity 
for the year of N$1.350 billion represents an increase of 
0.94% compared to the previous year (2018/2019: N$1.338 
billion). The minor increase in revenue is due to the 0% 
tariff adjustment for the year under review and the adverse 
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic during the lockdown 
period from March 2020 to 30 June 2020.

PRIMARY ELECTRICITY COSTS 

Cost of sales for the year amounted to N$1.076 billion 
(2018/2019: N$1.103 billion), representing a 2.41% increase. 
The primary energy costs decreased by 4% from N$894 
million in the previous year to N$856 million in the current 
year. The 4% decrease in primary costs is mainly driven by 
the -2.5% NamPower tariff adjustment, benefits of migrating 
to single season tariff introduced by NamPower during the 
2020 financial year, as well as the impact of the COVID-19 
pandemic during the lockdown period from March 2020 to 30 
June 2020.

COST MANAGEMENT

The company incurred operating costs of N$234 million 
in 2019/2020, compared to N$221 million in 2018/2019, 
representing a 5.8% increase. This increase is mainly due to 
inflationary increases passed on by suppliers during the year 
under review. The company has taken a number of measures 
to monitor and minimise the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, 
such as safety and health measures for employees, and 
securing the supply of materials essential for our operations. 
An amount of N$707,000 (2018/2019: N$ Nil) was spent on 
COVID-19 related expenditure during the current financial 
year.

Operating costs continue to be a focal area, which will require 
continuous scrutiny and discipline to ensure sustained 
benefits going forward.

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

The company applies internal policies and procedures to 
manage and monitor customer accounts as well as related 
customer debt. The company has a debt management 
strategy in place, aimed at recovering debt from continuously 
defaulting customers. This arrangement allows customers 
to convert from post-paid to pre-paid electricity services. A 
portion of the pre-paid electricity purchased is allocated to 
the outstanding debt.

At year end, trade and other receivables stood at N$221 
million, representing a 23% decrease from the previous 
year. The main contributing factor for the decrease is the 
collection of VAT. VAT decreased significantly from N$47.8 
million in 2018/2019 to N$2.6 million in 2019/2020. The 
balance of trade and other receivables is stated after taking 
into account the allowance for expected credit losses as 
guided by IFRS 9.

The company continues to closely monitor the impact of 
the COVID-19 outbreak and has put in place business 
continuity strategies to ensure sustainability of the company. 
Measures put in place include the following:

• Continuous monitoring and assessment of key 
customers’ consumption patterns;

• Migration of customers with overdue accounts to the 
debt management system for liquidating their debts;

• Regular monthly suspension for overdue accounts 
without arrangements in place;

• Monitoring cash flows, including collections from 
debtors;

• Investment of excess funds and making use of initiated 
stimulus packages applicable to the company;

• Containing costs to minimise working capital 
requirements; and

• Engaging financiers for available options under current 
financing agreements.

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS 

The company has a standard and structured approach to 
risk management to ensure that we are able to execute our 
strategy effectively and operate efficiently as a business 
with minimum disruption and enhanced value creation. All 
business units are responsible for identifying and reporting 
risks and response plans every quarter. Risks and respective 
mitigating controls are continually monitored and reviewed. 
Risks are regularly shared with the relevant members of 
the Executive Management Committee (EXCO) for review. 
The Board is ultimately responsible for the governance of 
risks and opportunities in Erongo RED and determines how 
these should be managed through company policies and 
frameworks.

The responsibility to implement and execute effective risk 
management has been delegated to EXCO in order to 
support the organisation in achieving its strategic objectives. 
EXCO and the Audit and Risk Management Committee 
regularly review the key risks and mitigating plans, and 
continuously assess the risk management process for 
potential areas of improvement. 

Financial Performance
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ASSESSMENT OF RISK 

The identification of emerging risks is becoming increasingly 
important, as this sensitises management to possible future 
risks and uncertainties which could impact the organisation. 
These emerging risks are tracked and reported on a 
quarterly basis.

A significant risk and opportunity that impacted the 
company’s strategy and operations was the implementation 
of the Modified Single Buyer model, which increased 
customer choice and competition. The objective of this 
regulatory change is to create a self-sufficient country. The 
market change has brought about uncertainties, threats and 
opportunities in the energy market.

IMPACT OF THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC ON RISK

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic had a negative 
impact on some of our key customers, and therefore 
affected revenue collection. The pandemic also caused a 
disruption in some business processes.

A state of emergency was declared, which resulted in 
national and regional lockdowns. The lockdowns lead to 
the temporary closure of non-essential businesses from 27 
March to 17 September 2020 in order to control the spread 
of the coronavirus. Even though COVID-19 put strain on 
the organisation’s cash resources, the organisation was 
not significantly affected, as the top 30 customers were not 
significantly impacted by the state of emergency.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board oversees the management of risks and 
opportunities at Erongo RED. The Audit and Risk 
Management Committee assists the Board in carrying 
out its risk management responsibilities. Business units, 
through risk champions, are responsible for identifying and 
managing all risks allocated to them.

All risks, including emerging risks, are reported on a 
quarterly basis at Executive and Board level through the 
Audit and Risk Management Committee. The risks are 
tracked and information maintained through a company 
risk register. Risk management forms part of the company’s 
strategic objectives, adding value through risk optimisation, 
by identifying risks and opportunities. Our risk management 
process has not changed significantly in the past year.

FINANCIAL POSITION

During the reporting period, the company’s financial position 
strengthened as total assets increased to N$2.043 billion 
(2018/2019: N$1.999 billion). The value of property, plant 
and equipment decreased by N$29.8 million, from N$1.094 
billion in 2018/2019 to N$1.064 billion in 2019/2020. The 
decrease is attributable to the reclassification of leased 
properties pursuant to IFRS 16 to right-of-use assets (ROU) 
and significant scale down in the company’s CAPEX budget, 
given the limited resources. The company obtained a loan 
of N$150 million from the Development Bank of Namibia 
(DBN) on 30 June 2018. The amount of the loan has been 
fully drawn down. Repayment of the loan will commence in 

November 2020. No new loans were taken out in the year 
under review.

CASH FLOW

During the reporting period, cash generated by operations 
increased to N$133 million, from N$71 million in 2018/2019. Net 
cash flow from investing activities increased to N$111 million, 
from N$71 million in the previous year. The increase is attributed 
to the investment of VAT and tax refunds received as part of the 
Government stimulus package aimed at improving cash flows of 
companies during the COVID-19 pandemic lockdown periods.

Net cash flow from financing activities decreased due to the 
decreased loan drawn-down amount in the current year, 
in comparison to the previous year. No new loans were 
initiated during 2019/2020.

FUNDING

A loan of N$150 million, earmarked for the Swakopmund 
bulk upgrade, was concluded with DBN in June 2018. As 
at 30 June 2020, the facility was fully drawn down. No new 
loans were initiated during the financial year ending on 30 
June 2020.

The company negotiated overdraft facilities of up to N$55 
million, of which N$16.7 million was utilised as at 30 June 2020.

CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 

The company invested N$16 million in property, plant and 
equipment during 2019/2020, compared to N$60 million 
during 2018/2019, mainly to fund capital projects. Included 
in property, plant and equipment are donated assets worth 
N$12.8 million. 

PREFERENTIAL PROCUREMENT

For the period under review, purchase orders to suppliers 
for goods and services totalled N$96 million, of which N$53 
million was spent on black economic empowerment (BEE) 
and BEE Small and Medium Enterprise (SME) development. 

Preferential Procurement 2019/2020

NETWORK 
ENGINEERING
The Network Engineering business unit is responsible for project initiation and implementation, 
with a specific focus on electrical planning and design. It also manages all Information and 
Communications Technology (ICT) activities of the company. The business unit rigorously evaluates 
the feasibility and practicality of every project that Erongo RED plans to undertake, while taking 
into account the standards and goals set by the Board along with Executive Management, at the 
beginning of every financial year. With a report-back to the Board every quarter, keen attention to 
detail is maintained to ensure approved projects stay within budget and are completed within the 
stipulated time frame.

INVESTING IN INFRASTRUCTURE

The year under review saw the Erongo RED Board approve  
the expansion of existing projects, as well as new projects, 
with a combined value of N$56 million, of which N$17.9 
million was for outstanding commitments and N$38.6 million 
for new projects. The projects are aligned with the business 
unit’s scorecard, which includes system security, rural and 
peri-urban electrification, and ICT hardware upgrades. In 
terms of bulk upgrades, Erongo RED is still in the planning 
stage of upgrading the Ruby intake station from 5 MVA to 
10 MVA, and applied to upgrade Karibib from 5 MVA to 10 
MVA.

PROJECTS

Daily operations were hard hit during the first lockdown, 
which included a total lockdown of the Erongo Region. This 
delayed the execution of critical projects, of which some 
had to be deferred to the next financial year. 

Some of the projects executed during the reporting period 
include: 

1. Upgrade Power Supply between Tamarisk Intake 
and Welwitschia Primary Station
The purpose of the project was to strengthen the main 
MV cable backbone feeding between the two (2) main 
Swakopmund intake stations. This allows for the whole 
of Swakopmund to be fed from a single intake station, 
should the other not be available, without overloading 
the network. At the time of reporting, the project was 
98% completed. Upon completion, this project will cost 
about N$6 million.

2. Phase 3: 44 kV Overhead Line NamWater Booster 1 
to Rössing Mountain T-Off
The purpose of this project was to replace the outdated 
overhead line (OHL), upgrade the OHL to accommodate 
the future 33 kV voltage level, and feed the excess 
deemed energy from the Arandis PV plant further down 
the line, with fewer losses and larger loads. The project 

is still in progress and is estimated to cost over N$6.5 
million once completed.

3. Street Lighting 
Together with our stakeholders, localities with inadequate 
street lighting were identified in Henties Bay, Arandis 
and Omaruru. This project was completed.

4. Swakopmund Customer Service Centre
Network Engineering was tasked with investigating 
the design and providing costing for a new customer 
service centre on erf 4870, Ratoka Kandanga Street, 
Swakopmund. The purpose of this project is to address 
challenges resulting from inadequate space at the 
Swakopmund office, which has hindered the company 
from efficiently executing its mandate. For the period 
under review, the focus was mainly on the design of 
the building.

5. Engineering Block
With the growing number of engineering staff, adequate 
space for the Research and Development (R&D) 
Centre is urgently needed. For the period under review, 
the company resolved to explore and appoint an 
engineering team to assist with the design and costing 
of an engineering building. The R&D Centre will aim to 
improve the current system and develop innovations that 
will improve operations and enhance competitiveness.

6. Rural Electrification
Erongo RED is committed to supporting the Namibian 
Government in its drive to bring electricity to the 
rural areas of the country. The main purpose of rural 
electrification is to expand the electricity supply 
infrastructure to rural areas to improve the socio-
economic conditions of Namibian citizens and to create 
the necessary incentives for economic development 
in the targeted areas. For the period under review, 
Tatamutsi and //Goagomes settlement areas were 
identified as beneficiaries of the rural electrification 
project. The project is 80% completed and is estimated 
to cost over N$3 million once completed.

18% BEE                                   

02% BEE/SME

05% General

04% International

34% National

01% Regional

34% SME

ERONGO RED ANNUAL REPORT 2020 ERONGO RED ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3534



7. Peri-urban Electrification
The Board approved N$2 million for peri-urban 
electrification during the current financial year. Under 
this project, 50 dwellings in Hakahana in Omaruru, 60 
dwellings in Usakos, and 92 dwellings for the Walvis 
Bay Shack Dwellers Federation were identified for 
electrification. 

8. Load Transfer from Kuisebmund Switching Station 
to Tutaleni Primary Station
Network Engineering, through its load flow studies of 
Walvis Bay Town, established that the Kuisebmund 
Primary Station is 85% loaded, which goes against 
design parameters and drastically reduces the life span 
of equipment. Thus, the main purpose of this project 
is to decongest the capacity at Kuisebmund Primary 
Station (PS), which is nearing its load capacity, by 
removing some of the loads and connecting them to 
the new Tutaleni Primary Station (PS).

RENEWABLE ENERGY

Erongo RED has contributed greatly to Government’s 
objectives to diversify the country’s energy mix and 
strengthen local generation capacity to reduce dependency 
on electricity imports and maximise uptake of renewable 
energies in the country’s energy mix. 

Erongo RED pioneered the era of utility connected 
distributed generation (DG) in Namibia by installing and 
commissioning a 220 kW wind generator in 2005. Erongo 
RED also boosted a 3 MW AC Solar Photovoltaic (PV) 
Plant developed by an Independent Power Producer (IPP) 
through a Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) in 2016. 
Furthermore, Erongo RED pioneered the era of consumer-
side DG by introducing a feed-in tariff (FiT) programme in 
2010 that allowed consumers to have on-site generations 
for self-generation and grid exports for cash compensations. 
The first consumer-side DG was a 50 kW Solar PV rooftop 
system connected at Farm Otjompaue in 2011. Erongo 
RED’s FiT programme was abolished after the Government 
developed the Net Metering Rules in 2016. These rules 
were developed to promote and spur self-generation 
nationally. To date, Erongo RED has about 237 consumer-
side DGs connected to its distribution networks, with a total 
installed capacity of 10.56 MW. Solar PV rooftops dominate 
these consumer-side DGs and allow prosumers to generate 
energy for their own consumption and export surplus to 
Erongo RED’s grid to get net metering credits in return.

ANTICIPATION OF PV SOLAR GROWTH

The increasing demand to access distribution networks for 
the deployment of distributed generations requires Erongo 
RED to explore innovative and cost-effective solutions to 
maximise DG penetration without deteriorating the normal 
operating conditions of its distribution networks. 

The concept of hosting capacity has been identified as 
a cost-effective solution to DG-associated challenges, 
especially when funds to upgrade and expand distribution 
networks are limited. Therefore, Erongo RED is currently 
conducting a study to determine the hosting capacity for 
DG on its distribution networks. The concept of hosting 
capacity has the potential to help Erongo RED make 
informed decisions when processing DG interconnection 
requests, thus reducing the risk of disrupting normal 
operating conditions of distribution networks (mainly voltage 
and thermal limit constraints), and improving the utilisation 
of current electrical infrastructures without costly network 
upgrades. Hosting capacity will further allow Erongo RED 
to allocate generation capacities to prosumers in a fair, 
inclusive and technically sustainable manner. 

N$17.9 million for expansion of 
existing projects 
N$38.6 million for new projects

N$5.6 million approved 
for projects in 2019/2020

Walvis Bay Shack Dwellers 
Federation - 92 dwellings 
Usakos - 60 dwellings
Hakahana, Omaruru - 50 dwellings

N$2 million approved for 
2019/2020

Peri-urban electrification
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Average Restoration Times after Forced Interruptions, July 2019 to March 2020

Performance expressed as hours and minutes taken to restore supply

Percentage of 
Interruptions, Supply 
Restored

Guaranteed 
Standard: Urban

(hours)

Guaranteed 
Standard: Rural

(hours)

Actual 
Measured: Urban 
(hours:minutes)

Actual 
Measured: Rural 
(hours:minutes)

30% (overall standard) 1.5 3 0:38 1:07

60% (overall standard) 3.5 7 2:18 4:13

90% (overall standard) 7.5 15 5:19 9:41

98% (overall standard) 12 24 9:59 10:46

100% (guaranteed standard) 24 48 21:47 31:44

Performance expressed in minutes and as percentage higher than guaranteed ECB standard

Percentage of 
Interruptions, Supply 
Restored

Urban
(minutes)

Rural
(minutes)

Guaranteed 
Standard: Urban

(%)

Guaranteed 
Standard: Rural

(%)

30% (overall standard) 90 180 58% 63%

60% (overall standard) 210 420 34% 40%

90% (overall standard) 450 900 29% 35%

98% (overall standard) 720 1440 17% 55%

100% (guaranteed standard) 1440 2880 9% 34%

NETWORK OPERATIONS 
& MAINTENANCE
The Network Operations and Maintenance business unit is responsible for the upgrade and 
maintenance of Erongo RED’s distribution network in order to ensure reliable electricity supply. 
The unit also oversees the upkeep and improvement of the company’s substations and equipment, 
with a serious focus on safety, as electricity is a potentially dangerous commodity. Failure to adhere 
to safety protocols can lead to missed targets and deadlines, which in turn may affect and carry 
substantial repercussions for economic development and foreign investment.

Apart from ensuring that consumers get the best value and product for their investment, the 
unit is also responsible for the maintenance of overhead line networks and all medium voltage 
infrastructure. Within the scope of the Electricity Supply Industry (ESI), the unit also advises the 
Electricity Control Board on relevant issues from time to time.

SETTING THE STANDARD

Performing beyond expectation is a great drive within the 
business unit, and achieving set targets within the given 
time frame is a challenge the unit continues to tackle head-
on. Concerning OPEX (Operational Expenses) projects 
during the reporting period, 91% of all projects approved 
were completed, with 82% of the budget as allocated, 
a praiseworthy achievement for the business unit. The 
COVID-19 pandemic significantly hampered the execution 
of work and the business unit had to quickly adapt and 
implement precautionary measures to ensure continuity of 
electricity. The execution of planned work was cut back in 
the last quarter of the financial year. 

The ECB standards and ratings see Erongo RED emerging 
as a top performer in the country, as targets are not only 
met, but exceeded.

EMBRACING NEW TECHNOLOGY

The need to embrace and make use of new technology in 
a bid to move towards a more digitised way of operating, 
remains a high focus area for creating more effectiveness 
and efficiency. A Computerised Maintenance Management 
System (CMMS) is envisaged for the future, which will allow 
for better maintenance processes across Erongo RED’s 
electricity infrastructure. Until such time, the business unit 
continues to use the manual system in an optimal manner, 
generating monthly reports that highlight maintenance 
needs and identify arising issues, thereby ensuring that 
preventative maintenance is carried out and the reliable 
operation of the network.

The 2019/2020 financial year saw the business unit 
introduce transformer conditioning monitoring, with a special 
focus on oil analysis, which allows for the early identification 

of defective transformers. This improvement enhanced 
network performance as a whole, allowing for the provision 
of high-quality electricity to consumers. During the period 
under review, Passive Fault Line Indicator equipment was 
successfully introduced and installed across most power 
lines in the Erongo Region. This improved restoration times 
and lead to a reduction in man-hours. 

The business unit also investigated the feasibility of 
introducing electric vehicles. Various options were 
considered and presented to pave the way for successfully 
introducing this technology in the future. 

NEW PROJECTS

During the year under review, minor street lighting 
improvement projects were implemented across the entire 
area of responsibility. 

The management of the maintenance and infeed aspect of 
the Arandis Solar Power Plant was another ongoing project. 
Erongo RED is an integral part of the line feeding the 
Arandis Solar Power Plant. The project, which is scheduled 
to be completed in 2021, will enable the company to comply 
with new rules set out by the ECB for the Modified Single 
Buyer (MSB) model, which calls for a network that is ready 
to transfer power. The Arandis line feeding the solar power 
plant is 50% complete, with another 25% scheduled to be 
completed within the following financial year. 

Advanced engineering additions and modifications were 
completed on the PV Plant to allow for automation of plant 
output. This resulted in huge cost savings by reducing 
manual monitoring and controlling of the plant. Visibility and 
remote control of the plant were successfully implemented. 

Various medium voltage cable upgrade projects were 
completed. In Swakopmund, major network strengthening 
between Mandume and Welwitschia substations was 
completed. In Walvis Bay, new cables were installed 
between Paratus and the newly developed Tutaleni 
substations, which are to be completed in the 2021/2022 
financial year.

The business unit also obtained approval for the 
implementation of a new Supervisory Control and Data 
Acquisition (SCADA) system. The appointment of the 
service provider will take place in 2021, with installation 
planned for 2022. 

FAULTS AND INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE

For the year under review, Erongo RED complied with 
standards set by the ECB with regards to faults and service 
interruption. As indicated in the tables below, the actual 
standard of power return in urban areas for the year under 
review was 21 hours and 47 minutes. The figure for rural 
areas was 31 hours and 44 minutes, which is within the 
ECB standard of 48 hours. It should be noted that all the 
guaranteed standards were met during the period.

Notes:

1. This report makes use of Medium Voltage System Minutes (SM) as reference.
2. Individual transformers and customers connected to each circuit are not available.
3. The combined SM reports are filtered according to the allowable time categories. 
4.     The average time for each event and category is then used to arrive at an indicative figure.
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POWER OUTAGES

For the 2019/2020 financial year, a total of 178 power 
outages were planned across all medium voltage network 
areas, which are geographically divided into three (3) areas. 
A total of 460 forced outages occurred during the reporting 
period over the same medium voltage network areas.

SAFETY FIRST

No fatal accidents were recorded for the year under review, 
with only minor incidents occurring.
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SUPPLY
BUSINESS 
The Supply Business unit is responsible for ensuring that Erongo RED’s systems work efficiently 
and that our customers and stakeholders receive the best possible service, which includes access 
to reliable electricity supply. This entails the establishment of accurate procedures to meter, bill 
and receive payment for electricity consumption, generating revenue and supporting the working 
capital requirements of the company.

TECHNICAL SERVICES

The Supply Business Technical department is responsible 
for metering, revenue protection, energy management, 
power quality and projects of the Supply Business unit.

Metering

The metering function is responsible for the installation of 
meters and the maintenance of the metering system to 
ensure accurate metering and billing of customers as per 
the applicable standards. In the year under review, a total of 
1,590 new meters (1,267 pre-paid and 323 post-paid) were 
installed as a result of new applications received (CAPEX). 
In addition, about 520 meters were replaced under 
maintenance (OPEX), of which 191 meters were replaced 
after becoming faulty and 329 were replaced after reaching 
their useful lifespan. 

Previously, a total of 98 three-phase disc meters existed on 
the network. However, to date, they have all been replaced.

During the year under review, a total of 890 call-outs as 
a result of circuit breaker trips was recorded and attended 
to, in keeping with the ECB Quality of Service Charter. The 
number of call-outs is a concern and substantial effort will 
be invested to determine the causes of these trips.

The Automatic Meter Reading (AMR) system currently 
hosts all bulk meters (including supply-point check meters 
and other primary substation meters used for energy 
management), 38% of normal three-phase meters and 
5% of single-phase meters of customers who are on net 
metering. AMR system performance was recorded at 93% 
(average – communication and data availability), exceeding 
the target of 90%. 

Going forward, split pre-paid meters will become the new 
standard for all pre-paid connections in order to minimise 
electricity theft and tampers. 

Revenue Recovery

Revenue recovery identifies areas in which the company 
loses revenue, or in rare instances, overbills customers, 
recommends remedial actions to address areas of revenue 
loss, oversees computation resulting from lost revenue 
through journals as per economic and technical rules, and 
follows up on the progress of payments with the Credit 
Control section of the Finance and Administration business 
unit. 

During the 2019/2020 financial year, a total of 53 revenue 
recovery journals was prepared, amounting to N$25,277,418.94 
in total. Of this amount, only N$4,034,742.92 was paid, 
representing 15.96%, leaving an outstanding amount of 
N$21,242,676.02, which represents 84.04%. 

An amount of N$1.4 million was paid back to customers 
after it was discovered that they were overcharged during a 
meter auditing project. 

A total of 559 accounts was identified to have conflicting 
tariffs. Of these accounts, 533 were rectified, representing 
95%, leaving only 26 accounts to be rectified in the next 
financial year.

Revenue Protection

Namibia was not spared by the COVID-19 pandemic, which 
had a major impact on customers in the electricity industry. 
The pandemic resulted in a sudden decline in NamPower 
monthly purchases in comparison to the previous year. Bulk 
customer connections declined in Quarter 3 and Quarter 4, 
from 299 to 294. 
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On a positive note, despite the challenges resulting from the 
COVID-19 pandemic, Erongo RED managed to decrease 
current technical and non-technical losses, from 7% to 6%. 
The improvement can be ascribed to the dedicated Supply 
Business unit technical team and several rigorous actions 
that were conducted during 2019/2020, which included:

• Improvement of accurate meter verification testing 
done in the field by expanding the KoCos test 
equipment (three (3) meters and two (2) loadboxes), 
which supported the successful completion of Phase 1 
of the meter audit project 

• Development of practical skills and knowledge of staff 
through additional KoCos and Routemaster training 
and through participation in the meter audit project 
conducted by an external contractor

• Detailed AMR and billing data analyses and monitoring 
of all meter profiles (pre-paid and post-paid) and supply 
check meter points during the COVID-19 period

• Update and scrutiny of the electricity management 
information module (eMIM) on a monthly basis (conflict 
tariff reports and network loss reports) 

The disconnection of unpaid accounts (cut-offs) was 
executed on a monthly basis to ensure maximum revenue 
collection. However, when COVID-19 restrictions were 
implemented in April 2020, the disconnection process was 
halted due to the resultant economic impact on customers. 
Pre-paid investigations were not carried out between 
March and June 2020 as usual, due to possible exposure 
of personnel to COVID-19. This resulted in an increase in 
electricity theft due to tampering with and bypassing of pre-
paid meters on customers’ premises.

The AMR remote disconnection project was expanded in 
2019/2020 in Area 3. Currently, a total of 25 customers can 
be disconnected and reconnected remotely.

%

NamPower Purchases - Demand vs Energy
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Metering
Non-split pre-paid meters were phased out in an a attempt 
to curb meter bypasses. Two (2) variants were introduced 
instead, namely Power Line Communicator (PLC) meters 
and Radio Frequency (RF) meters. 

NamPower Supply Points
The graphs below show the trends for the Erongo RED 
supply point demands and total energy purchased from 
NamPower and draw comparisons between the 2018/2019 
and 2019/2020 financial years.

Total Supply Point Demand Comparison, 2018/2019 vs 2019/2020
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NamPower Increases vs Erongo RED Increases

2018/2019 2019/2020

Erongo RED Tariff Increase % 4% -0.10%

NamPower Tariff Increase % 5% -2.5%

The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Erongo RED’s 
demand and kWh units at all supply points is clearly 
visible. The first two (2) quarters of the year showed that 
both the demand and kWh trend was above the previous 
year’s performance. However, from March 2020, when the 
lockdown was imposed, the trend dived below the previous 
year’s figures, reflecting the negative impact that COVID-19 
had on industries and domestic customers.   

Power Quality

Erongo RED currently has 37 power quality instruments 
from two (2) different suppliers, namely CT Lab and 
UniPower. The power quality instruments measure power 
quality parameters according to IEC 61000-4-30, class A 
method. Erongo RED monitors power quality according 
to the NRS048 standard, as per the requirement of the 
Electricity Control Board (ECB). 

Projects

The meter audit project is divided into four (4) phases, as 
follows:  
• Phase 1: Meter audit of all bulk customers of Erongo 

RED 
• Phase 2: Sweep meter audit of all meters in Area 2 
• Phase 3: Sweep meter audit of all meters in Area 2
• Phase 4: Sweep meter audit of all meters in Area 3 

Phase 1 of the meter audit project was successfully 
completed during the reporting period. 

COMMERCIAL SERVICES 

The Commercial Services section within the Supply 
Business unit strives to ensure that Erongo RED provides 
affordable yet cost-reflective tariffs. Given the scarcity 
of resources, the section endeavours to ensure that all 
services are accurately and timeously billed to customers, 
ultimately ensuring that all revenue due to the company is 
recouped. Optimal customer service delivery throughout 
all customer service centres remains our obligation in our 
efforts to retain and attract customers.  

Challenges 

Upon the announcement of the state of emergency due to 
the COVID-19 outbreak, the business continuity plan was 
immediately implemented to ensure continued service 
delivery to our customers, while ensuring the containment 
of the virus. Resources were deployed to enable selected 
staff members to effectively work from home, whereas other 
staff members worked at our offices on a rotational basis 
to ensure optimal service delivery. Despite the challenges 
resulting from the pandemic, staff showed unwavering 
commitment and dedication, coupled with a willingness 
to make sacrifices, in order to ensure continuous and 
uninterrupted service supply. Virtual meetings were held to 
receive updates on the new ways of working. 

Tariffs

During the year under review, Erongo RED applied for a 
0.10% weighted average tariff decrease to the Electricity 
Control Board. After thorough review by the ECB, Erongo 
RED was granted the 0.10% weighted average tariff 
decrease for 2019/2020. All tariffs remained unchanged, 
apart from the network and service fee for farmers, which 
was reduced by an average of 0.10%. During the year under 
review, NamPower introduced a single season time-of-use 
(TOU) tariff for transmission customers, such as Erongo 
RED. This means that there will no longer be a high season 
and a low season tariff. Transmission customers will now 
only pay one set of TOU tariffs, as opposed to different sets 
of tariffs for the high and low season periods.

In support of our senior citizens and low-income customer 
category, the company continued to offer social tariffs 
(subsidised tariffs) applicable to pensioners and low-income 
groups, as defined in the Social Tariff Policy. As at June 
2020, 22% of the company’s customer base benefitted from 
the social tariff.

Total Supply Point kWh Units Comparison, 2018/2019 vs 2019/2020
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Billing 

On a monthly basis, customers are billed for services 
rendered. The billing section ensures that statements 
of accounts are accurate and timeously delivered to 
customers. Customers receive statements of accounts at 
least 14 days prior to the payment due date, which is the 
seventh (7th) day of each month. Customers have an option 
to receive their accounts via personal post box or email. 
Alternatively, customers can contact our Call Centre or visit 
any customer service office to request a statement.

Immediately after the announcement of the state of 
emergency, the company needed to ensure the safety of its 
employees and customers. In an effort to contain the spread 
of the virus and pre-empt impacts on the health of our staff, 
a bold decision was taken, as contained in the business 
continuity plan, to not carry out physical meter readings 
for meters not on the Automatic Meter Reading system. 
Instead, average figures of consumption were used to bill 
customers. As normal meter reading processes resumed, 
the estimated consumption was automatically reversed.

2018/2019 & 2019/2020 Billing Comparison

2018/2019 2019/2020
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Pre-paid Vending

Since over 60% of our customer base has pre-paid meters, 
there are various vending channels and outlets across the 
region to facilitate easily accessible pre-paid electricity 
purchases at all times. During business hours, customers 
can purchase pre-paid electricity at any customer service 

office. Alternatively, customers can use digital channels, 
such as cellphone banking, online banking, mobile wallet, 
vending machines at shopping outlets or other vending 
platforms to purchase pre-paid electricity.

kW
h
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The following vendors provide pre-paid vending services to customers:

Vendor Town

Omega Shell Walvis Bay

Alpha Service Station Walvis Bay

Engen Truckport Swakopmund

Arandis Puma Service Arandis

Henties Bay Spar Henties Bay

OK Grocer Karibib

Wilson Supermarket Karibib

Lucky 7 Omaruru

Omaruru Spar Omaruru

New Edition Usakos

Okombahe Vendor Okombahe

Woermann Brock Swakopmund/Walvis Bay

First National Bank All Towns

Bank Windhoek All Towns

Standard Bank All Towns

Pick n Pay Swakopmund/Walvis Bay

Airtime City All Towns

Oasis Supermarket Naraville

NamPost All Towns

Total Service Station Longbeach

Total Service Station Henties Bay

Customer Base Characteristics

Customers Energy Revenue

Domestic Pre-paid 60.0% 22.3% 17.8%

Domestic Conventional 31.2% 16.0% 14.9%

Business (Pre-paid and 1 & 3 Phase) 7.3% 12.3% 14.6%

Bulk Consumer 0.6% 46.0% 49.6%

Institutional 0.4% 2.6% 3.2%

Streetlights and Erongo RED Offices 0.5% 0.8% 0.0%

Customers on Subsidised Tariff

Customer Segment  2019/2020 2018/2019

Pensioners Conventional 3,049 3,088

Pensioners Pre-paid 3,730 3,407

Pre-paid up to 20 amperes 2,661 2,198

TOTAL 9,440 8,693

2019/2020 2018/2019 Increase/Decrease %

Electricity Sales (in N$) 1,350,410,636 1,337,818,681 1%

Revenue (in N$) 1,375,003,303 1,397,463,548 -1.6%

Customer Service

To ensure optimal service delivery, Erongo RED has 
customer service centres in all towns across the Erongo 
Region. As at June 2020, Erongo RED‘s customer base 
increased to 42,193 customers, compared to 41,850 
customers in 2019, translating to an increase of 1%. During 
the period under review, the residential customer segment 
constituted 91.2% of the total customer base, while 7.9% 
comprised of commercial customers with single- and 
three-phase connections, including all large power users. 

Institutional customers connected to single- and three-
phase made up less than 1% of the total customer base. It 
is notable that 67% of residential customers have pre-paid 
connections, whereas the remaining 33% have post-paid 
connections. This indicates that the majority of residential 
customers prefers pre-paid connections, as opposed 
to post-paid connections. Erongo RED buildings and 
streetlights constitute less than 1% of the customer base.

In support of our customers during the state of emergency, 
a decision was taken to waive interest charges on 
customers’ outstanding balances reflected on April account 
statements. Furthermore, pensioners on subsidised tariffs 
were exempted from the annual re-registration process, 
while their benefits continued and will continue until the 
situation normalises.

Revenue

The economic crisis and the impact of COVID-19 did 
not spare Erongo RED. During the 2019/2020 financial 
year, overall company revenue declined by 1.6%, from 
N$1,397,463,548 in the previous year to N$1,375,003,303. 
However, on a positive note, despite the challenges faced 

as a result of COVID-19, the company recorded a 1% 
increase in electricity sales, which translated to an increase 
from N$1,337,818,681 (2018/2019) to N$1,350,410,636 
(2019/2020).

Electricity Sales per Customer Segment

Large power users, who constitute less than 1% of the 
customer base, contribute about 50% of electricity sales. 
This statistic reveals that large power users carry the 
organisation in terms of revenue contribution. Domestic 
pre-paid customers constitute 60% of the customer base 
and add 17.8% towards electricity sales revenue, whereas 
domestic customers (post-paid and pre-paid combined) 
contribute 32.7% to the electricity sales revenue stream. 

Commercial/Business single- and three-phase users make 
up 7.3% of the customer base, and contribute 14.9% of 
the revenue. All customer segments’ contributions to the 
revenue stream remained closely in line with the previous 
year’s contributions, with no significant changes.
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Percentage of Electricity Sales Contribution to Revenue 
per Town

The habour town of Walvis Bay, constituting 40.9% of the 
customer base, makes the highest contribution to electricity 
sales revenue, namely 58.7%, followed by the town of 
Swakopmund, which contributes about 24% of the revenue, 
while all other towns, villages and settlements within the 
Erongo Regional Council area make up the remaining 
17.4%.

CUSTOMER CALL CENTRE

The established traditional interaction platform of the 
Customer Call Centre was challenged by the coronavirus 
outbreak, prompting Erongo RED to change and improve 
its system of communication with customers. The number 
of calls logged spiked during the lockdowns and Call Centre 
agents had to work around the clock to provide service.

Our agents were equipped with all the necessary 
equipment for providing service remotely. However, ICT 
and low Internet speeds nationally created challenges, as 
the infrastructure was not sufficient to cope with increased 
traffic resulting from the situation.

Call Centre work at Erongo RED remained a challenge 
due to shortcomings in the system. However, amidst these 
challenges, our efficient Call Centre team seamlessly 
transitioned to providing uninterrupted customer service 

from home, as necessitated by the lockdowns in response 
to the COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, the team reached 
the strategic target of 91% in first-call resolution. 

In an effort to improve Call Centre performance 
management, the company acquired a call recording 
system and additional Call Centre system licences to 
manage quality of service. In addition, the call logging 
system was extended to the front line in order to enable 
the recording of service applications to ensure regulatory 
compliance and reporting.   

In order for our Call Centre to thrive going forward, we 
will need to elevate communication over phone channels, 
embrace social media platforms and implement new 
processes. We will be forced to adopt highly scalable and 
advanced automation.

Electricity sales vs Customer Segment

Revenue Customers

Streetlights and Erongo RED Offices
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HUMAN CAPITAL & 
CORPORATE SERVICES  
An efficiently run Human Capital and Corporate Services division can provide an organisation with 
the ability to meet business needs through effective management of its most valuable resource, 
namely its employees. The fundamental responsibility of the division is to align the organisation’s 
human resource policies and practices with the strategic direction of the business. Therefore, it is 
important that the Human Capital and Corporate Services division be recognised as a strategic 
partner by all business units. The division provides overall policy direction on human resource 
issues and administrative support functions related to the management of employees. The focus 
of the division is to continuously partner with the business units by providing human resource 
programmes that attract, develop, retain and engage a skilled and diverse workforce. 

Another focus area of the division is to develop and manage value-added human resource policies 
and programmes, to provide expert consultation, services and solutions in an efficient and customer-
focused manner, and to provide employees with the tools necessary to meet customer needs. The 
division is committed to creating a stable work environment with equal opportunity for learning and 
personal growth for all employees. Creativity and innovation are encouraged to ensure that Erongo 
RED achieves its objectives. The Human Capital and Corporate Services division acts as a catalyst 
to enable employees to contribute at optimum levels toward the success of Erongo RED. This is 
achieved through a teamwork philosophy that is inspired by effective organisational skills, proactive 
efforts and a balance between professionalism and the ability to engage in value adding activities. 

During the 2019/2020 financial year, the focus of the division was to create value by capitalising on 
the skill set of the workforce.

RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION

For any organisation to achieve its objectives, the role 
of the Human Capital and Corporate Services division 
is paramount to ensuring that the talent needs of the 
organisation are fulfilled. Focusing on the recruitment 
process brings on board employees who have the right 
skills, knowledge and attitudes to achieve organisational 
objectives.

Erongo RED is a strong advocate of internal promotions, 
especially for individuals from designated groups. The 
employment equity requirements are also observed in 
all recruitment efforts of the organisation. The focus has 
always been to give preferential treatment to people 
from  designated groups in line with the Affirmative Action 
(Employment) Act, 1998 (Act No. 29 of 1998).

Of the five (5) new appointments during the period 
under review, 60% were women, which is well in line 
with employment equity requirements. A total of four (4) 
employees were promoted, of whom half (50%) were 
women. 

As part of the company’s corporate social responsibility 
initiatives, five (5) individuals were appointed as trainees in 
order to allow them to gain the practical experience required 
for the completion of their courses of study. One (1) fixed 
term worker was also recruited during the period under 
review in order to provide relief for a staff member who was 
on maternity leave and/or sick leave.

EMPLOYEE TURNOVER

Staff turnover remained relatively low at Erongo RED during 
the period under review. This can be partly attributed to the 
company’s safe and rewarding working environment. In 
addition, employees are given an opportunity to develop 
their skills and capacity via various formal and informal 
training and development opportunities, thereby facilitating 
career growth.

For the period under review, we recorded a staff turnover 
rate of 0.34%. The Human Capital and Corporate Services 
division believes that the implementation of retention and 
succession programmes will be one of the tools that will 
encourage employees to remain with the organisation for 
longer periods of time, and subsequently aid in keeping the 
turnover rate at a manageable level.

Staff Appointments & Promotions 2019/2020

Training & Development 2019/2020
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

Training and development provides the key opportunity to 
expand the knowledge base of employees. The Human 
Capital and Corporate Services division recognises that 
training and development is a costly undertaking. Therefore, 
the focus is always to invest in training programmes that 
add value. Training and development provides employees 
and the company as a whole with benefits that make the 
investment of money and time worthwhile. Training gives 
employees a greater understanding of the responsibilities 
within their roles, and in turn builds their confidence. This 
confidence enhances overall employee performance, 
which benefits the company. Training creates a supportive 
environment in which employees feel appreciated and 
challenged through training opportunities leading to job 
satisfaction. A robust training and development programme 
ensures that employees have a consistently positive 
experience that also enhances their background knowledge. 
Productivity usually increases when employees implement 
the new skills acquired through training. 

Erongo RED invests extensively in the training and 
development of employees. This is done to ensure 
that employees are equipped with the necessary 
knowledge and skills required to contribute meaningfully 
to the achievement of strategic objectives. The training 
interventions include formal education, short courses, skills 
upgrading, internships and graduate training. Employees 
are required to implement the knowledge and skills acquired 
upon completion of training. Each year, after performance 
assessment has been conducted, skills shortages are 
identified and appropriate training interventions are recorded 
in employees’ Individual Development Plans (IDPs). During 
the period under review, the company instituted measures 
to ensure that the performance assessment process leads 
to training efforts and value addition.
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WORKFORCE PROFILE

Erongo RED’s workforce is currently male-dominated due to 
the nature of the industry. The status quo could be attributed 
to the fact that, historically, mostly men took up careers in 
engineering fields. We have noted a trend in which women 
have begun to pursue careers in engineering fields, which 
is slowly reshaping the workforce profile at Erongo RED. 
The Affirmative Action (Employment) Act, 1998 (Act No. 
29 of 1998) requires preferential treatment to be given 
to persons from designated groups, such as women and 
persons with disabilities. This provision is continually 
observed in all recruitment efforts at Erongo RED. The 
Recruitment, Selection, Transfer and Promotion Policy 
stipulates that Affirmative Action points must be applied 
during the interview process to enable the achievement of 
employment equity goals.

Currently, 59% of the workforce consists of male employees, 
and 41% is made up of female employees. An Affirmative 
Action Consultative Committee was created and has been 
instrumental in crafting the Affirmative Action Report. It is 
worth noting that during the period under review, Erongo RED 
received a Compliance Certificate from the Employment 
Equity Commission. We acknowledge the fact that Erongo 
RED’s Executive Management is currently male-dominated, 
for historical reasons. Hence, the company’s employment 
equity plan has initiated strategies aimed at addressing the 
aforesaid anomaly.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

A safe workplace is a fundamental right of all employees. For 
Erongo RED, health, safety and wellness is the foundation 
on which we build our business and care for the surrounding 
environment. We believe that all incidents, injuries and 
occupational illnesses are preventable. Therefore, we 
encourage our employees to foster attitudes and behaviour 
that promote health, safety, wellness and the protection of 
the environment.

Safety

During the period under review, Erongo RED conducted 
safety audits on a number of infrastructure and projects to 
determine if the company and contractors complied with 
policies and legislation.

Health and Wellness

Alcohol and Drug Testing
Erongo RED recognises that alcohol and drug abuse 
remains a serious socio-economic problem in Namibia, 
which, if not correctly addressed in the workplace, can 
have a serious negative impact on the company’s ability 
to operate as a professional, risk-free organisation. The 
company implemented alcohol screening with random 
testing of employees. The screening process was put on 
hold due to COVID-19 regulations.

Workforce Composition 
2019/2020

9.2% 49.8%

7% 34%

Gender Equity

Percentage Management (%)

New Appointments

Percentage Bargaining Unit (%)

Promotions

COVID-19
In March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) 
declared the coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak as an 
international pandemic. The company followed international 
and national guidelines to safeguard the health of 
employees, contractors and customers. 

The following preventative measures were implemented:
• COVID-19 awareness training for all employees and 

contractors
• Compulsory wearing of masks and disinfection of 

hands
• Social distancing
• Keeping registers and temperature screening of all 

persons entering company buildings
• Limited number of customers and employees in 

company buildings
• Regular disinfection of buildings
• Employees working on rotational basis
• Supplying employees and contractors with Personal 

Protective Equipment (PPE) and supplements

ENVIRONMENT

During the year under review, two (2) environmental impact 
assessments were successfully conducted to enable the 
company to apply for environmental clearance certificates 
for developmental projects with the Ministry of Environment 
and Tourism. The assessments were performed by 
independent consultants and consisted of scoping and 
operational plans.

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Erongo RED operates in a unionised environment, with 
70% of the company’s workforce being members of a union. 
Platforms are created that allow employees to air their 
views and concerns on matters affecting them. Monthly 
meetings between the company and union representatives 
are held to discuss matters of common interest. Continuous 
engagement with the union aims to strengthen the 
employer-employee relationship by engaging in dialogue 
and resolving workplace conflict. The engagement also 
includes developing responses to the union and negotiating 
collective bargaining agreements.

During the period under review, the company and the union 
engaged in wage negotiations to improve the salaries 
and benefits of employees. The process culminated in 
the signing of the wage agreement between the two  (2) 
parties. Management is committed to ensuring that the 
living standards of employees are improved. Hence, the 
remuneration and benefits of employees are continuously 
benchmarked against the labour market with the aim of 
ensuring employee retention. 

Labour relations can make or break an organisation. We 
believe that continuous engagement with employees through 
their representative union promotes a good understanding 
between employees and the employer, which is important 
for maintaining industrial peace. A positive relationship 
between the employer and employees leads to higher 
motivation and employee engagement. When employees 
are happy, they are more productive and will put more effort 

into their work, which translates into satisfied customers 
and more revenue. While developing and maintaining good 
labour relations can be challenging, healthy relationships 
among workers are beneficial not only to employees, but to 
the entire organisation. 

The purpose of robust labour relations is to establish and 
strengthen the employee-employer relationship. This can be 
achieved by measuring employee satisfaction, identifying 
and resolving workplace issues, and providing inputs and 
support for management decisions. The most successful 
organisations around the world are those that take labour 
relations seriously. It is important to create an environment 
in which employees can use their skills to the fullest. It is 
only when employees feel that their contribution is valued 
and respected that such an environment is created. 

SUCCESSION AND RETENTION INITIATIVES

The implementation of the Succession and Retention Policy 
is at an advanced stage. The initiative is aimed at ensuring 
a ready supply of internal talent for key positions at all 
times. Succession planning will mitigate the risk of planned 
and unplanned loss of critical skills and knowledge required 
for Erongo RED business continuity. The primary purpose 
of retaining employees is to enable Erongo RED to identify 
and prepare the right people for the right positions at the 
time when they are needed. This initiative is further aimed 
at identifying potential future leaders for key and critical 
positions, to minimise losses caused by unscheduled 
changes to management and talent, and to increase the 
internal talent pool of promotable employees.

Succession planning is a focused process for keeping 
talent in the pipeline. In addition, it can be of great value to 
Erongo RED as it allows resources to be made available 
for knowledge management programmes and the formal, 
structured development of employees. Effective job 
design, varied internal development opportunities and 
smart organisational structures are important practices 
that promote the achievement of organisational objectives, 
while creating an environment that promotes employee 
engagement and retention. 

INFORMATION PRESERVATION INITIATIVES

Over the years, Erongo RED has faced challenges 
pertaining to document archiving, retrieval and disposition. 
The organisation lacked a coordinated approach in terms 
of managing the life cycle of documents, which made the 
management of important information, such as customer 
information and other crucial information required for 
decision making, cumbersome and inefficient. As such, 
Erongo RED’s Strategic Plan identified the implementation 
of the Electronic Document and Records Management 
System (EDRMS) as one of the important initiatives to 
address this shortcoming. The EDRMS will facilitate the 
creation, management, use, storage and disposal of a range 
of physical and digital documents and records. The system 
will protect and manage records as authentic evidence of 
business to meet statutory and other requirements and 
assist in addressing Erongo RED’s long-term needs for 
information.
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The EDRMS will facilitate the move from paper to digital 
methods of conducting business by allowing users to 
create documents/records in a digital form and to work 
collaboratively on documents within the system. Other 
benefits of the EDRMS include integrating with other business 
systems, improving business efficiency and productivity, 
responding to customers quickly, and preventing access to 
documents and records by unauthorised users. Of particular 
importance is the enablement of tracking accessibility of 
documents through the audit trail, improving record-keeping 
capability, and facilitating the disposal of records in line with 
applicable legislation.

During the period under review, highlights of the archives 
section included creating awareness of the importance 
of record management, and appointing the Record 
Champions Committee, which serves as a focal point for 
record management at a business unit level. A record 
appraisal was also conducted, with the aim of distinguishing 
records of continuing value from those of no further value 
in order to facilitate record disposition. Record appraisal 
is beneficial because it facilitates efficient management of 
records by business units by limiting the retention of records 
to those which are of continuing value to the organisation. 
Appraisal of records allows for the creation of more space in 
offices and enables Erongo RED to be accountable in terms 
of the management of records. The process facilitated the 
implementation of a controlled filing system and preparation 
for the EDRMS.
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CORPORATE 
COMMUNICATIONS & 
MARKETING
The Corporate Communications and Marketing section oversees the communications function 
of Erongo RED by showcasing the services provided by the distributor. At the same time, the 
section is responsible for ensuring that the Erongo RED brand is well positioned and represented 
in every form, by undertaking several activities and events every financial year. The section carries 
the responsibility of maintaining all stakeholder relationships, and to continuously seek new 
associations.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS - THE KEY TO OUR SUCCESS

During the period under review, Erongo RED media coverage 
was particularly positive and informative, with the bulk of 
media coverage focused on electricity tariff adjustments, 
power outages, electrification projects and sponsorship 
events. As part of our drive to improve both internal and 
external communication with all stakeholders, the company 
commenced with the process of reviewing related policies 
to improve communication and stakeholder engagement. 
In addition, a stakeholder engagement plan was developed 
to guide the company in identifying issues and challenges 
experienced by stakeholders and to implement measures to 
mitigate these problems. 

The COVID-19 pandemic made it challenging to convene 
physical engagements with stakeholders. Consequently, the 
Corporate Communication and Marketing section continued 
to rely heavily on social media, print, radio and broadcasting 
networks to disseminate company information, as well as 
educational content to create awareness of electricity 
saving and safety measures, and tariffs.

Using the power of dialogue and feedback, we managed 
to create multiple platforms of engagement with all our 
stakeholders. Through broadcasting and print media, we 
continued to share information, while noting the sentiments 
and opinions of stakeholders. We regard stakeholder 
feedback from various engagements as critical inputs in 
shaping the direction of our policies and strategies. It is 
worth noting that through the SMS platform, we managed to 
send out timely power outage alerts to customers. Erongo 
RED regards customer relationships as vital to our business. 
Thus, we always strive to be open and transparent when it 
comes to sharing information. 

GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Erongo RED supports community initiatives through its 
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The committee, 

which is appointed for a period of 3 years, is responsible 
for the implementation and facilitation of all activities and 
projects related to corporate social responsibility. During the 
period under review, Erongo RED injected over N$700,000 
into various social responsibility projects, with the bulk of 
sponsorships directed towards the fight against COVID-19.

During the period under review, the Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy was reviewed and approved. The 
purpose of the review was to ensure alignment of the policy 
with the strategic direction of the organisation and that it 
continues to support the various needs of communities. 
The core corporate social responsibility activities in the 
new policy focus on community development and welfare 
support, education and training, health, environment and 
sports development.

EMBRACING THE POTENTIAL OF SOCIAL MEDIA

One of the greatest current evolutions is occurring in the 
exchange of information, with increasing numbers of people 
becoming digital-savvy. In recognition of this transformation, 
Erongo RED implemented several strategies to ensure 
that the company continues to engage with its customers 
where and when they can be found. During the period under 
review, the number of our social media followers increased 
rapidly, bringing the current total to over 15,000 followers 
on Facebook, over 1,000 followers on Instagram and just 
over 500 followers on Twitter. We intend to build an online 
community and optimised customer experience, and are 
currently exploring the possibility of developing a mobile 
app to promote real-time engagement with our customers.

EXPLORING NEW THINKING

During the period under review, two (2) of the projects 
undertaken were the review of the Marketing Strategy 
and of the Corporate Identity (CI) Manual. Our marketing 
strategy is a comprehensive plan formulated particularly for 
achieving our marketing objectives and supplementing the 

overall strategic direction of the organisation. It provides a 
blueprint for attaining these marketing objectives. The CI 
Manual defines the Erongo RED brand, which is a collection 
of tangible and intangible attributes that resonates whenever 
people experience or come in contact with the business. 
Both projects are progressing well and are scheduled to be 
completed in the next financial year. 

FOSTERING MUTUAL RELATIONSHIPS

Erongo RED’s approach to sustainability is inclusive, which 
implies an acknowledgement of the contributions, concerns 
and significance of the stakeholders in our fold. We seek 
to collaborate with our stakeholders to make a significant 
impact. Being a people-focused organisation, individuals 
are naturally our most important stakeholders. We place 
our customers at the centre of our stakeholder relations, 
while extending our commitment to, and engagement 
with, customers, investors and shareholders, partners and 
suppliers. In our efforts to build symbiotic relationships, we 
established a Consumer Liaison Committee. The committee, 
which consists of members from various communities within 
our area of operations, serves as a formal platform for the 
exchange of ideas and concerns affecting the community 
and assists with the speedy resolution of consumer 
complaints.

LISTENING TO OUR CUSTOMERS

Erongo RED conducted a stakeholder satisfaction survey 
during March and April 2019. The survey was completed 
in May 2019. The overall performance of Erongo RED was 
rated positively by all stakeholder groups. Based on an 
analysis of the results and identified areas of concern, a 
detailed Compressive Action Plan was developed during 
the period under review and shared with all business units 
for their action. Each business unit was required to address 
specific shortcomings related to its sphere of responsibility, 
and monitor the progress of remedial actions taken to 
address identified challenges. During the 2019/2020 
reporting period, about 80% of the challenges and concerns 
raised in the survey were mediated and the company 
continues to monitor these challenges.

LOOKING AHEAD

With technology advancing at a rapid pace, Erongo RED 
strives to remain relevant and accessible through the use 
of eServices to improve service to our customers. We have 
initiated the process of investigating the development and 
deployment of a mobile application that will allow customers 
to report outages, check account statements and pay their 
electricity bill. In addition, the app will enable information 
sharing and rapid responses to customer questions and 
queries. 

We continue to explore ways of harnessing the power 
of technology to communicate effectively with our 
stakeholders, while considering the viability of several 
different platforms to create a more positive and memorable 
customer experience. At the same time, we constantly 
investigate ways of creating engaging and relevant content 
to share with our stakeholders through innovative ways.

N$700,000 
Spent on CSR initiatives

80% 
Of concerns identified in 2019 
Stakeholder Satisfaction Survey 
addressed

Social Media Followers
Facebook 15,000 followers 
Instagram 1,000 followers 
Twitter  500 followers
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
TO THE SHAREHOLDER OF 
ERONGO REGIONAL ELECTRICITY
DISTRIBUTOR COMPANY (PTY) LTD

Opinion

We have audited the annual financial statements of Erongo 
Regional Electricity Distributor Company (Proprietary) 
Limited (‘the company’) set out on pages 65 to 120, which 
comprise the directors’ report, statement of financial position 
as at 30 June 2020, statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, 
and notes to the annual financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the annual financial statements present fairly, 
in all material respects, the financial position of Erongo 
Regional Electricity Distributor Company (Proprietary) 
Limited as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance 
and cash flows for the period then ended in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the annual financial 
statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the company in accordance with the International 
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including International 
Independence Standards) and other independence 
requirements applicable to performing audits of annual 
financial statements in Namibia. We have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ethical 
requirements applicable to performing audits in Namibia. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The 
other information comprises the general information on 
page 59, the index on page 61, the directors’ responsibilities 
and approval on page 64 and other supplementary 
information on pages 121 to 123. The other information 
does not include the annual financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the annual financial 
statements does not cover the other information and we 

do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the annual financial statements 
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for annual financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the annual financial statements in accordance 
with International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of Namibia, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to 
enable the preparation of annual financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, the directors 
are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either 
intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or 
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the annual financial 
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the annual financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the annual financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
company’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by the directors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the annual financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the annual financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies 
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young
Partner – Julia Engels
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountant (Namibia)
4 February 2021
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES 
AND APPROVAL
The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act 
of Namibia to maintain adequate accounting records and 
are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual 
financial statements and related financial information 
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that
the annual financial statements fairly present the state of 
affairs of the company as at the end of the financial year and 
the results of its operations and cash flows for the period 
then ended, in conformity with the International Financial 
Reporting Standards. The external auditors are engaged 
to express an independent opinion on the annual financial 
statements.

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards 
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies 
consistently applied and supported by reasonable and 
prudent judgements and estimates.

The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately 
responsible for the system of internal financial control 
established by the company and place considerable 
importance on maintaining a strong control environment. 
To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the 
directors set standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The 
standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities 
within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting 
procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure 
an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored 
throughout the company and all employees are required 
to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the 
company’s business is conducted in a manner that, in all 
reasonable circumstances, is above reproach. The focus 
of risk management in the company is on identifying, 
assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of 
risk across the company. While operating risk cannot be 
fully eliminated, the company endeavours to minimise it by 
ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems 
and ethical behaviour are applied and managed within 
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The directors are of the opinion, based on the information 
and explanations given by management, that the system 
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the 
financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the 
annual financial statements. However, any system of internal 
financial control can provide only reasonable, and not 
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The directors have reviewed the company’s cash flow 
forecast for the year to 30 June 2021 and, in light of this 
review and the current financial position, they are satisfied 
that the company has or had access to adequate resources 
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 
future.

The external auditor is responsible for independently 
auditing and reporting on the company’s annual financial 
statements. The annual financial statements have been 
examined by the company’s external auditors and their 
report is presented on pages 62 to 63.

The annual financial statements set out on pages 65 to 120, 
which have been prepared on the going concern basis, 
were approved by the directors on 21 December 2020 and 
were signed on their behalf by:

Mrs. Y.Z.N. Nambahu 
Chairperson of the Board 

Mr. E. Petrus.
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the 
annual financial statements of Erongo Regional Electricity 
Distributor Company (Proprietary) Limited for the year 
ended 30 June 2020.

1. Nature of business
Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor Company 
(Proprietary) Limited was incorporated in Namibia. The 
company is engaged in the distribution and supply of 
electricity to commercial and residential customers within 
the Erongo Region and other related activities. The 
company operates principally in Namibia.

Background
The Erongo Regional Electricity Distributor Company 
(Proprietary) Limited (Erongo RED) was established to 
distribute electricity in the Erongo Region. The company 
was formed by merging a number of electricity suppliers 
and distributors, including the distribution and supply 
operations of the Arandis Town Council, Erongo Regional 
Council, Municipality of Henties Bay, Municipality of Karibib, 
Municipality of Walvis Bay, Municipality of Omaruru, 
Municipality of Swakopmund, Municipality of Usakos, Uis 
Village Council and Namibia Power Corporation (Pty) Ltd 
(NamPower) in the Erongo Region. All of these individual 
distributors are the shareholders of Erongo RED.

Within the context of the Government’s National 
Development Plan, the Ministry of Mines and Energy 
formulated a White Paper on Energy Policy in 1998, 
which, amongst others, provides for the rationalisation of 
the electricity distribution industry through the formation 
of regional electricity distributors as a means of improving 
service delivery and efficiency within the electricity sector.

The supply and distribution licenses came into force on 1 
August 2005 and will continue in operation from the date of 
commencement for a period of 25 years, unless cancelled 
or transferred sooner under section 30 of the Electricity 
Act, 2007 (Act No. 4 of 2007). In terms of section 21(1) of 
the Electricity Act, these licenses may be renewed upon 
expiration of the periods.

Erongo RED operates in a regulated environment, which 
means that the Electricity Control Board (ECB) approves 
tariff applications by licensees on an annual basis. The ECB 
is tasked with ensuring that none of the licensees in Namibia 
make excessive profits (i.e. protecting the interests of the 
consumer), while also ensuring the long-term sustainability 
of the entity providing the service.

There have been no material changes to the nature of the 
company’s business from the prior year.

2. Review of financial results and activities
The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with the International Financial Reporting 
Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act of 
Namibia, 2004 (Act No. 28 of 2004). The accounting policies 
have been applied consistently compared to the prior 
year, except for the adoption of new or revised accounting 
standards as set out in note 2.

The company recorded a total comprehensive income 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 of N$33,153,969 (2019: 
N$43,667,470). This represented a decrease of 24% from 
the total comprehensive income of the prior year. The profit 
before tax amounts to N$57,510,791 for the year ended 30 
June 2020 which is a 24% decrease from the prior year of 
N$75,196,535.

Company revenue decreased by 2% from N$1,397,463,548 
in the prior year to N$1,375,003,303 for the year ended 30 
June 2020.

Net cash available to the company decreased by 32% from 
N$69,170,487 in the prior year to N$47,145,106 for the year 
ended 30 June 2020.

3. Dividends
The directors do not recommend the declaration of a 
dividend for the year (2019: N$ Nil).
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5. Authorised and issued share capital
There have been no changes to the authorised or issued 
share capital during the year under review.

6. COVID-19
The World Health Organization (WHO) officially declared 
COVID-19 as a pandemic in March 2020. Significant 
governmental measures have been implemented to control 
the spread of the virus, including temporary closure of 
businesses with effect from 27 March 2020 to 04 May 
2020, severe restrictions on travel and the gathering of 
people, as well as other material limitations on the conduct 
of businesses. The COVID-19 State of Emergency was 
extended for a period of 6 months from 27 March 2020 to 
17 September 2020.

The directors believe that the COVID-19 pandemic does not 
significantly affect the company nor does it cast doubt on 
the ability of the company to continue operating as a going 
concern.

7. Events after the reporting period
The directors are not aware of any material event which occurred 
after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.

8. Going concern
The directors believe that the company has adequate financial 
resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future 
and accordingly the annual financial statements have been 
prepared on a going concern basis. The directors are 
satisfied that the company is in a sound financial position 
and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to 
meet its foreseeable cash requirements.

The directors are not aware of any new material changes 
that may adversely impact the company. The directors 
are also not aware of any material non-compliance with 
statutory or regulatory requirements.

9. Auditor
Ernst & Young will continue in office as auditors in 
accordance with section 278(2) of the Companies Act of 
Namibia.

10. Secretary
The company secretary is Ms K. Nghishitende.
Postal address:   P.O. Box 2925
   Walvis Bay
   Namibia
Business address:  91 Hage Geingob Street
   Walvis Bay
   Namibia

11. Registered address
Business address:  91 Hage Geingob Street
   Walvis Bay
   Namibia

12. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment during the financial year 
amounted to N$1,064,544,422 (2019: N$1,094,362,218). 
The intangible assets during the year amounted to 
N$94,030,575 (2019: N$91,587,999). Refer to notes 4 and 
5, respectively.

4. Directorate
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors Nationality Appointment Resignation
Y.Z.N. Nambahu  Namibian  01 June 2019
E.M. Wetha  Namibian  12 June 2012  31 July 2020
M. Skini  Namibian  03 January 2013
N.A. Johannes  Namibian  02 April 2019
J. Shimbilinga  Namibian  01 April 2019
H.M. Gebhardt  Namibian  27 September 2018
N. /Goagoses  Namibian 01 April 2019  14 May 2020
E.M. Petrus  Namibian  01 April 2019
I.E. Simeon-Kurtz  Namibian  31 July 2020
F. Mbango  Namibian  01 May 2017
E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga  Namibian  28 May 2020
E.M. Britz (Alternate to Y.Z.N. Nambahu)  Namibian  01 June 2019
R. Hoabes (Alternate to E.M. Wetha)  Namibian  08 August 2016  31 July 2020
H.M.R. Kruger (Alternate to M. Skini)  Namibian  31 July 2020
J.K. Neporo (Alternate to N.A. Johannes)  Namibian  02 April 2019
C. Forbes (Alternate to J. Shimbilinga)  Namibian  02 April 2019
J.T. Kahure (Alternate to H.M. Gebhardt)  Namibian  27 September 2018
P.D. Rooi (Alternate to to E.M. Petrus)  Namibian  01 June 2019
E.C. Basson (Alternate to E.N. Muatumbulange-Manga) Namibian  28 May 2020
R.S. Ochs (Alternate to M. Skini)  Namibian  07 December 2015  31 July 2020
L.G. Goraseb (Alternate to I.E. Simeon-Kurtz)  Namibian  31 July 2020

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 
POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2020
  2020  2019
 Note(s)  N$  N$

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment  4  1,064,544,422  1,094,362,218
Intangible assets  5  94,030,575  91,587,999
Right-of-use assets  6  15,260,050  -
Prepayments  7  336,299,000  335,661,250
  1,510,134,047  1,521,611,467
Current assets
Prepayments  7  101,697,494  70,747,425
Trade and other receivables 8 221,418,103  286,054,618
Other financial assets 9  133,227,245  34,008,335
Current tax receivable  10  13,017,568  17,153,712
Cash and cash equivalents  11  63,868,677  69,170,487
  533,229,087  477,134,577
Total assets   2,043,363,134  1,998,746,044

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Share capital  12  12,500,000  12,500,000
Reserves   532,803,732  516,180,249
Retained income   227,838,481  211,914,284
  773,142,213  740,594,533
Non-current liabilities
Other financial liabilities  13  305,397,377  302,789,102
Prepayments  7  205,874,257  205,874,257
Lease liabilities*  6 7,039,121  7,100,811
Post-employment benefit obligation  14  10,111,000  12,794,000
Contract Liabilities  15  297,383,179  296,573,272
Deferred income  16  35,219,109  37,075,099
Deferred tax  17  117,076,649  90,014,139
  978,100,692  952,220,680
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables  18  211,056,229  254,463,534
Other financial liabilities  13  45,942,002  33,755,333
Lease liabilities*  6  4,826,491  4,972,780
Contract liabilities  15  11,715,946  11,289,184
Deferred income  16  1,855,990  1,450,000
Bank overdraft  11  16,723,571  -
  292,120,229  305,930,831
Total liabilities   1,270,220,921  1,258,151,511
Total equity and liabilities   2,043,363,134  1,998,746,044

*The lease liability in 2019 relates to finance leases accounted for under IAS 17 while the 2020 balance relates to lease liabilities 
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 16.
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STATEMENT OF 
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER 
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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  2020  2019
 Note(s)  N$  N$

Revenue  19  1,375,003,303  1,397,463,548
Cost of sales  20  (1,075,948,972)  (1,102,511,812)
Gross profit   299,054,331  294,951,736
Other operating income  21  3,201,901  20,375,374
Movement in credit loss allowances  8  (5,942,438)  1,377,487
Other operating expenses   (228,136,509)  (222,531,608)
Operating profit  22  68,177,285  94,172,989
Interest income  23  11,749,577  7,616,075
Interest expense  24  (22,416,071)  (26,592,529)
Profit before taxation   57,510,791  75,196,535
Taxation  25  (26,390,702) (31,529,065)
Profit for the year   31,120,089  43,667,470

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans   2,991,000  -
Tax related to actuarial gain on defined benefit plans  25  (957,120)  -
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   2,033,880  -
Total comprehensive income for the year   33,153,969  43,667,470
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ACCOUNTING POLICIES
  2020  2019
 Note(s)  N$  N$

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash generated from operations  26  133,125,350  70,683,812
Interest received  26  6,951,445  5,740,971
Tax refund received   4,136,144  -
Net cash from operating activities   144,212,939  76,424,783

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment  27  (16,263,246)  (60,408,984)
Sale of property, plant and equipment  27  -  378,040
Refund intangible assets  27  -  21,111,236
Purchase of financial assets   (94,420,778)  (32,094,806)
Net cash from investing activities   (110,684,024)  (71,014,514)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from long-term loans   5,380,200  85,837,333
Repayment of long-term loans   (33,426,711)  (24,956,580)
Interest paid*  26  (21,128,877)  (23,799,502)
Lease liability payments**  27  (6,378,908)  (4,103,395)
Net cash from financing activities   (55,554,296)  32,977,856

Total cash movement for the year   (22,025,381)  38,388,125
Cash at the beginning of the year   69,170,487  30,782,362
Total cash at end of the year  11  47,145,106  69,170,487

*Interest paid was reclassified from cash flows from operating activities to financing activities to correctly account for it.
**The lease liability payments for the 2019 financial year include finance leases accounted for under IAS 17 while the 2020 lease liability 
payments include lease liabilities as required by IFRS 16.

1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of 
these annual financial statements are set out below.

1.1 Basis of preparation
The annual financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”) and the Namibian Companies Act, 2004 (Act No. 
28 of 2004). The annual financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for accounting 
for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, and 
incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. 
The annual financial statements are presented in Namibia 
Dollar.
The company has consistently applied the accounting policies 
to all periods presented in these annual financial statements, 
except for the application of new or revised standards and 
interpretations implemented during the year. The nature and 
effect of new standards and interpretations are presented in 
note 2.
The annual financial statements provide comparative 
information in respect of the previous period.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of 
estimation uncertainty
The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity 
with the International Financial Reporting Standards requires 
management, from time to time, to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income 
and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions 
are based on experience and various other factors that are 
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
periods affected.
In particular, the company identified the following areas 
where significant judgements, estimates and assumptions 
are required. These include:
(i)  Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The critical judgements made by management in applying 
accounting policies, apart from those involving estimations, 
that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the annual financial statements, are outlined 
as follows:
Accounting for Arandis Plant
The Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) between Erongo 

RED (Proprietary) Limited and OLC Arandis Solar Energy 
(Proprietary) Limited (“OLC Arandis”) was the first of its kind 
to be entered into by the former. The determination of the 
correct accounting treatment for the contract was complex 
and required management to make significant judgements 
around which IFRS is applicable to the PPA. The following 
literature was considered:
• IAS 38, Intangible assets;
• IFRS 16, Leases;
• IFRIC 4, Determining whether an arrangement contains 

a lease;
• IAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition and 

measurement; and
• Technical guidance available on the accounting for PPAs.
Key judgement management considered was whether 
Erongo RED had control over the Arandis power plant or not, 
i.e. whether substantially all the risks and rewards associated 
with ownership of the Arandis power plant transfer to the 
company or not.
Management determined that the company does not have 
control over the Arandis power plant and thus substantially 
all the risks and rewards associated with ownership of the 
power plant do not transfer to the company.
As a result, management accounted for the PPA as an 
executory contract, i.e. recognise the cost of purchasing 
electricity from the PPA as cost of sales in the statement of 
profit and loss and other comprehensive income. 
Prepayments for bulk upgrades
The company recognises prepayments relating to bulk 
upgrades as current or non-current assets, depending on 
the expected completion date of the upgrade. These are 
capitalised as intangible assets once the upgrades are 
completed.
The company applied judgement in determination of 
the classification of prepayments made to NamPower 
for the bulk upgrades. In carrying out this exercise, the 
expected completion dates of the upgrades were taken 
into consideration. The company determined that these 
prepayments will be classified under current or non-current 
assets, based on the expected time of completion of the 
upgrades. Upgrades expected to be completed within 12 
months are classified as current and upgrades expected to 
be completed past 12 months are classified as non-current. 
Invoices received from NamPower for bulk upgrades 
outstanding at year end are accounted for as prepayments. 
The company also receives income in advance from 
customers for network connections. The upfront payments 
and income received in advance are classified as either 
non-current or current liabilities based on the duration of the 
period in which they are expected to realise.
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1.2 Significant judgements and sources of 
estimation uncertainty (continued)
Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received 
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer 
before the company transfers the related goods or services. 
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the 
company performs under the contract (i.e. transfers control 
of the related goods or services to the customer).
The company applied judgement in determination of the 
period for the amortisation of deferred income, which is the 
useful life of the asset estimated and 30 years for pre-IFRS 
15 donated assets. 
Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal 
and termination options – Company as lessee 
The company determines the lease term as the non-
cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods 
covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably 
certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option 
to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 
exercised.
The company has several lease contracts that include 
extension and termination options. The company applies 
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain 
whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate 
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create 
an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal 
or termination. After the commencement date, the company 
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or 
change in circumstances that is within its control and affects 
its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew 
or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold 
improvements or significant customisation to the leased 
asset).
The company included the renewal period as part of the 
lease term for leases of property and office equipment with 
shorter non-cancellable periods (i.e., 3 to 5 years). The 
company typically exercises its option to renew for these 
leases because there will be a significant negative effect on 
operations if a replacement asset is not readily available. 
The renewal periods for leases of property with longer non-
cancellable periods (i.e., 5 to 10 years) are not included as 
part of the lease term as these are not reasonably certain to 
be exercised.
Determination of the incremental borrowing rate
The company cannot readily determine the interest rate 
implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental 
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is 
the rate of interest that the company would have to pay to 
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the 
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the 
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The 
IBR therefore reflects what the company would have to pay, 
which requires estimation when no observable rates are 

available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms 
and conditions of the lease. The company estimates the IBR 
using observable inputs when available and is required to 
make certain entity-specific estimates.
The company’s approach is premised on key factors relevant 
for determining an IBR and these are:
• Lease term
• Economic environment – currency of the environment
• Security – secured borrowing
• What the lessee entity pays to borrow
As a result, the IBR is made up of a benchmark rate and 
a credit spread. The benchmark rate is influenced by the 
economic environment and lease term while the spread is 
driven by all the other factors above. These inputs are either 
directly observed, or bootstrapped from observable data.
(ii) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Expected credit losses of trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
The expected credit losses (ECL) were calculated on trade 
receivables in accordance with IFRS 9. The ECL for trade 
receivables was calculated using the Provision Matrix 
approach. The loss rates are calibrated based on historical 
credit loss experiences, considering both the time value of 
money, and further adjusted for forward looking information.
Historical loss rates are calculated as a product of the monthly 
roll rates across buckets using real outstanding debtors, 
considering the time value of money component. Historical 
loss rates are then adjusted for forward looking information to 
derive the expected credit loss as at the measurement date.
The company applied the Moody’s adjustment factor to 
loss rates based on the 12-month global speculative grade 
default rate baseline forecast for 30 June 2021 to incorporate 
the impact of COVID-19 on the receivables for the business, 
shareholder and government segments.
Other receivables
The ECL were calculated on other receivables in accordance 
with IFRS 9. The ECL for other receivables was calculated as 
a sum of the time value of money loss (TVM), probability of 
default (PD) and exposure at default.
The time value of money loss was calculated using an 
estimate of when proceeds are expected to be received and 
the prevailing prime rate as at the measurement date as the 
proxy for the interest rate.
The Moody’s one-year default rate forecasts by industry were 
used to measure the 12-month ECL and a lifetime PD was 
applied to the profit share receivable.
The information about the expected credit losses on the 
company’s trade receivables and other receivables is 
disclosed in note 8.

1.2 Significant judgements and sources of 
estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment testing for non-financial assets
The company reviews and tests the carrying value of assets 
when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped 
at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are largely 
independent of cash flows of other assets and liabilities. If 
there are indications that assets may be impaired, estimates 
are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of 
assets. They are significantly affected by a number of factors, 
including production estimates, technical and commercial 
obsolescence and expected wear and tear, together with 
economic factors such as exchange rates and inflationary 
interest.
Residual values and useful lives of intangible assets and 
property, plant and equipment
Residual value of items of property, plant and equipment 
is the estimated amount that would currently be obtained 
from the disposal of the property, plant and equipment after 
deducting the estimated costs of disposal if the property, 
plant and equipment were already of the age and in the 
condition expected at the end of its useful life. The useful 
lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 
are determined based on historical factors with regard to 
similar items of property, plant and equipment and intangible 
assets that have been written off in full but are still in use.
The intangible assets have a finite useful life, are not traded in 
an active market, and thus the residual value of the intangible 
assets is zero.
Post employment benefits
An actuarial valuation is done every second year for severance 
pay. Assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. An 
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that 
may differ from actual developments in the future. These 
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary 
increases and mortality rates.
The present value of the severance pay liability depends on a 
number of factors that are determined by management using 
a number of assumptions. Any change in these assumptions 
will impact the carrying amount of the liability.
Further details about the severance pay are provided in note 
14.
Deferred tax assets
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income 
taxes due to the complexity of relevant legislation.
The company recognises the net future tax benefit related 
to deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that 
the deductible temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future. Assessing the recoverability of deferred 
tax assets requires the company to make significant estimates 
related to expectation of future taxable income. Estimates 
of future taxable income are based on forecast cash flows 

from operations and the application of existing tax laws. To 
the extent that future cash flows and taxable income differ 
significantly from estimates, the ability of the company to 
realise the net deferred tax assets recorded at the balance 
sheet date could be impacted.

1.3 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets which the 
company holds for its own use or for rental to others and which 
are expected to be used for more than one year.
An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as 
an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the company, and the cost 
of the item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 
Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable 
to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the 
capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets.
Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, 
additions to, or replacements of parts of, property, plant and 
equipment are capitalised if it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the 
company and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day 
servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the year in which 
they are incurred.
Property, plant and equipment is subsequently stated at 
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated 
impairment losses.
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have 
been assessed as follows:
Item Depreciation Average
 method useful life
Buildings  Straight line  25 - 50 years
Plant and machinery  Straight line  5 - 30 years
Motor vehicles  Straight line  5 - 15 years
Office and computer 
equipment  Straight line  5 - 30 years
Distribution 
network assets  Straight line  5 - 50 years

Items of spare parts, standby equipment and servicing 
equipment are disclosed as strategic inventory. Major spare 
parts and standby equipment which are expected to be used 
for more than one year are included in property, plant and 
equipment. In addition, spare parts and standby equipment 
which can only be used in connection with an item of property, 
plant and equipment are accounted for as property, plant and 
equipment.
Major spare parts are not depreciated. Spare parts and 
servicing equipment are recognised in profit or loss as they 
are consumed.
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1.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are 
recognised as property, plant and equipment if they meet the 
definition of property, plant and equipment.
Land, strategic inventory and capital work-in-progress are not 
depreciated. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to 
their estimated residual value.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of 
each asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change 
is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting 
estimate. Further details on the prospective change are 
presented in note 4.
Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a 
cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit 
or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount of another 
asset.
Impairment tests are performed on property, plant and 
equipment when there is an indicator that they may be 
impaired. When the carrying amount of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is assessed to be higher than the 
estimated recoverable amount, an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying 
amount in line with the recoverable amount.
Gains or losses arising from the derecognition of an item 
of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss 
when the item is derecognised. Gains or losses arising from 
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment 
is determined as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. An 
asset’s carrying amount is immediately written down to its 
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater 
than its estimated recoverable amount.
A change in cost of property, plant and equipment arising from 
variable and contingent consideration unknown at the time of 
capitalising an asset is accounted for as a change in estimate 
under IAS 8. The cost of the property, plant and equipment is 
adjusted with the capitalised costs and depreciated over the 
remaining useful life of the asset.

1.4 Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits 

that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity; and
• the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Intangible assets are carried at cost, less any accumulated 
amortisation and any impairment losses.

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
Right-of-use asset
The company made upfront payments to acquire a right to 
use the capacity of NamPower installed assets to supply 
electricity. The right-of-use has been granted for a period of 
10 years by NamPower with the option of renewal at the end 
of this period. The right-of-use may be renewed at a cost or 
no cost as determined by NamPower. As a result, this right-
of-use is assessed as having a finite useful life.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, 
on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item  Depreciation  Average 
 method useful life
Right-of-use  Straight line  10 years
A change in cost of intangibles arising from variable and 
contingent consideration not known at the time of capitalising 
the intangible asset is accounted for as a change in estimate 
under IAS 8. The cost of the intangible asset is adjusted with 
the new cost and amortised over the remaining useful life of 
the intangible asset.

1.5 Prepayments
The company recognises prepayments relating to bulk 
upgrades as current or non-current assets depending on 
the expected completion date of the upgrade. These are 
capitalised as intangible assets once the upgrades are 
completed. Invoices received for bulk upgrades outstanding 
at year end are accounted for as prepayment assets.
The upfront payments are classified as either non-current, or 
current, based on the duration of the period in which they are 
expected to realise.

1.6 Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in 
the company’s statement of financial position when the 
company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured 
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to, or deducted 
from, the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction 
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

1.6 Financial instruments (continued) 
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are 
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Classification
The classification of financial assets is dependent on the 
‘business model’ test and ‘contractual cash flow’ test to 
determine whether they are measured at fair value or 
amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are 
measured subsequently at amortised cost:
• The financial asset is held within a business model whose 

objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect 
contractual cash flows; and

• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured 
subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial 
liabilities, or as equity, in accordance with the substance 
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument.
Subsequent measurement
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently 
in their entirety at either amortised cost, or fair value.
All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating 
interest income/expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts 
estimated future cash receipts/payments (including all fees 
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the 
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums 
or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through 
the expected life of the financial instrument, or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of 
the financial instrument on initial recognition.
The amortised cost of a financial instrument is the amount 
at which the financial instrument is measured at initial 
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the 
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method 
of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity 
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. The gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial 
asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest 
method. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective 
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. 
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included 
in the ‘interest income’ line item (note 23).

(ii) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being 
measured at amortised cost are measured at FVTPL. 
Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at 
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains 
or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent that they 
are not part of a hedging relationship. The net gain or loss 
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest 
earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other 
gains and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined in the 
manner described in note 28.
(iii) Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently 
measured using the effective interest method and are subject 
to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or 
loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 
The impairment requirement is to recognise lifetime expected 
credit losses for all financial instruments for which there have 
been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition 
— whether assessed on an individual or collective basis — 
considering all reasonable and supportable information, 
including that which is forward-looking. If, at the reporting 
date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not 
increased significantly since initial recognition, an entity shall 
measure the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an 
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses unless the 
financial asset was purchased or originated credit-impaired.
(iv) Measurement and recognition of expected credit 
losses
The measurement of expected credit losses is a function 
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the 
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure 
at default. At each reporting date an entity shall measure the 
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal 
to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that 
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial 
recognition.
For trade receivables, an entity shall always measure the 
loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit 
losses. The entity uses the provision matrix as practical 
expedients when measuring expected credit losses.
These simplified approaches should consider historical credit 
loss experience and the time value of money.
Derecognition of financial instruments
The company derecognises a financial asset only when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another 
entity. The difference between the asset’s carrying amount 
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is 
recognised in profit or loss.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued) 
The company derecognises financial liabilities when, and 
only when, the company’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the 
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss 
as a movement in credit loss allowance (note 8).
Definition of default
For purposes of internal credit risk management, the company 
considers that a default event has occurred if there is either 
a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty, or if 
internal or external information indicates that the counterparty 
is unlikely to pay its creditors in full (without taking collateral 
into account).
Irrespective of the above analysis, the company considers 
that default has occurred when a receivable exceeds 
the prescription period unless there is reasonable and 
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging 
default criterion is more appropriate.
Write off policy
The company writes off a receivable when there is information 
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty 
and that there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g., when 
the counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has 
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Receivables written 
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under the 
company recovery procedures, considering legal advice 
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in 
profit or loss. In addition, inactive debtors less than N$100 
are automatically written off.

1.7 Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent 
unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid 
in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount 
due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability 
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in 
a transaction which, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither accounting profit, nor taxable profit / (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is 
not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction which, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit 
/ (tax loss).
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset 

is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and 
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by 
the end of the reporting period. 
Income tax expenses
Current tax and deferred taxes are recognised in the same 
component of total comprehensive income or equity as the 
transaction or other event that resulted in the tax expense.
Value added tax
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 
Value added tax (VAT), except:
• When the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or 

services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 
which case, the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as 
applicable; and

• When receivables and payables are stated with the amount 
of VAT included. The net amount of VAT recoverable from, 
or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part 
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial 
position.

1.8 Leases - Current year (in terms of IFRS 16 
from 1 July 2019)
The company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a 
lease at the inception of the contract. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for 
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
In circumstances where the determination of whether the 
contract is or contains a lease requires significant judgement, 
the relevant disclosures are provided in the significant 
judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty section of 
the accounting policies.
Company as lessee
The company applies a single recognition and measurement 
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and 
leases of low-value assets. The company recognises lease 
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
Lease liability
At the commencement date of the lease, the company 
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease 
liability comprise the following:
• fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed 

payments, less any lease incentives;
• variable lease payments that depend on an index or 

rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the 
commencement date;

• the amount expected to be payable by the company under 
residual value guarantees;

1.8 Leases - Current year (in terms of IFRS 16 
from 1 July 2019) (continued)
• the exercise price of purchase options, if the company is 

reasonably certain to exercise the option;
• lease payments in an optional renewal period if the 

company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension 
option; and

• penalties for early termination of a lease, if the lease term 
reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the lease.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not 
included in the measurement of the lease liability (or right-
of-use asset). The related payments are recognised as an 
expense in the period incurred and are included in operating 
expenses (note 6).
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the 
company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 
the lease is not readily determinable. Refer to the significant 
judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty section of 
these accounting policies (note 1.2).
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing 
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability 
(using the effective interest method) and by reducing the 
carrying amount to reflect lease payments made. Interest 
charged on the lease liability is included in interest expense 
(note 24).
The lease liability is presented as a separate line item on the 
statement of financial position.
The company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a 
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) 
when:
• there has been a change to the lease term, in which case 

the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised 
lease payments using a revised discount rate;

• there has been a change in the assessment of whether 
the company will exercise a purchase, termination or 
extension option, in which case the lease liability is 
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments 
using a revised discount rate;

• there has been a change to the lease payments due to 
a change in an index or a rate, in which case the lease 
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease 
payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease 
payments change is due to a change in a floating interest 
rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used);

• there has been a change in expected payment under a 
residual value guarantee, in which case the lease liability 
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments 
using the initial discount rate; and

• a lease contract has been modified and the lease 
modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in 
which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting 
the revised payments using a revised discount rate.

When the lease liability is remeasured, a corresponding 
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use 
asset, or is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an operating expense (note 
22) on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Right-of-use assets
The company recognises right-of-use assets at the 
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets 
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation, 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of 
lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the following:
• the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability;
• any lease payments made at or before the commencement 

date;
• any initial direct costs incurred;
• any estimated costs to dismantle and remove the 

underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the 
site on which it is located, when the company incurs an 
obligation to do so, unless these costs are incurred to 
produce inventories; and

• less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful 
lives of the assets, as follows:
• Property: 2 to 5 years;
• Motor vehicles: 6 to 10 years; and
• Office equipment: 3 to 5 years.
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company 
at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise 
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the 
estimated useful life of the asset. Depreciation starts at the 
commencement date of a lease.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of 
each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change 
is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting 
estimate.
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer 
to note 1.2 Impairment testing for non-financial assets.
Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on 
the statement of financial position.
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1.9 Leases: IAS 17 comparatives for periods 
before 1 July 2019
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers 
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not 
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership.
Finance leases – Lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the 
statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of 
the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to 
the lessor is included in the statement of financial position as 
a finance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of 
the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in 
the lease.
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance 
of the liability.
Operating leases – Lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference 
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the 
contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease 
asset. This liability is not discounted.

1.10 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, 
construction or production of an asset that requires a 
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or 
sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other 
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they 
occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that 
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

1.11 Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to the company’s shareholders are 
recognised in the annual financial statements in the period 
in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders of 
the company.

1.12 Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual 
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

1.13 Development reserve
At inception, the company’s shareholders provided start-up 
cash, infrastructure and other assets in return for a share of 
the N$12.5 million issued share capital. The excess of the 
assets transferred over the share capital provided created 
the development reserve.

1.14 Non-distributable reserve
The non-distributable reserve was created to set aside the 
amount included in the revenue requirement submitted for 
tariff approval to the Electricity Control Board so as to raise 
funds for the NamPower portion of bulk upgrades initiated 
by the company. The amount approved annually as part 
of the tariff application to the ECB for specific upgrades is 
transferred to the reserve. Once a bulk upgrade has been 
completed and its associated right-of-use period begins, 
the portion of the reserve which relates to that upgrade is 
realised over the term that the intangible asset is amortised.

1.15 Land development reserve
In terms of the approved Electricity Infrastructure Development 
Policy, all profits realised on sale of land developments are 
transferred to the land development reserve for further 
infrastructure development in the region.

1.16 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits (those payable 
within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid 
vacation leave and sick leave bonuses, and non-monetary 
benefits such as medical care) are recognised in the period in 
which the service is rendered and are not discounted.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised 
as an expense as the employees render services that 
increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating 
absences, when the absence occurs. 
The expected cost of performance bonus payments 
is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or 
constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of 
past performance.
Defined contribution plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans 
are charged as an expense as they fall due. The expense 
is recognised in the period in which the service is rendered. 
The liability is recognised to the extent that contributions 
are outstanding and where the liability is not expected to be 
settled within 12 months after the end of the reporting period, 
it shall be discounted.
Defined benefit plans
The company operates a severance pay benefit plan; these 
benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing the benefit under 

1.16 Employee benefits (continued)
the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected 
unit credit method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, 
the effect of the asset ceiling and excluding amounts included 
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability, are recognised 
immediately in the statement of financial position with a 
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through 
OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are 
not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the 
earlier of the date of the plan amendment or curtailment and 
the date that the company recognises related restructuring 
cost.
Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent 
that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise 
amortised on a straight line basis over the average period 
until the amended benefits become vested.
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the 
net defined benefit liability or asset. The company recognises 
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation 
under administration expenses in the statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income; service costs 
comprising current service costs, past service costs, gains 
and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements and 
net interest expense or income.
Reliance is placed on expert valuation.

1.17 Government grants
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable 
assurance that:
• the company will comply with the conditions attaching to 

them; and
• the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised as income over the 
periods necessary to match them with the related costs that 
they are intended to compensate.
A government grant that becomes receivable as compensation 
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of 
giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future 
related costs is recognised as income of the period in which 
it becomes receivable.
Government grants relating to electrification assets are 
included in the Statement of Financial Position as deferred 
income and are credited to profit or loss in revenue on a 
straightline basis over the expected useful lives of the related 
assets.
Grants related to income are presented as a credit in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first 
against any un-amortised deferred credit set up in respect 
of the grant. To the extent that the repayment exceeds any 

such deferred credit, or where no deferred credit exists, the 
repayment is recognised immediately as an expense.
Repayment of a grant related to an asset is recorded by 
increasing the carrying amount of the asset or reducing 
the deferred income balance by the amount repayable. 
The cumulative additional depreciation that would have 
been recognised to date as an expense in the absence 
of the grant is recognised immediately as an expense.

1.18 Transfer of property, plant and equipment 
from customers
The company recognises transfer of property, plant and 
equipment from customers in accordance with IAS 16 at the 
fair value of the asset transferred on the date of transfer. The 
fair value of the asset transferred is recorded as deferred 
revenue; classified as a contract liability. The deferred 
revenue is recognised as revenue over the useful life of the 
asset transferred.

1.19 Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue comprises of electricity sales and other associated 
services.
Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which 
the company expects to be entitled in a contract with a 
customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties. Electricity rates and service charges are agreed 
upfront with the customer; these are updated and published 
annually. Revenue is adjusted for the fair value of non-cash 
consideration for assets transferred from customers.
Electricity sales - Post-paid
Revenue is recognised overtime as electricity is consumed 
by the customer.
Electricity sales - Pre-paid
The company receives advance payments from customers 
for sale of pre-paid electricity. The length of time is limited 
to a month. Given that the electricity purchased is less than 
a month, the company applies the practical expedient for 
short-term advances received from customers. That is, the 
promised amount of the consideration not adjusted for the 
effects of a significant financing component if the period 
between the transfer of the promised goods or service is one 
year or less.
Revenue is recognised at a point in time when electricity is 
consumed by the customer.
Other associated services
Other associated service revenue comprises of network 
contributions, consumer connections and other service charges.
Service revenue is recognised at a point in time, once the 
project is completed and the rewards have transferred to the 
customer.
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1.19 Revenue from contracts with customers 
(continued)
Amortisation of deferred revenue - Donated assets
The transfers of assets from customers comprise of assets 
constructed by customers and transferred to the company. 
The Technical Rules Electricity Act, 2007 states that assets 
will be transferred in order to connect the customer to the 
company’s electricity network system to allow for the supply 
of electricity.
The company recognises assets transferred by customers as 
an item of property, plant and equipment at the fair value of 
the asset transferred on the date of transfer. The fair value of 
the asset transferred is recognised as deferred revenue, as it 
represents a contract liability.
Non-cash consideration
The company does not allow non-cash consideration for the 
supply of electricity sales, and other associated services.
Variable consideration
The company does not allow variable consideration for 
electricity sales, and other associated services.
Allocation of amounts to performance obligations
The company considers whether there are other promises 
in the contract that are separate performance obligations to 
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.
The electricity rates and service charges are agreed upfront 
with the customer; these are updated and published annually 
in a tariff booklet. The transaction price is fixed.
The company has elected the practical expedient not to 
allocate transaction price to performance obligations that are 
unsatisfied where the duration of the underlying contract is 
one year or less.
Significant financing component
The company receives advance payments from customers 
for network contribution. The service is normally provided 
within 12 months from receiving payment. In certain instances 
where it is more than 12 months, the timing is normally at the 
customer’s discretion as the customer first needs to install 
the necessary infrastructure before the network connection 
can be done. As such, there is no significant financing 
component.
Other revenue items do not contain a significant financing 
component as the timing of payments does not provide the 
customers with the significant benefit of finance, as payments 
are either due immediately or within 30 days after the invoice 
date.
The company applies the practical expedient for short-term 
advances received from customers. That is, the promised 
amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a 
significant financing component if the period between the 

transfer of the promised good or service and the payment is 
one year or less.
Contract liabilities
IFRS 15 uses the term “contract liability” to describe what 
might be more commonly known as deferred revenue; 
however, the standard does not prohibit an entity from using 
alternative descriptions.
The following table provides information about the nature 
and timing of the satisfaction of performance obligations 
in contracts with customers, including significant payment 
terms, and the related revenue recognition policies.

1.19 Revenue from contracts with customers 
(continued)

ACCOUNTING POLICIESACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue Stream Nature and timing of satisfaction of performance 
obligation, including payment terms

Revenue recognition in terms of IFRS 15

Electricity sales - 
Post-paid

Revenue is earned from the sale of electricity to 
customers in advance. The performance obligation 
is settled over time as electricity is provided to the 
customer. The customers pay for electricity after 
consumption within 30 days after invoice date.
Other services, such as late payment, reconnection, 
connection, meter testing etc. are recognised once 
completed.
The transaction price refers to the price per unit for 
electricity and price per other service.
No significant financing component exists for any of the 
services provided.

Revenue is recognised once the 
ownership of the goods or services 
is transferred and is measured at the 
transaction price identified in the contract.

Electricity sales - 
Pre-paid

Revenue is generated from the sale of pre-paid 
electricity units. The performance obligation is settled 
at a point in time when the significant rewards of 
ownership of the electricity passed to the customer at 
payment. The transaction price refers to the price per 
unit of electricity.

Revenue is recognised once the 
ownership of the goods or services 
is transferred and measured at the 
transaction price identified in the contract.

Network 
contributions and 
cost estimates

Revenue is earned through connection projects and 
extensions performed by the company.
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time 
when the significant rewards of ownership of the goods 
and services passed to the customer at completion of 
the project.

Revenue is recognised once the 
ownership of the goods or services 
transferred and measured at the 
transaction price identified in the contract 
(the amount the entity expects to be 
entitled to).

Revenue from
transfers from
customers

Transfers from customer income relates to the fair 
value of the assets transferred to the company by the 
developers and or municipalities net of value added 
tax and other rebates. Performance obligations are 
satisfied over time as the assets are maintained for the 
supply of electricity to the end users.

The performance obligations in these 
arrangements are satisfied over time. 
Revenue is recognised over time as 
the company uses the asset to supply 
electricity to the end user. The transaction 
price is determined based on the fair 
value of the asset and recorded as a 
contract liability. Revenue is recognised 
over a period not longer than the useful 
life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Change in accounting policies and 
disclosures
The company applied IFRS 16 Leases for the first time. The 
nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of 
this new accounting standard is described below.
Several other amendments and interpretations apply 
for the first time in 2020, but do not have an impact on 
the consolidated financial statements of the company. 
The company has not early adopted any standards, 
interpretations or amendments that have been issued but 
are not yet effective.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining 
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 
Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the 
Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of 
a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
leases and requires lessees to recognise most leases on 
the balance sheet.
The company adopted IFRS 16 using the modified 
retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial 
application of 1 July 2019. Under this method, the standard 
is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of 
initially applying the standard recognised at the date of 
initial application.
The company elected to use the transition practical expedient 
to not reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease at 1 
July 2020. Instead, the company applied the standard only to 
contracts that were previously identified as leases applying 
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial application.
The effect of adopting IFRS 16 as at 1 July 2019 (increase / 
(decrease)) is, as follows:

The company has lease contracts for various items of 
property, motor vehicles and office equipment. Before the 
adoption of IFRS 16, the company classified each of its 
leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance 
lease, or an operating lease. Refer to note 1.8 Leases for 
the accounting policy prior to 1 July 2020. The standard 
provides specific transition requirements and practical 
expedients, which have been applied by the company.

Leases where company is lessee
Leases previously accounted for as finance leases
For leases previously classified as finance leases, the 
company did not change the initial carrying amounts 
of recognised assets and liabilities at the date of initial 
application. The right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 
equal the lease assets and liabilities recognised under IAS 
17. The requirements of IFRS 16 were applied to these 
leases from 1 July 2019.
Leases previously accounted for as operating leases
The company elected to adopt IFRS 16 in accordance with 
Appendix C paragraph 8 b i) whereby the lease liability at 
the date of adoption is measured as the present value of 
the remaining lease payments, discounted using lessee’s 
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application, 
and a right of use asset is recognised and measured at the 
carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the 
commencement date of the lease.

2. Change in accounting policies and 
disclosures (continued) 
The standard provides various practical expedients for this 
transition approach, all of which were applied:
• Exemption of short-term leases;
• Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases;
• Exclusion of initial direct costs from measurement of the 

ROU asset;
• Reliance on the assessment whether leases are onerous;
• Combining lease and non-lease components; and
• Use of hindsight in determining the lease term.
The lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 can be reconciled to 
the operating lease commitments as of 30 June 2019, as 
follows:

IFRIC 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation addresses the accounting for income 
taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the 
application of IAS 12 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes 
or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically 
include requirements relating to interest and penalties 
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation 
specifically addresses the following:
• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments 

separately;
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of 

tax treatments by taxation authorities;
• How an entity determines taxable profit / (tax loss), tax 

bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; 
and

• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
If it is probable that a tax authority will accept the treatment, 
the entity should determine its tax position consistently with 
the tax treatment used or planned to be used in its income 
tax filings. Otherwise, the entity should reflect the effect of 

uncertainty in determining its tax position by estimating the tax 
payable / (receivable), using either the most likely amount or 
the expected value method.
The company assessed whether the interpretation had an 
impact on its financial statements. There were no unusual and 
significant transactions that are likely to lead to an uncertain 
tax position in the current year. The standard did not have an 
impact on the company’s financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with 
Negative Compensation
Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured at 
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, provided that the contractual cash flows are ‘solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion) and the instrument is held 
within the appropriate business model for that classification. 
The amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes 
the SPPI criterion regardless of an event or circumstance that 
causes the early termination of the contract and irrespective of 
which party pays or receives reasonable compensation for the 
early termination of the contract.

17,382,878
(13,349,834)

4,033,044

(606,289)

(7,100,811)
10,814,072

(285,312)
3,427,949

(4,972,780)
6,184,164
4,033,044

Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019    7,156,433
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019    9.76%
Discounted operating lease commitments as at 1 July 2019    5,614,815
Less:
Commitments relating to short-term leases    (455,224)
Commitments relating to variable leases    (72,629)
Terminations not included in operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019   (162,317)
Add:
Commitments relating to leases previously classified as finance leases   12,073,591
Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019    16,998,236

Statement of Financial Position

Assets
Right-of-use assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Total assets 

Equity
Retained earnings 

Non-current liabilities
Finance lease liabilities 
Lease liability
Deferred tax  
 

Current liabilities
Finance lease liabilities
Lease liability 
Total equity and liabilities
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2. Change in accounting policies and 
disclosures (continued) 
These amendments had no impact on the annual financial 
statements of the company.
Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment, Curtailment or 
Settlement
The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting when a plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs during a reporting 
period. The amendments specify that when a plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement occurs during the annual reporting 
period, an entity is required to determine the current service 
cost for the remainder of the period after the plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions 
used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability / (asset) 
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan 
assets after that event. An entity is also required to determine 
the net interest for the remainder of the period after the plan 
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the net defined 
benefit liability / (asset) reflecting the benefits offered under the 
plan and the plan assets after that event, and the discount rate 
used to remeasure that net defined benefit liability / (asset).
These amendments did not have an impact on the annual 
financial statements of the company as there are were no 
financial assets with prepayment features.
IAS 12: Income Taxes
The amendments clarify that the income tax consequences 
of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions 
or events that generated distributable profits than to 
distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the 
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other 
comprehensive income or equity according to where it originally 

recognised those past transactions or events. An entity applies 
the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted. When 
the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the 
income tax consequences of dividends recognised on or after 
the beginning of the earliest comparative period.
These amendments did not have an impact on the annual 
financial statements of the company, as there is no dividend 
tax in Namibia.
IAS 23: Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general 
borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a 
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary 
to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete. 
The entity applies the amendments to borrowing costs incurred 
on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which 
the entity first applies those amendments. An entity applies 
those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019, with early application permitted.
Since the company’s current practice is in line with these 
amendments, the amendments did not have an impact on the 
annual financial statements of the company.

3. Standards and interpretations not yet 
effective
The company has chosen not to early adopt the following 
standards and interpretations, which have been published 
and are mandatory for the company’s accounting periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2020 or later periods:

3. Standards and interpretations not yet 
effective (continued)
The company intends to adopt these new and amended 
standards and interpretations, if applicable, when they 
become effective.
The company is in the process of evaluating the detailed 
requirements of the standards to assess the impact on the 
financial statements.
Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as 
Current or Non-current
In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to 
paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements 
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The 
amendments clarify:
• What is meant by a right to defer settlement;
• That a right to defer must exist at the end of the 

reporting period;
• That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an 

entity will exercise its deferral right; and
• That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible 

liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of 
a liability not impact its classification.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and must be applied 
retrospectively. The company is currently assessing the 
impact the amendments will have on current practice and 
whether existing loan agreements may require renegotiation.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before 
Intended Use – Amendments to IAS 16
In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment 
— Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits entities 
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and 
equipment, any proceeds from selling items produced while 
bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary 
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds 
from selling such items, and the costs of producing those 
items, in profit or loss.
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be applied 
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment 
made available for use on or after the beginning of the 
earliest period presented when the entity first applies the 
amendment.
The amendments will not have an impact on the annual 
financial statements of the company. The company’s current 
practice is in line with these amendments.
Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract – 

Amendments to IAS 37
In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to IAS 37 
to specify which costs an entity needs to include when 
assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-making. 
The amendments apply a “directly related cost approach”. 
The costs that relate directly to a contract to provide goods 
or services include both incremental costs and an allocation 
of costs directly related to contract activities. General and 
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and 
are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the 
counterparty under the contract.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
The company will apply these amendments to contracts for 
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning 
of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the 
amendments.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Fees in the ’10 per cent’ 
test for derecognition of financial liabilities
As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS 
standards process, the IASB issued an amendment to 
IFRS 9. The amendment clarifies that the fees that an 
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a 
new or modified financial liability are substantially different 
from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees 
include only those paid or received between the borrower 
and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the 
borrower, or lender, on the other’s behalf. An entity applies 
the amendment to financial liabilities that are modified or 
exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting 
period in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption 
permitted.
The company will apply the amendments to financial 
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after the 
beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity 
first applies the amendment. The amendments are not 
expected to have a material impact on the company.

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Standard / Interpretation:         Effective date:
           Years beginning 
           on or after
• Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current    01 January 2023
• Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before intended use - Amendments to IAS 16  01 January 2022
• Onerous Contracts – Costs of Fulfilling a Contract – Amendments to IAS 37   01 January 2022
• IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Fees in ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities 01 January 2022
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4. Property, plant and equipment 4. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

     2020
    Cost  Accumulated Carrying
     depreciation value
Land     22,107,557  -  22,107,557
Buildings     145,912,483  (13,916,912)  131,995,571
Plant and machinery     17,679,623  (9,983,116)  7,696,507
Motor vehicles     15,851,688  (8,780,721)  7,070,967
Office and computer equipment     98,174,208  (45,649,599)  52,524,609
Distribution network     1,315,715,663  (516,891,114)  798,824,549
Strategic inventory     39,834,813  -  39,834,813
Capital - Work in progress     4,489,849  -  4,489,849
Total     1,659,765,884  (595,221,462)  1,064,544,422

     2019
    Cost  Accumulated Carrying
     depreciation value
Land     22,107,557  -  22,107,557
Buildings     145,870,483  (11,029,589)  134,840,894
Plant and machinery     16,759,848  (9,457,257)  7,302,591
Motor vehicles     33,746,907  (12,170,169)  21,576,738
Office and computer equipment     94,785,166  (38,571,887)  56,213,279
Distribution network     1,274,026,659  (486,608,642)  787,418,017
Strategic inventory     41,992,035  -  41,992,035
Capital - Work in progress     22,911,107  -  22,911,107
Total     1,652,199,762  (557,837,544)  1,094,362,218

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2020
 Opening Additions Write-off Transfers Depreciation Total
 balance

Land  22,107,557  -  -  -  -  22,107,557
Buildings  134,840,894  42,000  -  -  (2,887,323)  131,995,571
Plant and machinery  7,302,591  916,340  -  3,435  (525,859)  7,696,507
Motor vehicles  21,576,738  -  (602,124)  (13,349,833)  (553,814)  7,070,967
Office and computer
equipment 56,213,279  965,091  -  2,423,950  (7,077,711)  52,524,609
Distribution network  787,418,017  27,142,709  253,719  14,546,295  (30,536,191)  798,824,549
Strategic inventory  41,992,035  -  (2,157,222)  -  -  39,834,813
Capital - Work in
progress 22,911,107  -  (1,447,577)  (16,973,681)  -  4,489,849
 1,094,362,218  29,066,140  (3,953,204)  (13,349,834)  (41,580,898)  1,064,544,422

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2019

 Opening Additions Write-off Transfers Depreciation Total
 balance

Land  11,835,000  10,272,557  -  -  -  22,107,557
Buildings  115,792,126  9,667,414  -  11,773,051  (2,391,697)  134,840,894
Plant and machinery  8,601,140  -  (91,158)  -  (1,207,391)  7,302,591
Motor vehicles  20,329,602  3,965,751  (231,702)  -  (2,486,913)  21,576,738
Office and computer
equipment 33,384,011  28,950,193  (353,859)  2,948,939  (8,716,005)  56,213,279
Distribution network  707,190,796  79,601,969  -  35,280,182  (34,654,930)  787,418,017
Strategic inventory  37,500,177  4,491,858  -  -  -  41,992,035
Capital - Work in
progress 80,634,276  -  (7,720,997)  (50,002,172)  -  22,911,107
 1,015,267,128  136,949,742  (8,397,716)  -  (49,456,936)  1,094,362,218

Included in transfers is an amount of N$13,349,834 transferred to right-of-use assets. This amount includes cost of 
N$17,002,610 less accumulated depreciation of N$3,652,776. Refer to note 2. The remaining transfers relate to transfers 
from work in progress.

Land and buildings
Land and buildings consist of office buildings, substations, 
workshops and stores across the Erongo Region.
Pledged as security
The company’s obligations under the finance leases are 
secured over certain motor vehicles, plant and machinery 
and office and computer equipment with a net book value of 
N$52,524,609 (2019: N$85,092,608).
Included in land and buildings above is Portion 205 
remainder of Erf 23B, Walvis Bay Industrial Property, 
and Erf 4900 Swakopmund which serves as security for 
overdraft facilities as disclosed in note 11. Erf 657 Walvis 
Bay serves as security for the loan from the Development 
Bank of Namibia (DBN) as disclosed in note 13. A negative 
pledge over all assets has also been registered as security 
to the DBN. The DBN’s interest has been noted on assets 
financed under the loan agreement.
IAS 16 – Property, plant and equipment requires the review 
of the residual value and the useful life of an asset at 
least at each financial year end. The company revised the 
estimated residual values and useful lives of property, plant 
and equipment based on the current usage and historic 
trends. These revisions were accounted for prospectively 
as a change in accounting estimates and as a result, 
the depreciation charges of the company for the current 
financial year end have been decreased by N$11,018,104. 

The changes in useful lives were as follows:
• The useful lives of motor vehicles were changed from 

5 – 20 years to 5 – 30 years.
• The useful lives of plant and machinery were changed 

from 5 – 10 years to 5 – 15 years.
The effect on future periods is a decrease in the depreciation 
expense of N$9,711,087.
The impairment testing on intangible assets as well as on 
property, plant and equipment has been carried out. Based 
on the assessment, there are no indicators of impairment 
and it is therefore unlikely that the recoverable amount of 
the assets is less than the carrying amounts. There were no 
changes in the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the assets. The financial 
performance was in line with prior year’s performance, 
no significant declines noted, thus the assets were not 
considered to be impaired.
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5. Intangible assets 6. Leases

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

     2020
    Cost  Accumulated Carrying
     amortisation value
Right-of-use asset     118,498,254  (44,773,616)  73,724,638
Work in progress - Borrowing costs     20,305,937  -  20,305,937
Total     138,804,191  (44,773,616)  94,030,575

     2019
    Cost Accumulated Carrying
     amortisation value
Right-of-use asset     118,498,254  (33,493,459)  85,004,795
Work in progress - Borrowing costs     6,583,204  -  6,583,204
Total     125,081,458  (33,493,459)  91,587,999

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2020
  Opening  Additions  Refund  Amortisation  Total
  balance

Right-of-use asset   85,004,795  -  -  (11,280,157)  73,724,638
Work in progress - Borrowing costs   6,583,204  13,722,733  -  -  20,305,937
  91,587,999  13,722,733  -  (11,280,157)  94,030,575

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2019
  Opening Additions  Refund  Amortisation  Total
  balance

Right-of-use asset   105,438,834  12,370,000  (21,111,236)  (11,692,803)  85,004,795
Work in progress - Borrowing costs   -  6,583,204  -  -  6,583,204
  105,438,834  18,953,204  (21,111,236)  (11,692,803)  91,587,999

Right-of-use assets
   Property  Motor Office Total
    vehicles equipment

As at 1 July 2019    -  -  -  -
Initial adoption of IFRS 16    3,502,789  13,830,865  49,224 1 7,382,878
Additions    1,035,567  103,042  68,547  1,207,156
Depreciation expense    (987,726) (2,322,709)  (19,549)  (3,329,984)
As at 30 June 2020    3,550,630  11,611,198  98,222  15,260,050

Lease liabilities
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:
As at 1 July 2019
At initial adoption of IFRS 16      16,998,236  -
Additions      1,207,156  -
Accretion of interest      1,341,760  -
Payments      (7,681,540)  -
As at 30 June 2020      11,865,612  -
Non-current liabilities      7,039,121  -
Current liabilities      4,826,491  -
     11,865,612  -

Interest rates are linked to prime less 1% - 2% at the contract date. The leases have a combination of fixed and variable 
repayments and with an incremental interest rate of between 6.25% and 7.50% (2019: 9.75% - 11.75%).
The company’s obligations under lease liabilities are secured over certain motor vehicles, plant and machinery and office 
and computer equipment with a net book value of N$52,524,609 (2019: N$85,092,608).
Monthly installments for lease liabilities amount to N$470,469 (2019: N$599,318).
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 31.
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

Other information
The intangible asset relates to an exclusive right-of-use 
obtained for 10 years from NamPower for the Walvis 
Bay bulk upgrade, Swakopmund 30 MVA upgrade and 
Okombahe upgrade. Amortisation is included in cost of sales 
in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 
income.
The remaining amortisation period for the Walvis Bay bulk 
upgrade, Swakopmund 30 MVA upgrade and Okombahe 
upgrade is 6 years, 5 years and 9 years, respectively.

During the year, the company capitalised borrowing costs at 
a rate ranging between 10.5% and 7.75% per annum.
Impairment assessment of indicators was performed on the 
intangible assets and it was not likely that the fair value of 
the assets is less than its carrying amount. There were no 
changes in the expected pattern of consumption of future 
economic benefits embodied in the assets. The financial 
performance was in line with prior year’s performance, 
no significant declines noted, thus the assets were not 
considered to be impaired.

The company has lease contracts for various items of 
property, motor vehicles and office equipment used in its 
operations. Leases of property generally have lease terms 
between 1 and 5 years, while motor vehicles and other 
office equipment generally have lease terms between 3 
and 6 years. The company’s obligations under its leases 
are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. 
Generally, the company is restricted from assigning and 
subleasing the leased assets. There are several lease 

contracts that include extension and termination options 
and variable lease payments which are further discussed 
below.
The company also has certain leases of property and 
office equipment with lease terms of 12 months or less 
and leases of property and office equipment with low 
value. The company applies the ‘short-term lease’ and 
‘lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions for 
these leases.

     2020  2019
     N$ N$

     2020  2019
     N$ N$
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6. Leases (continued) 6. Leases (continued)

7. Prepayments

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE 
ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets     3,329,984  -
Interest expense on lease liabilities      1,341,760  -
Expense relating to short-term leases - included in cost of sales    36,677  -
Variable lease payments - included in operating expenses    746,342  -
Total amount recognised in profit and loss     5,454,763  -

Total cash outflows for leases amounted to N$7,681,540 in 2020. This amount relates to capital portion paid and interest 
paid. The company also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of N$1,207,156 in 2020.
The company has lease contracts for office equipment that contains variable payments based on the number of pages to 
be printed.
The following provides information on the company’s variable lease payments including the magnitude in relation to fixed 
payments:
    Fixed Variable Total
    payments payments
Fixed rent     30,171  -  30,171
Variable rent only     -  746,342  746,342
    30,171  746,342  776,513

The company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. These options are negotiated 
by management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolio and align with the company’s business 
needs. Management exercises significant judgement in determining whether these extension and termination options are 
reasonably certain to be exercised (note 1.2).
A number of changes took place during the year which resulted in a remeasurement adjustment on the lease liabilities and 
right-of-use assets of N$125,384 (2019: N$ Nil). The changes relate to the following:
• The rental amount for a building leased from Erongo Regional Council was increased to N$21,250 per month from 1 April 

2020 with an escalation of 10% annually;
• The escalation for the building leased from Namibia Post and Telecom Holdings was increased by 4.6% from 1 June 

2020; this escalation percentage was used for the remainder of the lease period;
• The prime rate changes affected the motor vehicle rentals from AVIS; in addition there was a reassessment done on the 

motor vehicles by the lessor based on the age and condition of the vehicles at that date; and
• The escalation of the lease with Ndume Trading CC was not effected timeously by the lessor; the lease liability had to 

be adjusted with this change.
Comparative information for lease liabilities under IAS 17
The company has lease contracts for various items of buildings, machines and vehicles used in its operations. Leases of 
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles and other equipment generally have 
lease terms between 3 and 6 years. The company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the 
leased assets. Generally, the company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.
There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments.

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year      -  4,972,780
- Less: future finance charges      -  8,837,205
     -  13,809,985
- Less: future finance charges      -  (1,736,394)
      12,073,591
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year      -  4,972,780
- in second to fifth year inclusive      -  7,100,811
     -  12,073,591

Prepayments are made to NamPower in respect of bulk upgrades. The upgrades are completed by NamPower on a cost 
to project basis, whereby the amount prepaid towards the project will be set-off against the final cost of the upgrade.

Assets
Reconciliation:
Balance at beginning of the year      406,408,675  386,816,675
Transfer to intangible assets      -  (12,370,000)
Upfront payments and accruals - bulk upgrades     29,925,000  31,962,000
Prepaid expenses      1,662,819  -
Balance at the end of the year      437,996,494  406,408,675

Non-current assets
NamPower - Swakopmund & Sekel Duin     336,299,000  306,374,000
NamPower - Karibib & Ruby      -  29,287,250
     336,299,000  335,661,250

Current assets
NamPower - Lithops      70,747,425  70,747,425
NamPower - Karibib      14,550,000  -
NamPower - Ruby      14,737,250  -
Prepaid expenses      1,662,819  -
     101,697,494  70,747,425

Swakopmund & Sekel Duin upgrades are expected to be completed by 31 May 2023, while Karibib & Ruby upgrades are 
expected to be completed by 30 April 2021. The Lithops upgrade for the 132/33 kV supply was completed on 20 November 
2020 and the 3rd 40MVA transformer on the same upgrade is expected to be completed on 15 May 2021. Lithops upgrade 
is expected to be commissioned in June 2021.
Pre-paid expenses relate to pre-paid software licenses of N$1.6 million (2019: N$ Nil) and an amount of N$66,000 (2019: 
N$ Nil) paid to the Association of Electricity Distribution Undertakings in Namibia (AEDU) for a conference scheduled for 
March 2020, which was postponed due to the COVID-19 lockdown.

     2020  2019
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     N$ N$
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7. Prepayments (continued) 8. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Liabilities
Prepayments from customers in respect of network contributions are received by the company for additional capacity 
required.

Non-current liabilities
Namibia Water Corporations Ltd (NamWater)     205,874,257  205,874,257

Reconciliation:
Balance at beginning of the year      205,874,257  227,613,387
Income recognised      -  (21,739,130)
Balance at the end of the year      205,874,257  205,874,257

The NamWater network upgrade project is expected to be completed by 31 May 2023.

8. Trade and other receivables

Financial instruments:
Trade receivables      230,083,957  236,118,447
Allowance for expected credit losses     (17,204,268)  (11,465,696)
     212,879,689  224,652,751
Other receivables      4,661,709  6,912,553
Allowance for expected credit losses     (203,866)  -
Trade receivables at amortised cost     217,337,532  231,565,304

Non-financial instruments:
VAT      2,592,688  47,800,637
Other receivables      1,487,883  6,688,677
Total trade and other receivables      4,080,571  54,489,314
Total      221,418,103  286,054,618

Split between non-current and current portions
Current assets      221,418,103  286,054,618

Other receivables under financial instruments relate to the KEBU loan receivable of N$1.1 million (2019: N$1.7 million) 
for expenses incurred on behalf of KEBU and a profit share receivable of N$2 million (2019: N$4.2 million) from the 
Municipality of Swakopmund from the sale of ervens in terms of the Swakopmund Extension 10 profit share agreement 
and staff loans of N$1.3 million (2019 N$ Nil).
Other receivables under non-financial instruments comprise staff loans of N$ Nil (2019: N$1.2 million) and unallocated 
consumer payment of N$1.4 million (2019: N$6.5 million).
In the current year, staff loans were considered to be financial instruments, while in the prior year the staff loans were 
classified as non-financial instruments. These were reclassified to financial instruments in order to correctly account for 
them.

Exposure to credit risk
Trade receivables inherently expose the company to credit risk, being the risk that the company will incur financial loss if 
customers fail to make payments as they fall due.
Given the nature of the entity, which is to supply essential services, the entity manages the default risk with either the 
prepaid option or a reactive approach to gauge for further losses as electricity needs to be supplied to all customers that 
can pay for the connection thereof. As such, the entity monitors its losses by ensuring that for any overdue accounts, 
supply of electricity is immediately cut off and resumes only once the client has cleared the debt or has made payment 
arrangements. The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness of customers are continuously monitored and payment 
of an applicable deposit is one of the mitigating factors of this risk.
There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes during the period. Trade 
receivables arise from electricity sales, connection revenue and related services. The customer base for trade receivables 
is large and widespread, with a result that there is no specific significant concentration of credit risk from these trade 
receivables. Amounts as owed to the electricity suppliers are to two suppliers. Management therefore assesses and 
monitors credit risk internally along these risk concentrations.
For all other financial instruments, the company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since 
initial recognition, the company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month 
ECL.
Other receivables that meet the definition of a financial instruments measured at amortised cost are assessed for expected 
credit losses using the general approach. These receivables have a repayment period of less than 12 months based on 
the assessment done. However, there has been a significant increase in credit risk on the profit share receivable with 
Swakopmund Municipality arising from a breach of payment terms of the agreement, but there was no objective evidence 
of impairment (stage 2). Therefore, the lifetime ECL was applied in the ECL calculation for the profit share receivable. There 
has not been a significant change in the KEBU loan account as payment was only expected on 31 July 2020 in terms of the 
contract (stage 1); therefore a 12-month ECL was applied in calculating the ECL for the KEBU loan account.
Analysis of the stages is as follows:
• Stage 1 – the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition or is low 

credit risk at year end.
• Stage 2 – The credit risk of the financial instrument increased significantly since initial recognition but there is no 

objective evidence of impairment.
Staff loans meet the definition of financial instruments that are assessed for expected credit losses using a general 
approach. These receivables have variable repayment periods that range between one month and 6 years. Based on the 
assessment done, there has not been an increase in the significant risk since initial recognition. In addition, there is no 
past or future expected default associated with these balances. As a result, the expected credit losses are considered to 
be immaterial.
The allowance for expected credit losses for trade receivables was N$17,204,268 as at 30 June 2020, (2019: N$11,465,696). 
The allowance for expected credit losses for other receivables was N$203,866 as at 30 June 2020, (2019: N$ Nil).
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8. Trade and other receivables (continued) 8. Trade and other receivables (continued)

Allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables is calculated using the following provision matrix:

Business customers     Balance  ECL  ECL rate
Current     56,707,533  273,158  0.48%
30 days past due     6,019,596  360,222  6.00%
60 days past due     5,173,500  593,620  11.47%
90 days past due     16,214,765  1,860,522  11.47%
    84,115,394  3,087,522

Domestic customers    Balance  ECL  ECL rate
Current     14,025,522  108,316  0.77%
30 days past due     2,295,677  253,709  11.05%
60 days past due     509,547  110,671  21.72%
90 days past due     1,266,218  278,146  21.97%
    18,096,964  750,842

Shareholder customers     Balance  ECL  ECL rate
Current     2,461,479  44,061  1.79%
30 days past due     259,649  13,514  5.20%
60 days past due     22,463  2,747  12.23%
90 days past due     31,221  3,858  12.36%
    2,774,812  64,180

Government customers     Balance  ECL  ECL rate
Current     4,410,524  180,985  4.10%
30 days past due     2,180,221  122,625  5.62%
60 days past due     202,199  24,409  12.07%
90 days past due     353,086  43,629  12.36%
    7,146,030  371,648

Other customers     Balance  ECL  ECL rate
Current     11,607,452  11,607,452  100%
30 days past due     791,224  791,224  100%
60 days past due     112,865  112,865  100%
90 days past due     418,535  418,535  100%
    12,930,076  12,930,076
Total lifetime ECL - Trade receivables     17,204,268

Allowances for expected credit losses of other receivables is calculated using the general approach:

Other receivables     Balance  ECL  ECL rate
Current     -  -  -%
30 days past due     -  -  -%
60 days past due     -  -  -%
90 days past due     3,382,513  203,866  6.03%
    3,382,513  203,866
Total ECL - Trade and other receivables     17,408,134

Other customers relate to accounts that are under debt management, handed over, inactive accounts (e.g. debt below 
N$100), bad debt approved for write-off, KEBU streetlights and temporary/faulty meters. The probability of amount being 
recovered is low for these customers.
The COVID-19 pandemic had an impact on some of our customers’ ability to settle their electricity accounts. Collections 
from the top 30 customers have been fairly consistent during the lockdown period. Significant decline in collections 
was noted mostly in the hospitality and tourism industry as well as some domestic customers who were significantly 
impacted by the pandemic. The company granted payment extensions to some of the businesses severely affected by 
COVID-19. Furthermore, the company suspended the service disconnection process for non-payment in response to the 
state mandate during the state of emergency period. The suspension of the service disconnection process ceased during 
October 2020. However, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the economy and consumers affects forward looking 
information applied on the expected credit loss allowance for the current year. The increased probability of default arising 
from COVID-19 on trade receivables was therefore incorporated in the expected credit loss allowance calculation at 30 
June 2020. The company applied the Moody’s adjustment factor to loss rates based on the 12-month global speculative 
grade default rate baseline forecast for 30 June 2021 to incorporate the impact of COVID-19 on the receivables for the 
business, shareholder and government segments.

2019
Ageing     Trade ECL  ECL rate
    receivables
Current     200,661,466  (596,570)  -%
31 - 60 days     3,628,799  (818,740)  (23)%
61 - 90 days     1,892,129  (260,507)  (14)%
More than 90 days     16,101,870  (9,789,879)  (61)%
    222,284,264  (11,465,696)

Reconciliation of expected credit loss allowance

The following table shows the movement in the loss allowance for trade and other receivables:

Opening balance      11,465,696  15,034,425
Adjustments upon application of IFRS 9     -  (2,191,242)
Opening balance - Trade receivables     11,465,696  12,843,183
Provision raised      3,863,050  (1,377,487)
COVID-19 adjustment      1,875,522  -
Closing balance      17,204,268  11,465,696

Opening balance - other receivables     -  -
ECL measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs    153,731  -
ECL measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs     50,135  -
Closing balance      203,866  -
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8. Trade and other receivables (continued) 9. Other financial assets

Bad debts of N$10,654,530 (2019: N$11,465,696) relating to trade receivables were written off and bad debts recovered 
amounted to N$47,949 (2019: N$ Nil). A non-recoverable amount of N$ 2,166,346 (2019: N$ Nil) relating to other receivables 
was written off during the year. The bad debts written off during the year are not subject to enforcement activity.
The gross trade receivable balance decreased by 3% in comparison to prior year while the expected credit loss increased 
by 50%.
The expected credit loss allowance increased in the current year as the approach to determining the historical loss rates 
was revised. In prior year, the expected credit losses were developed using the historical default rates computed over a 
12-month period from a statically selected sample, for which average default rates were calculated per time brackets and 
weighed to calculate the amount of expected losses for the current year.
In the current year, the historical loss rates were calculated as a product of the monthly roll rates across buckets using real 
outstanding debtors considering the time value of money component. Refer to note 1.2 for information on the calculation 
of the current year expected credit loss. This resulted in a significant increase in the loss rates for the aging categories, 
causing the expected credit loss to increase by 26%. In addition, the Government and shareholder debtors were included in 
the current year expected credit loss calculation, increasing the expected credit loss by 8%. In the prior year, the expected 
credit loss on these items was considered to be immaterial.
The company applied the Moody’s adjustment factor to loss rates based on the 12-month global speculative grade default 
rate baseline forecast for 30 June 2021 to incorporate the impact of COVID-19 on the receivables for the business, 
shareholder and government segments, which resulted in a 16% increase in the expected credit loss. 
The expected credit loss for other receivables was calculated in the current year due to the increase in the significant risk 
as noted under the exposure to credit risk. In prior year, the expected credit loss on the receivable was considered to be 
immaterial.
The above factors resulted in the current year increase in the expected credit loss percentage.
A regression analysis was performed to identify reasonable and supportable forward-looking information for the trade 
receivables ECL. For any adjustments to be done to the calculated loss rate, two conditions that are statistically and 
economically significant need to be met.
The macroeconomic factors used were:
• Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rate;
• Unemployment rate;
• Prime bank lending rate; and
• Inflation rates.
Results from the regression analysis indicated that the relationship between the individual independent variable (i.e. 
macroeconomic factor) and dependent variable (i.e. loss rates) was not statistically significant; hence forward-looking 
information has no impact on the determination of Expected Credit Losses. 
The above factors resulted in the current year increase in the expected credit loss percentage.
Trade and other receivables pledged as security
Trade and other receivables were pledged as security for overdraft, auto-card and credit card facilities, totalling  
N$62,446,212 (2019: N$63,016,914) of the company as disclosed in note 11.
Fair value of trade and other receivables
The company charges interest at the prime lending rate plus 2% on overdue accounts. The carrying amounts of trade 
receivables approximate their fair value due to this interest charge and their short term maturity profile. Refer to note 28 
for fair value disclosure.

At fair value through profit or loss
FNB Namibia Unit Trust Money Market Fund     133,227,245  34,008,335

Current assets
At FV through profit / (loss)      133,227,245  34,008,335

Other financial assets were created to set aside funds required for bulk upgrades and other capital projects initiated by the 
company.
The financial assets are held in Money Market Fund and the funds are available on demand.
The Government introduced a stimulus package with the aim of supporting continued productive economic activities and 
the cash flow of businesses affected by COVID-19. In addition, the receiver of revenue introduced accelerated repayment 
of overdue and undisputed VAT refunds to enhance the cash flow of businesses. The company received a VAT refund of 
N$34 million during the 2020 financial year, of which N$29 million was received during the state of emergency period. The 
VAT refunds were invested in unit trust accounts.

10. Current tax receivable

Reconciliation of current tax balance:
Opening balance      17,153,712  17,153,712
Tax refunded      (4,136,144)  -
     13,017,568  17,153,712

The balance of current tax receivable consists of:
Year of assessment - 2015      -  4,136,144
Year of assessment - 2016      13,017,568  13,017,568
     13,017,568  17,153,712
11. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash on hand      593,771  4,800
Bank balances      63,274,906  69,165,687
Bank overdraft      (16,723,571)  -
     47,145,106  69,170,487

Current assets      63,868,677  69,170,487
Current liabilities      (16,723,571)  -
     47,145,106  69,170,487

Interest at the prime overdraft rate less 2% is charged on the company’s banking facility and interest of 4.0% - 5.8% is 
received on positive bank balances.
The company has access to an overdraft facility of N$55,000,000 (2019: N$55,000,000), an autocard facility of N$400,000 
(2019: N$400,000), a long term facility of N$7,011,212 (2019: N$7,581,914) and a business credit card facility of N$35,000 
(2019: N$35,000) totalling to N$62,446,212 (2019: N$63,016,914) with FNB. The date of review of the facilities was 
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11. Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 13. Other financial liabilities (continued)

13. Other financial liabilities

30 June 2020 and the next review date is 13 February 2021. At year-end the company had utilised the overdraft facility by 
N$16,723,571 (2019: N$ Nil). The overdraft facility is secured together with the finance lease as per below.
The bank overdraft facility is secured as follows:
• 1st and 2nd Bond N$60 million over Portion 205 remainder of Erf 23 B Walvis Bay;
• 1st Bond N$3,252,000 over Erf 4900 Swakopmund; and
• Cession of book of debts.
Guarantees provided by First National Bank to NamPower amounted to N$11,000,000 at year end which are in effect until 
cancelled.
The company has vehicle finance facilities with First National Bank of N$15,000,000 and with Standard Bank of 
N$10,868,265. The company also has a bureau collecting facility of N$900,000 (2019: N$600,000) with Bank Windhoek.
Included in cash and cash equivalents are deposits in an escrow account totalling N$54 million (2019: N$41 million) 
associated with the DBN loans for the network upgrades. The company cannot utilise these funds without the express 
approval of DBN.
The company also has a Standard Bank account in collaboration with the Ministry of Mines and Energy (MME) with a 
balance of N$2,805,071 (2019: N$18,537,428) at year end. The account requires both Erongo RED and MME signatories 
to authorise any spending on the MME grant funded projects.

12. Share capital

Authorised
30 000 000 Ordinary shares of N$1 each     30,000,000  30,000,000
Unissued
17 500 000 Ordinary shares of N$1 each     17,500,000  17,500,000
Issued
12 500 000 Ordinary shares of N$1 each     12,500,000  12,500,000

Held at amortised cost
Development Bank of Namibia      151,983,602  182,194,847

Development Bank of Namibia      170,266,137  121,238,205

National Energy Fund      22,205,256  25,698,387

First National Bank      6,884,384  7,412,996

          351,339,379  336,544,435

The loan carries interest at a variable rate linked to the prime lending rate plus 1% per 
annum and is repayable over a period of 10 years including a 12-month grace period 
on the payment of the capital balance. Monthly installments amount to N$3,562,271 
(2019: N$3,790,919). Repayment commenced on 1 September 2015, with the final 
installment payable on 1 November 2024.
The loan is secured by:
• Negative pledge over assets (note 4);
• Cession of escrow account accruing to a balance of N$50 million over a period of 

5 years which commenced in 2016 (note 11);

The loan carries interest at a variable rate linked to the prime lending rate per annum 
and is repayable over a period of 10 years including a 24-month grace period on the 
payment of the capital balance. Repayment will commence on 30 November 2020, 
with the final installment payable on 30 October 2028.
The loan is secured by:
• Negative pledge over assets with a value of N$5 million per annum;
• First continuing covering mortgage bond of N$50 million of Erf 657 Walvis Bay 

(note 4);
• Cession of Fire Cover Policy over Erf 657, Walvis Bay;
• Registered cession of Network Infrastructure over Erongo RED’s assets;
• Possible further bond over Erf 657 should there be scope after renovations are 

completed; and
• Cession of escrow account accruing to a balance of N$75 million over a period of 

8 years which commenced in 2016 (note 11).

The loan carries interest at a fixed rate of 2.5% per annum and is repayable over a 
period of 10 years including a 24-month grace period on the payment of the capital 
balance. Monthly installments amount to N$62,500 for the initial 24 months and 
N$345,115 for the remaining period. Repayment commenced on 31 March 2018, with 
the final installment payable on 28 February 2026. The fair value of the loan at market 
related interest rates is considered to be N$18,844,592 (2019: N$19,198,949). Refer 
to note 28 for further fair value disclosure.

The loan carries interest at a variable rate linked to the prime lending rate less 1% per 
annum and is repayable over a period of 10 years. Monthly installments amount to 
N$ 100 919 (2019: N$ 100 919). Repayment commenced on 1 October 2018 with the 
final installment payable on 1 July 2027.
The loan is secured by:
• 1st and 2nd Bond N$ 6.0 million over Portion 205 remainder of Erf 23 Walvis Bay;
• 1st Bond N$ 3 252 000 over Erf 4900 Swakopmund; and
• Cession of book debts.
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13. Other financial liabilities (continued) 14. Post-employment benefit obligation (continued)

duration of the liability is calculated to be approximately 10 years.
Risks
Risks related to severance pay liabilities include:
• Inflation risk;
• Liquidity risk;
• Salary inflation risk;
• Risks from adverse discount rate movements;
• Future changes in the fiscal policy/tax environment; and
• Risks relating to future changes in the regulation of benefits.
Sensitivity to salary inflation
The sensitivity is based on the liability as at 30 June 2020 and it sets out the valuation result to a 1% per annum increase 
and decrease in the salary increase assumption (i.e. either 7.5% (2019: 8.2%) per annum or 5.5% (2019: 6.2%) per 
annum). Should the salary inflation rate increase to 7.5% (2019: 8.2%) the expected accrued liability will be N$11,146,000 
(2019: N$12,445,000). A decrease in salary inflation rate to 5.5% (2019: 6.2%) would decrease the accrued liability to 
N$9,226,000 (2019: N$10,190,000). All other assumptions are held constant when the sensitivity to the salary increase 
assumption is determined.
Sensitivity to discount rate
The sensitivity is based on the liability as at 30 June 2020 and it sets out the valuation result to a 1% per annum increase and 
decrease in the discount rate assumption (i.e. either 5% (2019: 3.2%) per annum or 3% (2019: 1.2%) per annum). Should 
the discount rate increase to 5% (2019: 3.2%) the expected accrued liability will be N$11,146,000 (2019: N$12,445,000). A 
decrease in discount rate to 3% (2019: 1.2%) would decrease the accrued liability to N$9,226,000 (2019: N$10,190,000). 
All other assumptions are held constant when the sensitivity to the discount rate assumption is determined.
Key assumptions
• A discount rate of 10.5% per annum (2019: 9.4%); and
• A salary inflation rate of 6.5% per annum (2019: 7.2%).
The severance pay is unfunded; therefore there are no funding arrangements as well as expected contributions in the next 
annual reporting period. Cash outflow only occurs when employees are unfairly dismissed, die while employed or resign/
retire on reaching the age of 65 years. As per the external valuation reports done in the current year, benefit payments of 
N$435,000 are expected in the next financial year. The average age of employees is 41.4 years having worked on average 
10 years and therefore the provision has a maturity life of 23.6 years.

Split between non-current and current portions
Non-current liabilities      305,397,377  302,789,102
Current liabilities      45,942,002  33,755,333
     351,339,379  336,544,435

14. Post-employment benefit obligation

Defined contribution benefit plan
Benefits are provided for employees by a separate retirement fund to which the company contributes. The retirement fund 
is governed by the Namibian Pension Funds Act. The retirement fund is in the nature of a defined contribution plan where 
the retirement benefits are determined with reference to the employees’ contributions to the fund. All permanent employees 
contribute to the fund.
The total value of the contributions paid by the company during the year was N$22,984,163 (2019: N$21,175,759).
The latest pension fund actuarial valuation was carried out during October 2019 and in the actuary’s opinion, the fund was 
in a sound financial position as at 31 May 2018.
Provision for severance pay
In accordance with section 35(1) of the Namibia Labour Act, 2007, severance benefits are payable to an employee if the 
employee is unfairly dismissed, dies while employed or resigns/retires on reaching the age of 65 years. The statutory 
termination benefits provided are classified as defined benefits and are determined based on one week’s salary/wages for 
each completed year of service.
Reconciliation of provision for severance pay
Opening balance      12,794,000  11,225,000
Current service cost      965,000  871,000
Benefit payments      (1,820,000)  (380,000)
Interest charge      1,163,000  1,078,000
Actuarial gain      (2,991,000)  -
     10,111,000  12,794,000

In prior year this line item was named Post retirement benefit obligation; this was renamed in the current year to Post-
employment benefit obligation in acccordance with IAS 19.26(a).
An actuarial gain of N$2,991,000 (2019: N$ Nil) was recorded for the year.
The past service liability as at 30 June 2020 amounts to N$10,111,000 (2019: N$12,794,000).
The actuarial valuation of the severance pay was carried out on 30 June 2020 and the next valuation is due on 30 June 
2022.
Valuation method and assumptions
The actuarial valuation method used to value the liabilities is the projected unit credit method prescribed by IAS 19 
Employee Benefits. Future benefits valued are projected using specific actuarial assumptions and the liability for in service 
members is accrued over the expected working lifetime.
The most significant assumptions used are a discount rate of 10.5% (2019: 9.4%), an inflation rate of 6.5% (2019: 7.2%) 
and a salary increase rate of 6.5% (2019: 7.2%). The actuarial assumptions for retirement rates, promotional salary scale 
and withdrawal rates are based on actual data gathered from larger retirement funds, and the average salary weighed 
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15. Contract liabilities 17. Deferred tax (continued)

Reconciliation of contract liabilities
Opening balance      307,862,456  -
Initial adoption of IFRS 15      -  250,437,378
Transfers of property, plant and equipment     12,802,894  67,778,223
Income recognised - donated assets     (11,566,225)  (10,353,145)
     309,099,125  307,862,456

Split between non-current and current portions on donated assets
Non-current liabilities      297,383,179  296,573,272
Current liabilities      11,715,946  11,289,184
     309,099,125  307,862,456

16. Deferred income

Grants received from the Ministry of Mines and Energy    37,075,099  38,525,099

Reconciliation of deferred income at year end:
Opening balance      38,525,099  38,859,405
Recognised in statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income   (1,450,000)  (334,306)
     37,075,099  38,525,099

Non-current liabilities      35,219,109  37,075,099
Current liabilities      1,855,990  1,450,000
     37,075,099  38,525,099

Government grants have been received as funding of urban and rural area bulk upgrades for the following upgrades:
• Ruby 10 MVA bulk upgrade with the expected completion date of 30 April 2021;
• Karibib 10 MVA bulk upgrade with an expected completion date of 30 April 2021; and
• Okombahe bulk upgrades were completed on 7 April 2019.

17. Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability
Accelerated capital allowances for income tax purposes    177,629,815  167,799,251
Post employment benefit obligation      (3,235,520)  (4,094,080)
Consumables      12,747,140  14,108,668
IFRS 16 Right-of-use assets      445,007  -
Customer deposits      (75,041,743)  (72,557,358)
Supplier deposits      44,739,200  35,163,200
Allowance for expected credit losses     (4,177,952)  (2,751,767)
Prepaid expenses      532,102  -
Tax loss carried forward      (36,561,400)  (47,653,775)
Total deferred tax liability      117,076,649  90,014,139

Reconciliation of deferred tax liability
At beginning of year      90,014,139  142,034,549
Current temporary differences      27,347,822  31,529,065
Initial adoption of IFRS 9      -  (525,898)
Initial adoption of IFRS 15      -  (83,023,577)
Initial adoption of IFRS 16      (285,312)  -
     117,076,649  90,014,139

In applying judgement in recognising deferred tax assets, management has critically assessed all available information, 
including future business profit projections.
The net deferred tax asset of N$114,254,376 (2019: N$148,918,047) relates to tax losses. Management expects the 
deferred tax asset to be substantially recovered in four to 5 years, with the majority recovered in the first 4 years. The most 
recent financial forecasts cover a five-year period and the forecasts have been extrapolated beyond 5 years by assuming 
that performance remains constant after the fifth year.
The tax reported loss relates to the upfront payments made and received for the Swakopmund bulk upgrade which is 
expected to be completed by 31 May 2023. All payments to NamPower have been made to date in terms of the addendum. 
This will also result in the release of the contract liability amount received from NamWater which linked to the completion 
of the Swakopmund bulk upgrade also resulting in the taxable income. Management does not expect the loss to adversely 
impact future deferred tax asset recovery to a significant extent.

18. Trade and other payables

Financial instruments:
Trade payables      98,157,167  126,681,376
Bulk upgrade payable      3,816,690  15,529,440
Deposits received from customers      48,101,262  47,876,772
Other payables      2,291,651  6,020,483
     152,366,770  196,108,071
Non-financial instruments:
Payroll accruals      33,602,278  33,556,282
Other payables      25,087,181  24,799,181
     58,689,459  58,355,463
     211,056,229  254,463,534

Terms and conditions for the above trade and other payables are set out below:
• Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-day terms; and
• Deposit from customers are non-interest bearing.
Payroll accruals entail leave pay of N$29 million (2019: N$25.7 million), bonuses (13th cheque) for bargaining unit and 
other employees who have structured for it of N$4.6 million (2019: N$4.2 million) and payroll deductions payable to third-
party institutions of N$ Nil (2019: N$3.6 million). Leave pay provision was determined with reference to leave days accrued 
and proportionate annual bonus accrual. The structured bonuses are normally paid out in November every year.
Bulk upgrade payables relate to accrual of upfront payments payable to NamPower within 30 days.
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18. Trade and other payables (continued) 19. Revenue (continued)

Other payables represent retentions of N$2.3 million (2019: N$6 million) held by the company in respect of defect clauses 
in contracts with suppliers, unallocated deposits and refunds due to customers. Debtors with credit balances of N$17.2 
million (2019: N$24.8 million) were reclassified to trade and other payables.
NamPower, a key supplier, offered extended credit terms from 20 days to 30 days of invoice date until the end of the state 
of emergency without any interest charges for the extension. The extended credit terms lapsed on 1 October 2020. There 
were no interruptions in the supply and production cycle of the company in 2020 due to the COVID-19 outbreak.

19. Revenue

The company has recognised the following amounts relating to revenue in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income:
Revenue from contracts with customers
Electricity sales      1,350,410,636  1,337,818,681
Donated assets - property developer     11,566,225  10,353,145
Donated assets - strategic inventory      -  2,868,891
Network contribution      5,026,087  34,603,244
Other regulated income      6,550,355  11,485,281
     1,373,553,303  1,397,129,242
Revenue other than from contracts with customers
Amortisation of deferred revenue - Government grant    1,450,000  334,306
     1,375,003,303  1,397,463,548
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The company disaggregates revenue from customers as follows:

At a point in time
Other regulated income      6,550,355  11,485,281
Network contribution      5,026,087  34,603,244
Pre-paid electricity sales      241,833,670  231,123,812

Over time
Post-paid electricity sales      1,108,576,966  1,106,694,869
Donated assets - property developer     11,566,225  10,353,145
Donated assets - strategic inventory      -  2,868,891

Revenue other than from contracts with customers
Amortisation of deferred revenue - Government grant    1,450,000  334,306
Total      1,375,003,303  1,397,463,548

An assessment done on the impact of COVID-19 on the electricity consumption showed that the demand for electricity 
dropped by 3% on average between March 2020 and June 2020 after the announcement of the lockdown.

The overall percentage change was 0% for the 2020 financial year, in comparison to the 2019 financial year end. Overall, 
electricity sales decreased by 2% in comparison to prior year. There was an overall 1% increase in revenue for the year 
ended 30 June 2020, in comparison to the budget. The residential consumption generally increased while commercial 
consumption slightly declined. An assessment of the impact on our customers revealed that none of our key customers 
were significantly affected by the COVID-19 pandemic. Our key customers were also declared essential services during 
the lockdown period and thus continued to operate, although not at full capacity. Since the pandemic was declared, the 
company has lost one major customer, Namib Lead and Zinc Mining, losing revenue of approximately N$1.2 million per 
month which accounts for 1% of annual revenue. Customers that were significantly impacted were those in the tourism, 
hospitality and transport industries as well as those not supplying essential services and these do not form part of our top 
30 customers. The company has not seen significant impact on the demand from our key customers resulting from the 
COVID-19 outbreak.

20. Cost of sales

Building, security and general expenses     5,782,725  6,988,074
Depreciation      37,833,169  40,741,414
Net metering      3,039,717  2,574,931
Electricity purchases      840,165,919  878,910,532
Inventory adjustments      265,544  6,349
Solar power purchases      13,094,520  12,585,467
Employee costs      135,302,739  129,058,061
Amortisation      11,280,157  11,692,803
Network and metering expenses      29,184,482  19,954,181
     1,075,948,972  1,102,511,812

21. Other operating income

Sundry income      401,620  2,597,734
Kebu management fee      1,825,522  2,818,535
Insurance and scrapping proceeds      121,099  320,571
Unallocated deposits      853,660  10,437,598
Profit share      -  4,200,936
     3,201,901  20,375,374

Sundry income comprises insurance refund of N$ Nil (2019: N$67,000), discount received of N$217,000 (2019: N$138,000), 
tender income of N$13,000 (2019: N$77,000), rental income of N$ Nil (2019: N$52,000), dividend reinvestment income 
– NamPower of N$ Nil (2019: N$1.8 million), cash deposit fee recovery of N$5,000 (2019: N$ Nil), commission from third 
party payments of N$118,000 (2019: Nil) and bad debt recovered of N$48,000 (2019: Nil).
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22. Operating profit 24. Interest expense

Operating profit for the year is stated after charging / (crediting) the following, amongst others:
Employee costs
Salaries, wages, bonuses and other benefits     212,469,908  200,315,029
Service cost and benefit payments      855,000  491,000
     213,324,908  200,806,029

Average number of persons employed during the year
Number of employees      314  316

Leases
Operating lease charges
Contractual amounts      -  8,784,618

Expenses by nature
Operating lease charges - included in operating expenses    -  7,571,264
Operating lease charges - included in cost of sales     -  1,213,354
Employee costs      213,324,908  200,806,029
Variable payment leases      746,342  -
Amortisation - included in cost of sales     11,280,157  11,692,803
Depreciation - included in cost of sales     34,503,187  40,741,414
Depreciation of right-of-use assets - included in cost of sales    3,329,983  -
Loss on sale of assets - included in cost of sales     -  298,679
Short term leased assets      36,677  -
Auditor’s remuneration      1,342,021  2,625,730
Consultancy      2,495,387  2,687,569
Expenditure write-offs      12,565,003  16,278,969
Local authority surcharges      59,176,351  59,011,229
Depreciation      7,077,712  8,715,522
Bad debts written off      10,654,530  4,509,312
Director’s remuneration      2,263,454  3,060,473

The company has taken a number of measures to monitor and prevent the spread of the COVID-19 virus, such as safety 
and health measures for employees (e.g. working from home, rigorous cleaning of workplaces, distribution of personal 
protective equipment, testing of suspected cases and measuring body temperature) and securing the supply of materials 
that are essential for our operations. An amount of N$707,000 (2019: N$ Nil) was spent on COVID-19 related expenditure 
during the current financial year.

23. Interest received

Classification of interest income:
Financial assets at amortised cost      6,951,445  5,740,971
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss     4,798,132  1,875,104
     11,749,577  7,616,075

Trade and other payables      149,871  172,473
Post employment benefit - interest charge     1,163,000  1,078,000
Interest bearing borrowings      19,477,827  23,908,522
Bank overdraft      283,613  1,433,534
Interest on lease liabilities      1,341,760  -
     22,416,071  26,592,529

The prime rate decreased by 2.75% due to the COVID-19 outbreak between March 2020 and June 2020; as a result the 
interest charged on our interest-bearing loans has also declined resulting in a decrease of installment payments.

25. Taxation

Major components of the tax expense
Deferred
Originating and reversing temporary differences     16,781,344  38,335,461
Assessed loss      10,566,478  (6,806,396)
     27,347,822  31,529,065

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense
Accounting profit      57,510,791  75,196,535
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 32% (2019: 32%)     18,403,453  24,062,891

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable income
Amortisation of intangible assets      3,609,650  3,741,697
Deferred income on donated assets      (3,701,193)  (4,231,052)
Deferred income on grant assets      (464,000)  (106,977)
Depreciation on donated assets      3,743,148  3,606,584
Disallowable expenses      4,346,391  3,472,126
Donations      453,253  983,796
     26,390,702  31,529,065

Components of tax expenses through Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income
Actuarial gains      957,120  -
     27,347,822  31,529,065

The estimated tax losses available for set off against future taxable income amount to N$114,254,376 (2019: N$148,918,047).
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26. Cash generated from operations 27. Notes additional to the cash flow

Profit before taxation      57,510,791  75,196,535
Adjustments for:
Net impairments and movements in credit loss allowances    5,942,438  (1,377,487)
Losses on sale of assets      602,124  298,679
Accrued interest      124,194  1,715,027
Amortisation of intangible assets      11,280,157  11,692,803
Bad debts written off      10,654,530  4,509,312
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment     41,580,898  49,456,936
Depreciation of right-of-use assets      3,329,983  -
Expenditure written off      12,565,003  16,278,969
Interest expense      21,128,877  23,799,502
Interest received      (6,951,445)  (5,740,971)
Capitalised interest income      (4,798,131)  (1,875,104)
Grants recognised in income      (1,450,000)  (334,306)
Strategic inventory write-down      (2,097,552)  -
Movement in profit share      2,166,346  (4,200,936)
Movement in post employment benefit obligation     308,000  1,569,000
Movement in payroll accruals      (3,672,212)  (17,858,977)
Remeasurement of lease liability      (125,384)  -
Movement in contract liabilities      -  (21,739,130)
Donated assets - strategic inventory      -  (2,868,891)
Donated assets - transfers from customers     (11,566,225)  (10,353,145)
Strategic inventory adjustment      (59,149)  6,349

Changes in working capital:
Trade and other receivables      34,724,388  16,843,692
Trade and other payables      (38,072,281)  (64,334,045)
     133,125,350  70,683,812

Interest expense for the year comprise:
Accrued interest      124,194  1,715,027
Movement in employee benefit - included in post employment benefit obligation movement 1,163,000  1,078,000
Interest paid      21,128,877  23,799,502
     22,416,071  26,592,529

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Additions      (29,066,140)  (136,949,742)
Inventory adjustment      -  (6,349)
Distribution network (donated assets)     12,802,894  67,778,223
Strategic inventory (donated assets)      -  2,868,891
Land acquired through other financial liabilities     -  6,784,222
Carrying amounts of vehicles through finance leases    -  2,182,259
Work in progress movement      -  7,720,997
Movement in lease liability - initial adoption of IFRS 16
Expenditure written off      -  (10,787,485)
     (16,263,246)  (60,408,984)

Intangible assets
Additions      13,722,733  18,953,204
Intangible asset adjustment      -  (21,111,236)
Prepayment      -  (12,370,000)
Borrowing costs capitalised      (13,722,733) (6,583,204)
     -  (21,111,236)

Prepayment assets
Movement for the year      31,587,819  19,592,000
Capitalised to intangible assets      -  12,370,000
Prepayment      (29,925,000)  (29,925,000)
Prepayment accrual 
Pre-paid expenses      (1,662,819)  (2,037,000)
     -  -

The prepayment amount of N$29,925,000 (2019: N$29,925,000 ) is a non cash transaction as a DBN loan of N$150 million 
was acquired specifically to finance the Swakopmund bulk upgrade.

Trade and other payables
Movement for the year      (43,407,559)  (79,038,648)
Movement in provisions      3,672,212  17,858,977
Expenditure written off      -  (1,117,374)
Prepayment accrual      1,662,819  (2,037,000)
     (38,072,528)  (64,334,045)
Trade and other receivables
Movement for the year      64,636,515  20,148,691
Expenditure written off      (11,148,813)  (4,374,110)
Movement in provisions      (5,942,438)  1,377,487
Swakopmund Extension 10 Profit Share     (2,351,508)  4,200,936
Bad debts written off      (10,654,530)  (4,509,312)
     34,539,226  16,843,692
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27. Notes additional to the cash flow (continued) 28. Fair value information

2020 - Reconciliation of financing activities:

Changes in liabilities  Current Current Non-current Non-current Total
arising from financing  other lease other  lease liabilities
activities  financial liabilities financial liabilities from
  liabilities  liabilities  financing
      activities

As at 1 July 2019   33,755,332  4,972,780  302,789,101  7,100,811  348,618,024
Cash flows   (33,426,711)  (6,378,908)  5,380,200  -  (34,425,419)
Accrued interest   85,066  -  -  39,129  124,195
Interest charged   19,393,291  1,302,101  -  -  20,695,392
Interest paid   (19,393,291)  (1,302,101)  - -  (20,695,392)
Capitalised finance charges   13,722,733  -  -  -  13,722,733
Adoption of IFRS 16   -  -  -  6,131,800  6,131,800
Prepayment accrual   -  -  29,925,000  -  29,925,000
Other   31,805,582  6,232,619  (32,696,924)  (6,232,619)  (891,342)
Total   45,942,002  4,826,491  305,397,377  7,039,121  363,204,991
Note(s)   13  6  13  6

2019 - Reconciliation of financing activities:

Changes in liabilities  Current Current Non-current Non-current Total
arising from financing  other lease other  lease liabilities
activities  financial liabilities financial liabilities from
  liabilities  liabilities  financing
      activities

As at 1 July 2018   26,755,207  4,265,456  204,039,654  9,590,639  244,650,956
Cash flows   (24,956,580)  (4,103,395)  -  -  (29,059,975)
Accrued interest   1,576,395  138,632  -  -  1,715,027
Interest charged   21,042,812  1,150,683  -  -  22,193,495
Interest paid   (21,042,812)  (1,150,683)  -  -  (22,193,495)
Capitalised finance charges   -  -  8,298,231  -  8,298,231
Adoption of IFRS 16   -  -  29,925,000  -  29,925,000
Land acquired through
other financial liabilities  -  -  6,784,222  -  6,784,222
Prepayment accrual   -  -  85,837,333  -  85,837,333
Other   30,380,311  4,672,087  (32,095,338)  (4,672,087)  (1,715,027)
New leases   -  -  -  2,182,259  2,182,259
Total   33,755,333  4,972,780  302,789,102  7,100,811  348,618,026
Note(s)   13  6  13  6

The cash flows relate only to the capital portion and interest is included within the interest paid line on the statement of 
cash flows.
The ‘Other’ column includes the effect of reclassification of non-current portion of other financial liabilities and lease 
liabilities to current due to the passage of time.

Fair value hierarchy
The below analyses assets and liabilities carried at fair value. The different levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: Quoted unadjusted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the company can access at 
measurement date.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or 
indirectly.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
The following information discloses how the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities are categorised into 
Level 2 and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy where determined:
Level 2 fair value hierarchy
Financial instruments measured at fair value
Collective investment schemes
Valuation technique
The valuation model is based on the net asset values (NAV) of the individual funds as quoted in the active markets. i.e. 
quoted prices.
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
Not applicable
Level 3 fair value hierarchy
Financial instruments not measured at fair value
Other financial liabilities
Valuation technique
Discounted cash flows: The valuation model considers the present value of expected payments, discounted using a risk-
adjusted discount rate.
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value
Discount rate
Other financial liabilities include secured loans as follows
Other financial liabilities includes Development Bank of Namibia, National Energy Fund and the FNB loan and bank 
overdraft.
There have been no transfers between the fair value hierarchy levels (2019: no transfers).
Sensitivity analysis
A 0.5% (2019: 1%) increase / (decrease) in the discount rate would result in an increase / (decrease) in fair value of the 
National Energy Fund loan by N$4,507 (2019: N$9,945).
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28. Fair value information (continued) 29. Commitments (continued)

Levels of fair value measurements
Level 2
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
FNB Namibia Unit Trust Money Market Fund     133,227,245  34,008,835
Level 3
Liabilities
Development Bank of Namibia      322,249,739  303,433,052
National Energy Fund      18,844,592  19,198,949
FNB loan      6,884,384  7,412,996
Bank overdraft      16,723,571  -
     364,702,286  330,044,997

29. Commitments

Arandis power purchase agreement
The company entered into a solar power purchase agreement with OLC Arandis Solar Energy (Proprietary) Limited for the 
purchase of solar energy in the Arandis area. The term of the contract is 25 years with an option to renew. The company is 
required to make a termination payment to reimburse OLC for losses in the event of a termination due to an Erongo RED 
default event.
The price paid for output of the power plant comprises a base tariff of N$1.1778 per kWh, distribution charge calculated 
based on an ECB methodology and levies imposed by legislation on the net energy delivery. The base tariff is subject to 
an annual escalation based on the CPI of the country. This agreement is accounted for as an executory contract and thus 
recognised as cost of sales in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income. The minimum contractual 
purchases for the remaining period are as disclosed below.
Minimum purchase under the contract
- within one year      14,307,659  13,538,407
- in second to fifth year inclusive      65,835,445  62,295,798
- later than 5 years      484,156,078  502,003,384
     564,299,182  577,837,589

Minimum purchase under the contract
Arandis Solar Plant - Minimum purchases     564,299,182  577,837,589

Company as lessee
The company has lease contracts for various items of buildings, machines, and vehicles used in its operations. Leases of 
buildings generally have lease terms between 2 and 5 years, while motor vehicles and other equipment generally have 
lease terms between 3 and 6 years. The company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the 
leased assets. Generally, the company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets and some contracts 
require the company to maintain certain financial ratios.

There are several lease contracts that include extension and termination options and variable lease payments.
Minimum lease payments due
- within one year      -  1,829,902
- in second to fifth year inclusive      -  5,326,531
     -  7,156,433

Minimum lease payments due
- within one year      -  6,446,322
- Rental - machines      -  138,960
- Leases of vehicles      -  571,151
     -  7,156,433

The company has certain leases of property with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases office equipment with 
variable lease payments. The company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets. 
Generally, the company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.
Short-term leases
- within one year      105,757  -

Variable leases
- within one year      710,471  -
- in second to fifth year inclusive      3,627,024  -
     4,337,495  -
30. Related parties

Related parties are the shareholders of Erongo RED and they are Arandis Town Council, Erongo Regional Council, 
Municipality of Henties Bay, Municipality of Karibib, Municipality of Walvis Bay, Municipality of Omaruru, Municipality of 
Swakopmund, Municipality of Usakos, Uis Village Council and Namibia Power Corporation (Pty) Ltd (NamPower).
Amounts included in trade receivables
Arandis Town Council      404,983  520,585
Erongo Regional Council      17,410  51,421
Municipality of Henties Bay      1,133  778,903
Municipality of Karibib      106,664  38,635
Municipality of Omaruru      206,766  305,009
Municipality of Swakopmund      3,577,863  1,352,802
Uis Village Council      -  30,066
Municipality of Usakos      11,559  75,703
Municipality of Walvis Bay      1,138,149  2,745,133
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30. Related parties (continued) 30. Related parties (continued)

Amounts included in trade payables
NamPower      78,618,420  103,441,256
Arandis Town Council      2,925  31,441
Municipality of Henties Bay      76,429  198,918
Municipality of Karibib      105,467  95,035
Municipality of Omaruru      92,534  104,002
Municipality of Swakopmund      1,173,518  1,441,214
Uis Village Council      103,118  137,602
Municipality of Usakos      878  29,263
Municipality of Walvis Bay      3,062,470  3,370,359

Prepayments due to related parties
NamPower      -  15,529,440

Prepayments paid to related parties
NamPower      34,413,750  114,655,000

Land acquisition from related parties
Municipality of Swakopmund      -  8,873,222

Purchases from related parties
NamPower      840,165,919  878,910,533

Local authority surcharges paid to related parties
Arandis Town Council      739,852  748,241
Municipality of Henties Bay      2,365,724  2,365,724
Municipality of Karibib      1,071,867  1,062,558
Municipality of Omaruru      1,130,529  1,136,097
Municipality of Swakopmund      15,507,314  15,847,839
Uis Village Council      249,654  229,263
Municipality of Usakos      1,249,299  1,249,299
Municipality of Walvis Bay      36,862,112  36,372,208

Revenue and other income received from related parties
Arandis Town Council      992,450  819,442
Erongo Regional Council      297,825  619,577
Municipality of Henties Bay      1,445,287  1,577,359
Municipality of Karibib      354,508  651,914
Municipality of Omaruru      2,054,910  1,872,727
Municipality of Swakopmund      15,016,415  15,424,731
Uis Village Council      181,417  212,031
Municipality of Usakos      876,791  802,148
Municipality of Walvis Bay      14,101,740  14,729,528

Profit share on Swakopmund Extension 10
Municipality of Swakopmund      -  4,200,936

Compensation of key management personnel
Short-term employee benefits      8,361,589  7,940,741
Post-employment pension      1,259,834  1,115,997
     9,621,423  9,056,738

Compensation to directors
Directors’ remuneration      2,263,454  3,060,473
     2,263,454  3,060,473

Directors’ remuneration comprises:
Retainer fee      827,499  883,906
Sitting fee      1,077,400  1,611,585
Subsistence and travelling allowance     358,555  564,982
     2,263,454  3,060,473

The directors’ sitting fees consist of fees on training, intervention with Keetmanshoop Electricity Business Unit (KEBU), 
Ministry of Mines & Energy (MME), events, board retreats, public meetings, Annual General Meetings and shareholder 
meetings.
Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling 
the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly.
Key management of the company includes:
• F. Mbango
• R. Ouseb
• N. Niemand
• C. Tjizo
• F.K. Vries
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31. Financial instruments and risk management 31. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Categories of financial instruments
Categories of financial assets

2020   Note(s)  Fair value Amortised Total
    through cost
    profit or loss

Other financial assets    9  133,227,245  -  133,227,245
Trade and other receivables    8  -  217,337,532  217,337,532
Cash and cash equivalents    11  -  63,868,677  63,868,677
    133,227,245  281,206,209  414,433,454

2019   Note(s)  Fair value Amortised Total
    through cost
    profit or loss

Other financial assets    9  34,008,335  -  34,008,335
Trade and other receivables    8  -  231,565,304  231,565,304
Cash and cash equivalents    11  -  69,170,487  69,170,487
    34,008,335  300,735,791  334,744,126

Categories of financial liabilities
2020    Note(s)  Financial Total
     liabilities at
     amortised
     cost

Trade and other payables     18  152,366,770  152,366,770
Other financial liabilities     13  351,339,379  351,339,379
Finance lease liabilities     6  11,865,612  11,865,612
Bank overdraft     11  16,723,571  16,723,571
     532,295,332  532,295,332

2019    Note(s)  Financial Total
     liabilities at
     amortised
     cost

Trade and other payables     18  196,108,071  196,108,071
Other financial liabilities     13  336,544,435  336,544,435
Finance lease liabilities     6  12,073,591  12,073,591
     544,726,097  544,726,097

Capital risk management
The company’s objective when managing capital (which includes share capital, borrowings, working capital and cash and 
cash equivalents) is to maintain a flexible capital structure that reduces the cost of capital to an acceptable level of risk and 
to safeguard the company’s ability to continue as a going concern while taking advantage of strategic opportunities in order 
to maximise stakeholder returns sustainably.
During the period the company complied with external imposed capital requirements to which it is subject.
Financial risk management
The company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk, cash flow 
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the company’s financial performance.
The financial risk management function is carried out by management.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations.
Credit quality of financial assets:
(i) Cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand
The credit quality of cash at bank and short term deposits, excluding cash on hand, that are neither past due nor impaired 
can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default 
rates:
Financial instrument
First National Bank Namibia Limited - A1+     42,397,913  50,005,246
Bank Windhoek Limited - A1+      1,341,514  622,222
Standard Bank of Namibia Limited - A1+     2,811,908  18,538,219
     46,551,335  69,165,687

The company only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one 
counterparty.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value
The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit 
ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rates:
Financial instrument
FNB Namibia Unit Trust Money Market Fund     133,227,245  34,008,335

(iii) Trade receivables
Financial instrument
Trade and other receivables      217,337,532  231,565,304
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31. Financial instruments and risk management (continued) 31. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

Trade receivables comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an 
ongoing basis.
The company has well-established credit control procedures that monitor activity on customer accounts and allow for 
remedial action should the customer not comply with payment terms. These procedures include an internal collection 
process, follow up with customer telephonically or in person, negotiations of mutually acceptable payment arrangements 
and the issuing of a notice of disconnection of supply and letters of demand. Non-payment will result in disconnection of 
supply. The legal collection process is pursued thereafter.
The decision to impair overdue amounts is assessed on the probability of recovery based on the customer’s credit risk 
profile.
In addition, the following strategies mitigating potential write-offs are currently in operation:
• Disconnections;
• Conversion to prepayment;
• Use of debt collectors and handover to lawyers;
• Payment arrangements; and
• Focus on early identification and letters of demand.
With respect to trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired, there are no indications as at the 
reporting date that the debtors will not meet their payment obligations.
Interest is charged on all debts in arrears.
Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding 
through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying business, company 
treasury maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.
The company’s liquidity and funding management process includes projected cash flows and considering the cash required 
by the company and improving the short-term liquidity, monitoring financial liquidity ratios, maintaining of funding sources 
with adequate back-up facilities, managing profile of debt maturities and maintaining liquidity and funding contingency plans.
The company’s liquidity is adequately addressed via various funding sources like operational cash flows, undrawn 
overdraft facilities to the amount of N$38 million and unrestricted savings invested in unit trust accounts amounting to N$94 
million. Included in financial liabilities, as detailed in the below table, is an amount of N$387,265,508 long term financial 
liabilities making up 62% of total financial liabilities. The remainder comprises of short term financial liabilities amounting 
to N$240,949,696. This is less than financial assets by N$14,827,135. Management believes that the available funding 
sources give sufficient room to cover short term obligations. Strategies to monitor and contain cost will be put in place.
The company continues to monitor the impact of the COVID-19 (coronavirus) outbreak closely and has put in place 
business continuity strategies to ensure sustainability of the company. Measures put in place include the following:
• Continuous monitoring and assessment of key customer’s consumption patterns;
• Migration of customers with overdue accounts to debt management system for liquidating of their debts;
• Regular monthly suspension for overdue accounts without arrangements in place;
• Monitoring cash flows including collections from debtors;
• Investment of excess funds and making use of initiated stimulus packages applicable to the company;
• Containing costs to minimise working capital requirements; and
• Engaging financiers for available options under current financing agreements.

The table below analyses the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period 
at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

2020  Note(s) Less than 1 to 2 2 to 5 Over
   1 year years years 5 years

Non-current liabilities
Other financial liabilities   13  67,032,870  76,713,775  200,935,907  102,576,706
Lease liabilities   6  4,826,491  4,247,213  2,736,347  55,561

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables   18  152,366,770  -  -  -
Bank overdraft   11  16,723,571  -  -  -

2019   Less than 1 to 2 2 to 5 Over
   1 year years years 5 years

Non-current liabilities
Other financial liabilities   13  55,983,884  72,203,064  262,621,937  97,236,880
Finance lease liabilities   6  4,972,780  3,516,445  3,584,366  -

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables   18  196,108,071  -  -  -

Commodity risk
The company is not exposed to commodity price risk as the company has no financial assets linked to commodity prices.
Foreign currency risk
The company does not operate in foreign currencies and is not exposed to foreign currency risk.
Interest rate risk
The company’s interest rate risk arises mainly from long-term borrowings. Long-term borrowings are issued at fixed rates 
and variable rates and expose the company to cash flow interest rate risk.
Fixed rate instrument
Financial liabilities      22,205,256  25,698,387

Variable rate instrument
Financial liabilities      357,723,302  322,919,638

At 30 June 2020, if interest rates on borrowings had been 0.5% (2019: 1%) higher / lower with all other variables held 
constant, company post-tax profit for the year would have been N$1,216,260 (2019: N$2,195,854) lower / higher mainly as 
a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings. 
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31. Financial instruments and risk management (continued)

DETAILED 
INCOME STATEMENT

At 30 June 2020, if interest rates on borrowings had been 0.5% (2019: 1%) higher / lower with all other variables held 
constant, company pre-tax profit for the year would have been N$1,788,617 (2019: N$3,229,196) lower / higher mainly as 
a result of higher / lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
The assumed 0.5% increase or decrease in interest rates used in the sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk is considered 
to be reasonable, as historically the prime rate fluctuates by 25 basis points. In addition, since year end to date the prime 
rate has only declined by 25 basis points.

32. Events after the reporting period
We are not aware of any other material events which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report.

33. Going concern
The directors believe that the company has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future 
and accordingly the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors have satisfied 
themselves that the company is in a sound financial position and that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet 
its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact 
the company.
The directors are also not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements.

Revenue
Electricity sales      1,350,410,636  1,337,818,681
Network contributions      5,026,087  34,603,244
Donated assets - property developer     11,566,225  10,353,145
Donated assets - strategic inventory      -  2,868,891
Other regulated income      6,550,355  11,485,281
Amortisation of deferred revenue      1,450,000  334,306
    19  1,375,003,303  1,397,463,548
Cost of sales
Building, security and general expenses     (5,782,725)  (6,988,074)
Depreciation      (37,833,169)  (40,741,414)
Net metering      (3,039,717)  (2,574,931)
Inventory adjustments      (265,544)  (6,349)
Electricity purchases      (840,165,919)  (878,910,532)
Solar power purchases      (13,094,520)  (12,585,467)
Employee costs      (135,302,739)  (129,058,061)
Amortisation      (11,280,157)  (11,692,803)
Network and metering expenses      (29,184,482)  (19,954,181)
    20  (1,075,948,972)  (1,102,511,812)
Gross profit      299,054,331  294,951,736
Other operating income
Sundry income      401,620  2,597,734
KEBU management fee      1,825,522  2,818,535
Insurance and scrapping proceeds      121,099  320,571
Unallocated deposits transfer      853,660  10,437,598
Profit Share - Swakopmund Extension 10     -  4,200,936
    21  3,201,901  20,375,374
Movement in credit loss allowances     8  (5,942,438)  1,377,487
Expenses (Refer to page 77)      (228,136,509)  (222,531,608)
Operating profit     22  68,177,285  94,172,989
Interest earned on outstanding customer accounts    23  2,668,824  2,236,785
Interest earned on positive bank balances    23  9,080,753  5,379,290
Interest on bank overdraft     24  (283,613)  (1,433,534)
Interest on trade and other payables    24  (149,871)  (172,473)
Interest charge on post employment benefit    24  (1,163,000)  (1,078,000)
Interest-bearing borrowings     24  (19,477,827)  (23,908,522)
Interest on lease liabilities     24  (1,341,760)  -
Profit before taxation      57,510,791  75,196,535
Taxation     25  (26,390,702)  (31,529,065)
Profit for the year      31,120,089  43,667,470

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial gain on defined benefit plans     2,991,000  -
Tax related to actuarial gain on defined benefit plans     (957,120)  -
Total items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss    2,033,880  -
Total comprehensive income for the year     33,153,969  43,667,470

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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Other operating expenses
Advertising      792,617  1,014,050
Assets donated to NamPower      -  2,571,100
Audit fees     22  1,342,021  2,610,380
Bad debts written off      10,654,530  4,509,312
Bank charges      2,860,658  2,196,228
Consulting fees      2,495,387  2,687,569
Consumables      101,114  98,130
Depreciation      7,077,712  8,715,522
Directors’ remuneration      2,263,455  3,060,473
ESI Games      14,695  238,467
Employee costs      78,022,169  71,747,968
Expenditure written off      12,565,003  16,278,969
General expenses      9,568,198  7,521,337
IT software licenses      6,056,281  -
IT expenses      1,148,269  -
Insurance      2,423,632  2,267,765
Legal fees      1,096,968  425,358
Local authorities surcharge      59,176,351  59,011,229
Marketing expenditure      2,147,983  2,523,812
Meetings and corporate events      1,649,226  1,808,468
Movement in profit share      1,481,189  -
National Training Authority levy      1,964,211  2,060,982
Prepaid sales commission      10,836,291  9,805,163
Printing and stationery      2,058,118  2,105,696
Protective clothing      1,159,504  1,233,515
Secretarial fees      -  15,350
Social responsibility      1,416,412  503,263
Subscriptions      143,108  306,815
Subsistence and travelling      3,503,232  5,388,567
Telephone and communications      1,233,786  1,446,477
Training      2,138,047  2,808,379
Variable payment leases      746,342  -
Operating lease charges      -  7,571,264
     228,136,509  222,531,608

In prior year, IT software licenses and IT expenses were disclosed under operating lease charges; these are now disclosed 
separately as they are scoped out of IFRS 16.

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.

Total employee costs
Bonus pay provision      (312,824)  -
Job attachment      (289,242)  (826,110)
Leave pay provision      (3,359,389)  (2,651,660)
Medical aid contribution      (21,893,492)  (20,587,777)
Social security      (307,800)  (310,093)
Overtime payment      (6,346,938)  (5,723,066)
Pension fund contribution      (22,984,163)  (21,257,712)
Performance management bonus provision     -  (230,542)
Post employment benefit obligation provision - services and benefits paid   855,000  (491,000)
Salaries and wages      (157,236,449)  (147,121,586)
Stand-by allowances      (1,383,006)  (1,289,268)
Temporary labour      (66,605)  (317,215)
     (213,324,908)  (200,806,029)

Employee costs consist of N$135,302,739 (2019: N$129,058,061) included in cost of sales and N$78,022,169 (2019: 
N$71,747,970) included in other operating expenses.

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited.
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